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Shenzhen Investment Limited has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1997, which is the largest listed real estate
company under Shenzhen State Owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Its core business includes property development (mainly. residential
real estate, also including industrial real estate and commercial complex),
property investment and management. With a clear focus on Shenzhen, and plan
for other core cities in China, the Company is committed to be a first-class real
estate developer and real estate operator.

Now the Group has a land reserve with a planned total gross floor area close to'8
million square meters in various cities of China, of which the quality land reserve
with a planned total gross floor area of approximately 2.7 million square meters
is located in Shenzhen. The Company is committed to further optimize'its land
reserves structure, and further concentrate its assets and business in first-tier
cities including Shenzhen and key second-tier cities.

It has all along been the Company’s core strategy objective to promote the long
term sustainable development of its business, with-an aim to bring-a stable return
and create value appreciation for its shareholders.
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A Existing development projects
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@ Urban redevelopment projects
(pending resettlement)
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The diagram above provides an overview of the Group’s development projects in Shenzhen.
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Results

For the year ended 31 December

BET-_A=T—HLEFE

2016 2015
—ENE —T-RfF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT
Revenue Iz 21,354.00 18,428.17 +15.9%
Cost of sales HEKA 13,083.23 12,053.69 +8.5%
Gross profits eS| 8,270.77 6,374.48 +29.7%
Share of profits less losses of A% Na RE A AT
joint ventures and associates i AR g 1E 1,142.98 607.84 +88.0%
Profit before tax R %51 B v A 8,292.79 6,510.63 +27.4%
Profit for the year attributable to R )R 2 P R A B A
equity shareholders of the Company 3,170.58 2,868.80 +10.5%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRCEARZF] (BL) 42.36 40.56 +4.4%
Interim and proposed final and FRABRESRARER
special dividends per share (HK cents) B2 (710) 22.00 16.00 +37.5%

Financial Position

BRI
As at 31 December
A+—A=+—8
016 2015
—E—RF —T-h%F
HK$ million HK$ million Changes
BEBT BEBTT =
Net assets excluding non-controlling BEFE (TBE
interests IR RER) 32,810.81 33,325.87 -1.5%
Cash and deposits (including restricted cash) 4 Rz (BEZRHEE) 12,063.68 13,818.78 -12.7%
Net loans FER 7,693.56 7,556.31 +1.8%
Net assets per share excluding SREESE (TR
non-controlling interests (HK$) iR ERs) (BT) 4.29 4,51 -4.9%
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Key Ratios
TR

% B %

Gross profit margin EFI=

Net loan to net assets excluding FEREEETFE
non-controlling interests (TR IEIEIERRERS) 2=

Dividend payout ratio iR B R

38.73% 34.59%
23.45% 22.67%
51.94% 39.45%

Results (by operating segment)

L4 (REEAR)
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-hF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEABTL
Revenue W 55

Property development o EE 17,807.88 15,056.91
Property investment MERE 764.80 789.47
Property management YEEE 1,556.80 1,369.01
Manufacturing SUE 298.05 430.80
Others Hit 926.46 781.98
Total ] 21,353.99 18,428.17

Segment Results — Profits/(Loss) DEEE - B (FB)
Property development e ESE 4,764.08 4,853.63
Property investment (Note 1) MERE (MizE1) 2,815.31 2,125.26
Property management SR 124.63 84.90
Manufacturing S 38.40 11.44
Others Hith 1,342.07 (58.83)
Total bl 9,084.49 7,016.40

Notes: M3t -

1. Segment results included the increase in fair value of investment properties of 1.
approximately HK$1,204.14 million (2015: HK$1,082.18 million) and the recognition
of change in fair value of completed properties held for sale and properties under
development upon transfer to investment properties of approximately HK$654.52 million
(2015: HK$432.10 million).

2. Details of segment results of the Group is set out in note 4 to the financial statements. 2.

DEEEBRERBMED A ERNO120414BEHE T (=
T-RE10218B8% L) REAREHEREZE
BRMERERTNESHERENEZ AR BEDD
65452F BB (T —1F : 432108 BB TT) ©
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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2016 2015 2014 PINK] 2012
—B-XE C—T1F —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAEL TAT FHET FAT
RENEIEN
EED
RESULTS 5
REVENUE FROM CONTINUING BELEEK
OPERATIONS 2 21,353,993 18,428,172 13,827,105 9,778,807 8,312,726
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R AR R
(Including profit before tax from (BEIFEES
a discontinued operation) BRI AR 8,292,792 6,510,629 5,855,454 5,093,193 3,701,801
Income tax expense PRt f s
(Including income tax expense (BIEIEEETS
from a discontinued operation) ZETEHAY) (4,821,911)  (3,423,377)  (2,349,413)  (1,982,204)  (1,141,561)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRER 3,470,881 3,087,252 3,506,041 3,110,989 2,560,240
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THIFEL
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AIRERS IR 3,170,581 2,868,796 3,131,316 2,738,432 2,156,069
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 2 300,300 218,456 374,725 372,557 404,171
3,470,881 3,087,252 3,506,041 3,110,989 2,560,240
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- BE 86K
CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
Current assets EAE 56,984,059 55498072 59685807 49718511 34882126
Non-current assets FERBEE 39,561,506 35,587,146 34,819,100 27,173,014 19,509,881
Total assets B 96,545,565 91,085,218 94,504,907 76,891,525 54,392,007
Total liabilities FEy=Ey (60,324,631)  (55,516,152)  (61,731,272)  (49,312,179) (34,882,164
Net assets BERE 36,220,934 35,569,066 32,773,635 27,579,346 19,509,843
Non-controlling interests FEERR iR (3,410,121)  (2,243,201) (2,277,775  (2,241,535) (1,961,947
Net assets excluding BEZE (TBEFE
non-controlling interests R ER) 32,810,813 33325865 30,495,860 25,337,811 17,547,896
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Melodious Melodies
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Building Living Vision to
Achieve Undertakings in Shenzhen
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The Group has seized the prime time during the first half

of 2016 and proactively promoted its property sales and
disinvestment of the projects in the third- and fourth-

tier cities, so as to achieve its annual target in advance

and gain a satisfactory performance in spite of the most

stringent market controlling measures.

ALEIE T A LRERRERED
Ter i B e A 5 D S = I AOH AR A
fEARE IR R EWELZ T
D5 BT 58 AR A 4F AR » TR BLAE 34 o

LU Hua /=%
Chairman £&




Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A 7

Annual Report 2016 =& — < EF iR

Chairman’s Statement

AP IE I

The 2016 PRC real estate market was complex and volatile. In the first half year,
with the direction of destocking policy, the first and second-tier cities saw a
pickup both in terms of trading prices and volumes while the third- and fourth-
tier cities saw a recovery in the real estate market. Although cities including
Shanghai and Shenzhen have implemented their moderate macro-controlling
policies in March, factors like supply-and-demand fundamentals and funds have
continuously pushed up the property prices of the first- and certain second-tier
cities, which brought the market with a number of record high land transactions
and higher market risk accordingly. In October, all major cities have further
implemented a series of strict controlling measures to suppress the overheating
real estate market. Accordingly, the real estate markets in first- and second-tier
cities cooled down substantially, with severe decline in transaction volume, and
strong wait-and-see atmosphere in the market.

The Group has seized the prime time during the first half year and proactively
promoted its property sales and disinvestment of the projects in the third-
and fourth-tier cities, so as to achieve its annual target in advance and gain
a satisfactory performance in spite of the most stringent market controlling
measures.

2016 Results

During the year, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$21,354.0 million,
representing an increase of 15.9% over the same period of last year. Net profit
for the year attributable to the shareholders was HK$3,170.6 million, representing
an increase of 10.5% over the same period of last year. If excluding the net
effects on the changes in fair value of investment properties attributable to the

UpperHills
RE
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LB TRABMMNBERER  AMETEAR &2
ERENEDG—REF) —SATEELE LR +
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ERZRE XUPE ——BUTEHETSRE
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E2T o DRATKEFER  REEERE -

TR NEER

FR - AEEEREEENB40EEE T R LA
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Group, gain on a bargain purchase, provision for litigation and provision of land
projects in third- and fourth-tier cities, net profit attributable to the shareholders
was HK$2,614.9 million, representing an increase of 21.1% over the same
period of last year. Basic earnings per share were HK42.36 cents, representing
an increase of 4.4% over the same period of last year. The Board recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HK10.00 cents per share for year 2016. To
celebrate the 20th anniversary of the Company’s listing on Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and to appreciate the long-term support of the shareholders, the Board
also recommends the payment of a special dividend of HK5.00 cents per share.
The proposed final dividend and special dividend will be paid in cash, with scrip
dividend alternative. Together with the interim dividend of HK7.00 cents per share
already paid, the total dividend for the whole year will amount to HK22.00 cents
per share.

Satisfactory Sales Results

The Group captured the surge of market and capitalized on its diverse product
mix and superior product quality. It had basically completed in the first nine
months contracted sales of its major projects through close to the market
marketing activities such as bulk sale of properties, and thus effectively avoided
the impact of the national macro-controlling measures in October. The Group
achieved contracted sales of RMB19.1 billion for the year, representing an
increase of 19.8% over the same period of last year, of which, the contribution
from Shenzhen projects of the Group with higher gross profit margin accounted
for approximately 77%. The Group outperformed the annual target for contracted
sales of RMB18.5 billion, and its core projects including Shum Yip UpperHills,
Shum Yip Dongling and Shum Yip Zhongcheng all recorded satisfactory sales
results.

Further Intensification of the Development in Shenzhen and
Expansion of Future Resources through Strategic Cooperation

During a high momentum market period, the Group remained calm and no
land was acquired at high price through public listing-for-sale during the year,
and instead, through strategic cooperation, urban redevelopment etc., further
accelerated the development of quality land resources in Shenzhen. During the
year, the Group acquired 50% equity interest of the first phase of Shenzhen
International Qianhai project, with a gross floor area (GFA) of approximately
52,900 square meters, at the consideration of RMB1.12 billion. The Group made
effective progress in the development of potential projects in Pingshan and
Guangming New Districts. During the year, the Group, together with the parent
company, strengthened communication with local governments of various districts
of Shenzhen to successfully obtain the qualification of general coordinator for
certain zones reform projects covering an area of nearly 10 square kilometers
in Bagualing, Chegongmiao, center of High-tech Park, Xin’an and Nantou
Ancient Town, which was beneficial for the Group to compete for more urban
redevelopment resources in Shenzhen. In addition, Shum Yip Group, the parent

RS2 RREEAF6149688T ALk
21.1% - BREARBF B42.3675 1 - (L EFRE LA
44%  EESEZRE T ANERHBREFM10.00
Bl - BEMADAIREBBARZHM EM0ESF -
EEeNEZREEHRESR5.0081 - AEHBE
MRS - BRI RENORERE RERIR B UR
& (RHANBRREEENN) K% - BRBRE ZF
HARR S B ART 0078l - 2F R E A £ 522,008 -

B £ pAR
AKBEEETS LFARE  BRETNERES
BENEGRE  BRAARHESHAIMENENT
B AMAEAEARKEZHEENEE  FRR#
TTHANESZENETRE  2FZRAREER
ARB191E T - A EFR19.8% » Heb » BFIKFEE
SELRYIE BB LLATT% - BETHR D E ARE185(E
TAREERZ - EHBERELN  FERE R
i SIS E R o

e RARTRI > ARIE A 1 40 PR AU

EMBRAXACE  AEERBRITLHE  FAR
ZREREHEMIAERLE  MRBBBEAE.
BHEHENR - E—IMRRYEE L ERNH
&R AREUARBN2BTERAERAEE
HETER (BEEBEL5.298 F 77 K) 50%H) i -
AREEFL  ABRFENEEREAR  HRGE
B R AREBESARNARARIESREGE
BoKBE N \HE - EQR MEETRE #%R
FE BEAHSMOTTRENRBREESRS TR
B FERSIREARNERE HEMNNAKEF
BEZRYORTENER - R0 BRAREEHE
BRI EEEY EREERT BB A RS sun
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company, signed a strategic cooperation agreement with Shenzhen Media Group ~ 4EME - BILE  BHE - EERSBEBENAE
(SZMG) and reached an understanding on the joint development of potential — FIZERE [ o HABEA G AR EBARTETR
projects in regions such as Futian District, Nanshan District, Luohu District and ~ JIIBE T2 R HEE

Longhua District. These strategic cooperations shall establish a new channel for

the Group to acquire new resources and quality land in Shenzhen going forward.

P
S
"
G
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Guanlan Rose Garden E8/E 33245
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Further implementation steps in disposal of projects in the
third- and fourth-tier cities

The pickup of real estate market in the third- and fourth-tier cities has created a
favorable condition for the disposal of projects in the third- and fourth-tier cities
of the Group. During the year, the Group has reached agreements with local
governments and decided to sell back the undeveloped lands of approximately
620,000 square meters located at Heyuan to the local governments. More
measures will be adopted by the Group to revitalize its assets effectively, optimize
land structure and reduce operational risk.

Fruitful results achieved in attracting commercial tenants in
UpperHills

The commercial projects of the Shum Yip UpperHills under the Group successfully
attracted commercial tenants. In December 2016, the first three-in-one project
of MUJI'in the world, combining flagship shop, restaurant and hotel, was set up
in the Shum Yip UpperHills. Till now, the occupancy rate of commercial area of
the Shum Yip UpperHills is 60%, with more than 300 shops planned covering
food and beverages, retail, design, life experiences and other aspects, and an
approximately 40% of which are brands newly arriving in Shenzhen. “Shenzhen
International Consumer Electronics Exhibition and Trade Center” led by the
Shenzhen government was officially established in Shum Yip UpperHills during
the year. The center is positioned as an exhibition and trading platform for high-
end international consumer electronic products at LOFT-D area and part of the
commercial area in Shum Yip UpperHills spanning a total of 50,000 square
meters of industrial space as its core, featuring the three major elements of
technology, innovation and fashion and gradually introducing big domestic and
foreign high-end consumer electronic brands. The establishment of “Shenzhen
International Consumer Electronics Exhibition and Trade Center” and the
innovation for commercial design and attracting commercial investment, shall
enrich the forms and categories of businesses for Shum Yip UpperHills and
enhance the appeal to consumers of multi-level and innovative enterprises.

Sound Financial Position Maintained

The Group continued to maintain a good sales proceeds collection and
strengthened fund integrated planning and management to maintain a low level of
gearing ratio. As of 31 December 2016, net gearing ratio (including all interest-
bearing liabilities) of the Group was 38.9%.
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Outlook

Since October 2016, Shenzhen is under the most rigid and comprehensive control
in the real estate industry. The macro-controlling policies involve limitations
on purchase, loan, and pricing, and tighter financing conditions on developers
and stringent requirements of examination upon completion of projects and
design and planning, etc. In 2017, Shenzhen real estate market is entering
into a new adjustment period, which is full of challenges. With the effects of
macro-controlling policies, both supply and demand curtail, seeing a substantial
decrease in transaction volume and a relatively stable price. The Group considers
that Shenzhen, as an innovation center of the PRC, is a city with strong
competitive advantages and attractive to outsiders. Thus, fundamentals such as
huge demand for properties and lack of land resources will strongly support the
real estate market in Shenzhen growing healthily. We believe that quality assets
at core areas of Shenzhen have long-term value. Therefore, the Group will target
at maintaining stable sales and realizing the long-term value of assets when it
prepares and implements its 2017 sales scheme

Tanglang City
BRAR

Hi S 2

BZE-ANETANK RYIER TR L&E M2)
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On property sales, in 2017, the Group has an annual saleable value of
approximately RMB31 billion, of which, the saleable value in Shenzhen accounts
for over 80%. The contracted sales target for 2017 is RMB19.1 billion, remaining
the same as last year. During the period of implementing macro-controlling
policies, the government may adopt various measures, which may bring further
uncertainties to the transaction volume and prices of real estates. The Group will
follow closely with the trend of policy and adjust its sales strategies, to optimize
its structure of saleable products and reduce risk resulting from controlling
measures.

The Group will keep seeking opportunities to acquire land projects in Shenzhen
proactively. On the one hand, the Group will deepen its cooperation with its
parent company; on the other hand, the Group will continue to implement the
cooperation with state-owned enterprises, such as Shenzhen Media Group,
Shenzhen Metro, Shenzhen Bus Group and Shenzhen Press Group, and to make
great efforts to increase resources for new projects in Shenzhen. The Group will
capture the opportunity of certain old urban redevelopment projects and capitalize
on the advantage of being the coordinator in zones reform. Through improving
the communication and coordination with district governments, and leveraging on
its professional abilities of introducing industries, comprehensive operation and
arranging public space and ancillary facilities, the Group strives to acquire more
resources to develop quality areas.

The Group will pay close attention to opportunities in other key first-tier and
second-tier cities. The Group has established a strategic cooperation relationship
with Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd. and Suzhou Industrial Park Trirun
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (EM TEEIKEEREZREEEFRLF),
respectively, earlier, trying to expand park resources in areas such as Nanjing and
Suzhou through setting up joint funds, jointly developing parks and other ways of
cooperation.

With the PRC real estate market reaching a stage of assets stabilization and
retention, the ability of asset operating will become the key competitiveness of
the property developers. The Group continues to establish an operation service
platform, to enhance its standard of operating services and to go ahead on its path
of strategic transformation. Currently, its three main operation service centers,
namely commercial management operation center, wisdom park operation center
and residential property services center have been basically integrated. In 2017,
the newly established commercial management operating center has made use
of the opening ceremony of the commercial portion of Shum Yip UpperHills to lift
its professional operation standard. Through introducing new brands and new
elements, combining retail and servicing experiences, and integrating culture of
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arts with innovative design, the center has provided consumers with special life
experiences. By integrating resources and upgrading value-added services of the
park, its wisdom park operation platform will benefit from scale of economy and
thus its operation efficiency and brand effect will both be enhanced. Its residential
property services platform will strive to provide comprehensive and considerate
services to its customers. The Group will put great efforts in improving its operation
efficiency and standards of services, promoting the formation of light asset
business, and adding value to its key assets.

In the next five years, with the vision of “Leader in Value Creation for City
Spaces”, the Group will continue to firmly focus on Shenzhen and its strategic
development of exploring Shenzhen. While maintaining a steady growth in the
size of developments and sales, the Group will intensify its development in
Shenzhen, enlarge moderately the scale of its investment property, optimize
its investment properties portfolio, achieve high-efficiency operation, and seek
higher asset quality and level of return continuously. By building an operation
and service platform with core competitiveness and capitalizing on building a
strategic cooperation platform and the “Urban Dreams” platform with outstanding
innovative enterprises, the Group captures its advantages of urban upgrading
capability and strengthens its strategic coordination and operational capability,
to enhance its brand effect and provide comprehensive value-added service to
its customers, building a urban space with enhanced value in industrial park,
commercial and residential areas.

| believe that, through unremitting efforts, the Group will be able to achieve
a balance between scale expansion and value enhancement in the next five
years and a constant optimization of the structure of land reserves and assets.
At the same time, we will spur with long accumulation on a well-grounded
strategy for transformation and upgrading in branding to achieve a sound and
sustainable development of the Company and create better benefits and return
for shareholders.

LLU Hua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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Overall Results

The 2016 PRC real estate market was complex and volatile. In the first half
year, benefiting from the destocking policy, the first and second-tier cities saw a
pickup both in terms of trading prices and volumes while the third- and fourth-
tier cities saw accelerated destocking process. With the rise in property prices, a
number of record high land transactions emerged in land market, which brought
higher market risk accordingly. In October, the major cities intensively introduced
a series of stringent control policies for real estate, where the control policies
in Shenzhen were particularly stringent. Affected by the control, the trend of
property prices are stabilizing gradually.

During the year, the Group has seized the time and proactively promoted its
projects sales and disinvestment of the lands in the third- and fourth-tier cities.
Despite the stringent control policies, the Group still achieved its annual target in
advance and gained a satisfactory performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group achieved a turnover of
HK$21,354.0 million, representing an increase of 15.9% over the same period
of last year. The gross profit margin was 38.7%, representing an increase of
4.1 percentage points over the same period of 2015. The Group achieved a
net profit attributable to shareholders of HK$3,170.6 million, representing an
increase of 10.5% over the same period of last year. If excluding the net effects
on the changes in fair value of investment properties attributable to the Group,
gain on a bargain purchase, provision for litigation and provision of land projects
in third- and fourth-tier cities, net profit attributable to equity shareholders was
HK$2,614.9 million, representing an increase of 21.1% over the same period of
last year. Basic earnings per share were HK42.36 cents, representing an increase
of 4.4% over the same period of last year.

/o M

BEES
“E-AEPERMETSENSE  L¥F F8
REBENRE  ——GRETEHEEEET &2

ST ACR - HEEFE LK LHHEHT
Iﬁfﬁ miZEBRME - + AN FXBUTEED
E-RIBRNFHEFERR AP RINFZR
RLREE XAEYE  BREZHEFE -

FN - AEENEREEAD - BHREEETEAHE
UR=Mg+maRE @EEQ}EFW [26- SN
SENRAMTERZFER  BGTIRBRMAE o

AEEHEZE _T—"F+-_A=t+t-BILFEEHR
EEENIBLEEBIT [ ER15.9% EFIXAE
387% B-E-AFRABEL EAHIEEDH - R
IR B AT F3,170.6 5 BT - R E3R10.5% © 205
Aiﬁlﬁﬁ%&é%%m@mﬁ@ A8 REWEF
B RARERY=METHIBRNRENFFE
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Business Segment Revenue
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@ Property Development #7235% @ Property Investment #2#% @ Property Management #7252 @ Manufacture 23 @ Others Eft

Property Development Business

The Group seized the rising opportunities in market, and actively promoted the
sales of several major projects in Shenzhen. Leveraging on a diversified product
mix and superior product quality, the Group completed the sale of its main
projects substantially prior to the control in early October through marketing
means close to market such as bulk sale, and exceeded its full year sales
target. In addition, the Group strengthened the management over the progress
of projects to ensure the successful completion of the key projects and achieved
satisfactory operating results.

LESEE 3

AREEEETHLARE BEESRINEAEN
BEHE  BESTIMNEMGRE BFNEMRE
BEARRHEROTENTHFE - R+ AM#AE
AMERTKERRBMNEE  LBBEZTREFOHEE
Bt AREMRIREEES BREHE
BIBFIZT - RS TREMELRE -

Chegongmiao Project

ENCEEE
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Contracted Sales & Booked Sales Performance

ARHENSEHERE

RMB million
AREBET
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@ cContracted Sales & R4St 4E @ Booked Sales &EEEEE

Sales Revenue Booked: During the year, the Group recorded property sales of
approximately 922,000 sg.m. (excluding the interests attributable to the Group
in its two material associates and one material joint venture), representing an
increase of 15% over the same period of last year, and achieved a net revenue
from property sales of approximately RMB15,230.8 million (equivalent to
HK$17,807.9 million) representing an increase of approximately 18% over the
same period of last year. The gross profit margin of property development and
sales was 41.3%, representing an increase of 4.4 percentage points over the
same period of last year. The percentage of those Shenzhen projects with high
gross profit in total sales revenue booked during the year was 72.1%. During
the year, the average gross profit margin for Shenzhen projects of the Group was
approximately 49.9%, whereas those for other first-tier cities, second-tier cities
and third-tier cities, being approximately 36.1%, 31.8% and 11%, respectively.

HEHEWA  FR AEEAEYEREEEEN2.2
EEFR (TRELASEEMREERE AN —XK
EZREQAMGER)  LEFRBLEANY: B
BMEREFRANDARE523085E T HERN
17,807.9B &I Rt EFA4918% - B EREHEE
EFE413% 0 A EFA4MERD B - HEHEWRA
tBEFORIEE L AT21% - R AEBR
YIEE FHEFXL H49.9%  HE—EH T FHEF
KU A% ZHEBTFHEFEH A% =&
WA ERNENE1% -

Qingshuihe Auto Park
BACTERAEEER
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Property Sales Booked in 2016 TR NELEE
Property Name Sales Area Net Sales Unit Price
BERRE HEME HEFE HEEB(E
(RMB/sq.m.)
(sq.m.) (RMB million) (AR¥T,
(F¥rK) (AREGET) FRHK,
Wanlin Lake Residential/villa/shop 23,578 151 6,404
B FE,/BIE /&
Rui Cheng Residential 107,351 451 4,201
=51 FE
Noah Mountain Forest Villa 622 3 4,823
o oo L AR bl
Splendid City Residential 90,602 324 3,576
BRI F=E
Garden Hill Villa 928 9 9,698
FILB5 pallE=d
Euro-view Garden Residential/shop 2,017 22 10,907
R~ FE/EH
Shanglin Garden Residential 62,327 283 4541
M3 F=
Nanhu Rose Bay Residential/villa/shop 12,088 138 11,416
P B FE/FIE a5
Yihu Rose Garden Residential/shop 16,302 60 3,681
ENiEE T T/
Guanlan Rose Pavilion Office building 7,056 147 20,833
BRI WRE
Guanlan Rose Garden Residential 58,3112 1,265 23,728
BRBORE FE
Shum Yip Zhongcheng Office building 20,154 1,101 54,629
kit YN
Shum Yip City Residential 98,879 672 6,796
RER F=
Yundonghai Villa 12,825 95 7,407
ERE HlIE
Saina Bay Residential/villa/shop 27,949 111 3,972
ENE FE/BE / EH
Jiangyue Bay Residential/shop 39,183 703 17,941
IR FE/
Boxing Building Office building 4,426 133 30,050
BEAE LN
Bolong Building Office building 10,617 299 28,162
BERE YN
Royal Spring Garden North Villa 10,018 95 9,483
FGHREILE Pl
UpperHills North Residential 22,396 1,755 78,362
wx EmdoE F=
UpperHills South Office building 111,758 6,207 55,540
xR WOE
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Residential 135,026 646 4,784
SERILREERN FE
Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Residential 50,800 333 6,555
BINREELR B
Others Residential 2,162 82
Hi F=
Parking place sales™ Parking place - 146
B HE Bfi
Total &5t 922,376 15,231
Note*: A total of 1,060 parking lots were sold. 5 B AT S 1,0601E -
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Contracted sales: During the year, the Group realized contracted sales area of
approximately 896,000 sg.m., and contracted sales revenue of approximately
RMB19.1 billion, representing a significant increase of 19.8% over the same

period of last year.

Contracted Sales in 2016

Aﬂﬁ%ﬁ  REEE
R - A REERAL
RI08% o

e LT

Project Name Sales Area Sales Unit Price
e HEMER HE SR BE
(HMB/sq m)
 fsqm) - (RMB million) ARET,
(FrK) (ANREEZT)
UpperHills Shenzhen Complex 152,817 9,270 60,661
e B A Ny
Shum Yip Dongling Shenzhen Complex 56,352 3,479 61,737
S A e
Ma’ anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma’anshan Residential 169,955 921 5,419
BRILRFER SEIL FE
Guanlan Rose Garden Shenzhen Complex 31,149 660 21,189
BRI, A Fa
Shum Yip City Shunde Residential 78,317 658 8,402
IR g% FE
Jinshazhou Guangzhou Residential 24,371 602 24,702
WM BN F=E
Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Changzhou Residential 62,673 446 7,116
MRS ERT N F=E
Garden Hill Huizhou Residential 59,902 365 6,093
F 158 =M FE
Rui Cheng Changsha Residential 71,844 346 4,816
= & F=E
Royal Spring Garden Chaohu Residential 14,402 159 11,040
R Ly FE
Shanglin Garden Taizhou Residential 27,686 150 5,418
F#k38 Z N F=E
Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential 18,832 135 7,169
B =M FE
Sé)lendid City Jiangyan Residential 33,304 123 3,693
=i FE
Salna Bay Heyuan Residential 23 50D 110 4,670
me AR FE
Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential 8,785 110 12,521
BB E IE FE
Taﬂglang City* Sheszhen Complex 2,784 109 39,152
/7l<
Yundonghal Sanshui ReS|dent|al 12,213 88 7,205
E=)yls =K £
Qingshuihe Auto Park Shenzhen Warehouse/Commercial 2,633 84 31,903
BB B EXR N X
Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu Re3|dentlal 18,715 79 4,221
MBI g Ea=c
European City Dongguan Residential 4,840 83 10,950
B R FE
Terra Building Shenzhen Industrial/Commercial 170 10 58,824
BRNE Y EX /m¥E
Noble Times Shenzhen Residential 252 10 39,683
RER N F=E
Noah Mountain Forest Changsha Residential 622 4 6,431
3 38 LR ) F=E
Shum l%) Zhongcheng Shenzhen Complex 20,154 1,168 57,954
REHp A Ny
Total &5f 896,327 19,139

Note*: Tanglang City project was co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group, as to 50% owned by @A EFE - FE50%

B SE*: JERASIA B BRI 8
the Group, and it is accounted based on equity method. s Z

CARERARE
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Project development: During the year, the Group had a new construction area of ~ FEBBER - £ AEEHFEIEENM 28T
approximately 412,000 sq.m., and a completed area of approximately 1,020,000 X - T TEBEL102EF K o
sq.m.

New Construction Projects in 2016 TR NEHETIHEE
Project Name Total GFA Saleable Area
JBH BT BREERE AEERE
(sq.m.) (sq.m)
(FrK) (FK)
Building 5&6 of Yihu Rose Garden Phase 1.1 Chengdu Residential 17,761 14,400
e BRI 1 5 612 P E F=E
Shum Yip Dongling Land Plot 04-01 Shenzhen Commercial 76,733 54,089
(Huangbeiling Project) (Including Hotel & Office)
RERE4-013 8 (R EEE) sl B¥ (FEERBR)
Rui Cheng Phase 3.1 Changsha Residential 73,433 49,189
B35 -9 T
Chaohu North Phase 3 Chaohu Residential 5,721 5,617
SR L] F=E
Wanlin Lake Phase 9 (Wanlin Lake South) Huizhou Residential 74,427 54,390
B (Bmim) =M FE
Shanglin Garden Phase 1.2 Taizhou Residential 106,405 105,573
LEM%E1.28 ZM =
Chaohu North Phase 4.1 Chaohu Residential 4,853 4,727
S EAEHER i F=E
Qianhai 19-06-06 Project Shenzhen Residential 52,900 52,900
A1/819-06-0678 B 3l %
Total &3 412,233 340,885

Yundonghai Villa 288512
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Completed Projects in 2016 TR -NERTIEA

Project Name Type Total GFA Saleable Area

IEICRA Rt tE BT AIEHEE
¢ (sq.m.)

Rui Cheng Phase 2.1 Changsha Residential 123,778 87,115

E2.1 58 8=/ =

Splendid City Phase 2.2 Jiangyan Residential 100,807 96,325

BEZ2 25 =i £

Shum Yip City Phase 3.1B Shunde Residential 115,006 73,411

REM3.1HB [ FE

Shanglin Garden Phase 1.1 Taizhou Residential 153,801 91,693

G115 =M T=

Shum Yip Zhongcheng (Land Plot 05-03) Shenzhen Complex 24,659 20,154

REFR I (05-03H58) sl e

Guanlan Rose Garden & Pavilion Shenzhen Complex 164,200 113,147

BUR BRI R B E A e

UpperHills South T2 (Low-tower) Shenzhen Complex 153,018 121,351

waE EEET (K5) ol )

Chaohu North Phase 2 Chaohu Residential 13,102 10,937

S8t E 28 &35 £

Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 3 Shenzhen Warehouse/Commercial 36,102 15,070

BB B EE ¥ B 3HR A VA

Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 3.1 Ma’anshan Residential 135,965 107,713

BBRILRFENIIAE el F=x

Total &5t 1,020,438 736,916

Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu 5111 ¥ T

26



Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A 7

Annual Report 2016 =& — < EF iR

Management Discussion and Analysis

%@@njnﬂﬂ/\

Land Reserves

New Projects: On 20 December 2016, Shum Yip Land Company Limited (“SY
Land”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with Shenzhen International Qianhai Real Estate (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd and
Shenzhen International Qianhai Investment and Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd,
pursuant to which, SY Land agreed to, through capital increase, make a capital
contribution of RMB1.12 billion to acquire 50% equity interests of Shenzhen
International Qianhai Real Estate (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., which in turn enabled SY
Land to own 50% interests of the Qianhai 19-06-06 Project owned by Shenzhen
International. In respect of settlement of the above consideration, RMB560 million
had been paid in December 2016 pursuant to the agreement, and the remaining
will be paid by 31 December 2018. The project is located at Block 6, Unit 19 of
Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Cooperation Zone (B1/&&Fi&AERE+ 18 T06%
) in Shenzhen. The project occupies a land site area of approximately 12,491
square meters with total gross floor area of 52,900 square meters, among which,
GFA of the residential and commercial parts are 50,000 square meters and 2,900
square meters, respectively. The project has commenced construction at the end
of 2015, and is expected to commence sales in 2018. We will capitalize on our
own experience and advantages in development and operation of commercial,
residential and complex properties, targeting to improve project quality and space
value.

Disposal of inefficient land projects: During the year, the Group made attempt
on various measures with focus on promoting the disposal of projects in third-
and fourth-tier cities. In January 2016, the Group and relevant department of the
Heyuan government reached an agreement under which the local government
would resume approximately 620,000 square meters of undeveloped land and
would return the land premium to the Company after the land is sold through
public listing-for-sale. The Group has made a provision of approximately
HK$857.3 million during the year ended 31 December 2016 for its projects in
third-and fourth-tier cities.

As of the end of December 2016, the Group owned land reserves with an
aggregate planned GFA of approximately 7.859 million sg.m. (among which
the Group was interested in 7.239 million sg.m.) and a capacity building area
of 5.99 million sq.m. (among which the Group was interested in 5.485 million
sg.m.), among which, the projects under construction had a total planned GFA
of approximately 3.596 million sq.m. (among which the Group was interested in
3.326 million sq.m.) and a capacity building area of 2.651 million sg.m. (among
which the Group was interested in 2.438 million sg.m.).

i

& s it
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WEBEXAXEMERDA (TRXEM]) BRER

EER (R ARDARAERATEREERE (R
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BREMGA BRRERAEEE (RI) ERA

BI50%E s - AT 58 R B R BT &19-06-0678 B 50%1E
FoHfP ARUBS6ETCERBER -_T—~FT+
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FH BEIHEBENNTHK BELEEES
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EIE599E F 7k (B D5485BF oK) » %
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Distribution of Land Reserves (As at 31 December g (RZF—AET-H=1—H)
2016)

By type — Planned GFA mtes 123 (sq.m.) By type — Capacity Building Area "ts2ad3 (sq.m.)
EREBRLf - REREEE (LHXK) ERBRL M - SARREEE (THXK)

@ Residential 5= @ industrial E% ® complex A8
By City — Planned GFA metes a3 (5q.m.) By City — Capacity Building Area "ts2213 (5q.m.)
WhAH - REREEBEE (LHXK) HWHA M - ARREEBEE (LK)

@ 1st-tier city — Shenzhen —#@5 7 — Z @ 2nd-tier city =55 @ 3d-tier city =457
Notes: MisE -
1. Planned GFA: the sum of the gross floor area of all the floors above and 1. HEREAEE: BRAMSEENS RN REEYHEIA LR
under the ground of a single building or buildings within the scope of the HE A & BiREEE 2 4B -

land for construction.

2. Capacity building area: the sum of the gross floor area which is used in 2. HABRLERE: BRAMSEANMATEARENEERREY
the calculation of the plot ratio within the land for construction. AR o

3. Excluded the land for Heyuan project which have been returned to the 3. B 5IBRIE B REES BTN i -
local governments.
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Completion of Relevant Asset Injection for Shum Yip Dongling
Project

On 11 March 2016, the transaction in respect of the acquisition of approximately
95% equity interests in Fairwind Power Limited from Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited, the parent company of the Company, was passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company. Fairwind Power Limited holds the Shum
Yip Dongling project located in Luohu District, Shenzhen. The transaction was
completed on 15 March 2016. The transaction generated a gain on bargain
purchase of HK$526.2 million, which was included in the profit or loss for the year.

Property Investment

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has a total area of above 1,100,000 square
meters in investment properties, the majority of which are located in Shenzhen.
During the year, the Group recorded rental income of HK$764.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 3.1% over the same period of last year.
The gross profit margin of its property investment business was approximately
84.9%, representing a decrease of 2.9 percentage points over the same period
of last year. Thanks to the increase in property value, the Group recorded a
revaluation gain in its investment property portfolio of HK$1,204.1 million for the
year. In addition, to implement the operating strategy of “developing, sale, holding
and management equally”, the Group reclassified LOFT-B&C area of Shum Yip
UpperHills North from “Properties under development” to “Investment properties”
and other certain “Completed properties held for sale” to “Investment properties”,
which resulted in a revaluation gain of HK$654.5 million. With completion of the
projects such as Shum Yip UpperHills and Taifu Square in future, the Group’s
revenue from, and the scale of, investment properties, will continue to increase.

58 IR SEHRUE H M B B A AR S

RIE—R"EZR+—H ARAKRREFIASEE
TR AREE (£E) AR 2 8 W EFairwind Power
Limited#795%% # #) 22 5 ° Fairwind Power Limitedt% &
MUAFITEFRORAEFEEEE - BERHERS
Z-XNFE-A+HABARNK - ZRZIELRELEFEG

526 2B BEITE At ARNFIRE
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Property Management

The Group holds six property management companies possessing first
class property management qualifications at the national level. The property
management team is committed to improving services, supporting the
development of real estate business, and helping to enhance the corporate
brand. As of the end of the year, the total area of properties under the Group’s
management was approximately 40 million square meters, covering a variety
of property types such as government offices, office buildings, residential
communities, villas, and science and technology parks, which are mainly
located in the Pearl River and Yangtze River deltas as well as the central region.
During the year, the property management business contributed a turnover of
approximately HK$1,556.8 million to the Group, representing an increase of
approximately 13.7% over the same period of last year.

Hotel Operations

The Group has three hotels in operation and three under construction. Those in
operation are Suzhou Marriott Hotel (with 293 guest rooms), Chaohu Shum Yip
Bantang Hot Spring Hotel (with 20 spring villas) and Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu
Hot Spring (with 203 guest rooms). Those under construction are Mandarin
Oriental Shenzhen (with 190 guest rooms planned), Shum Yip UpperHills Boutique
Hotel (with 90 guestrooms planned), and Tanglang City project hotel (with 200
guest rooms planned) which is co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group.

During the year, the three hotels in operation recorded operating income
(included in the segment of other operations) of approximately HK$167.7 million,
representing a decrease of 7.8% over the same period of last year.

Manufacturing Business

The Group’s manufacturing business mainly represents the LCD manufacturing
and metal materials processing and other businesses which have been
held by the companies under the Group over the years. During the year, the
manufacturing business recorded operating income of approximately HK$298.1
million, representing a decrease of 30.8% over the same period of last year.
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Joint Ventures

During the year, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited (a 51%
owned company of the Group) maintained almost the same results as the
corresponding period of last year, and it made a loss contribution of HK$2.0
million to the Group this year. The principal activity of this company is to assist
local government in primary land development, while the local government did
not make any arrangement to launch such lands during the year. In addition,
Shenzhen Langtong Property Development Company Limited (a 50% owned
company of the Group) made a net profit contribution of HK$117.0 million to
the Group for the year. This company is the project company responsible for
developing Shenzhen Tanglang City Project which is co-developed with Shenzhen
Metro Group. Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group) Company Limited, made a
net profit contribution of HK$542.5 million to the Group including non-controlling
interests, representing an increase of 23.3% over the same period of last year.

Performance of Associates

During the year, the associates invested by the Group performed as expected. Of
which, Road King Infrastructure Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, made a
net profit contribution of HK$341.8 million to the Group, representing an increase
of 52.5% over the same period of last year. Coastal Greenland Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong, made a net profit contribution of HK$137.2 million to
the Group, whereas it made a loss contribution of HK$77.6 million for the same
period of last year.

Financing
During the vyear, the Group focused on integrated financial management to
safeguard its business development.

During the year, the Company entered into an agreement with certain banks
in Hong Kong in respect of a syndicated transferrable term loan facility in the
principal amount up to US$230 million and HK$1,000 million for a period of five
years.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total bank loans and other borrowings
amounted to HK$19,757.3 million (31 December 2015: HK$21,375.1 million),
of which HK$15,485.4 million were floating-rate loans, and the remaining
were fixed-rate loans. Long-term loans amounted to HK$14,468.8 million,
accounting for approximately 73.2% of the total borrowings, and short-term
loans were HK$5,288.5 million, accounting for approximately 26.8% of the total
borrowings. Borrowings from Hong Kong and overseas capital market amounted
to HK$12,942.6 million, representing 65.5% of the total borrowings, and the
remaining were borrowings from mainland China, representing 34.5% of the
total borrowings. During the year, the average comprehensive interest rate of the
Group in respect of its bank loans and other borrowings was about 4.9% per
annum.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balance (including
restricted cash) was HK$12,063.7 million (31 December 2015: HK$13,818.8
million) of which approximately 89.1% and 10.9% were denominated in Renminbi
and other currencies (mainly in US$ and HK$) respectively.

The Group’s assets are mainly denominated in Renminbi. Of the bank loans
and other borrowings, 34.5% are denominated in Renminbi, while 65.5% are
denominated in HK$ and US$. HK$ is adopted as the reporting currency in the
Group’s financial statements. The effect of the decrease in RMB exchange rate
on the Group’s finance will be mainly reflected in the depreciation of the asset
and earnings denominated in Renminbi against HK$, the reporting currency.
The Group will monitor foreign exchange risk, and consider prudently applying
financial instruments to hedge the foreign exchange risk in due time.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net assets attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$32,810.8 million (31 December 2015:
HK$33,325.9 million). The net gearing ratio (being the difference between
total interest-bearing liabilities and cash and bank balance (including restricted
cash) divided by net assets (excluding non-controlling interests)) was 23.4% (in
case that the liabilities only consisted of bank loans and other borrowings) and
38.9% (in case that the liabilities consisted of loans from shareholders of parent
company and all the other interest-bearing liabilities). The gross gearing ratio
(being the ratio of total liabilities over total assets) was 62.5%.

Financial Position
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As at As at
31 December 31 December
HK$ million 2016 AN)
R-ZE—RF R-E—HF
BEBTT +=-A=+—H
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEE 19,757.2 21,375.1
Long-term debts RHAE 14,468.8 16,100.9
Short-term debts RHAE 5,288.5 5,274.2
Floating-rate loans FBER 15,485.4 16,672.7
Cash and bank balance (including restricted cash) Be RRITES (BEXEH
He) 12,063.7 13,818.8
Net gearing ratio with the liabilities including FEEX (BRERBPERTK
bank loans and other borrowings only HMER) 23.4% 22.7%
Net gearing ratio with the liabilities including FEEX (BEBEESE
all interest-bearing liabilities aE) 38.9% 36.5%
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—E2-51%

(RMB loans) (HK$/USS$ loans)  (RMB loans) (HK$/US$ loans)
HK$ million (Bx,/ (&%
BHEBT (AREER) EnER) (ARBER) EnEN)
Within one year —ER 2,696.3 2,592.2 47751 499.1
One to two years —FR 357.3 4,475.5 1,726.2 2,391.7
Three to five years == hE 3,593.4 5,874.9 3,497.2 7,565.4
Over five years RENE 167.7 - 920.4 -

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) L H B AR

During the year, the Group recorded a LAT of HK$2,912.9 million, representing
13.6% of turnover. The LAT mainly arose from the apartments and office buildings
of Shum Yip UpperHills. The book gross profit margin of the apartments and office
buildings of Shum Yip UpperHills was 59% and 48% respectively. As the LAT rate
is progressive, the higher the profitability of a project is, the higher LAT rate and
the LAT amount is needed to be borne.
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Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total loans of HK$638.2 million (31
December 2015: HK$1,917.6 million) that were pledged with assets (for details,
see note 30 to the financial statements).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had provided guarantees to a maximum
of HK$7,869.3 million (31 December 2015: HK$8,857.7 million) to banks for
housing loans extended by the banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties
(for details, see note 42 to the financial statements).

The Wuhan project of Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Company Limited (“Terra
Company”), a 75.05%-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property Development Company Limited
(“Wuhan Terra Company”) was implicated in the criminal investigation due to
involvement in the corruption of the local government officials. The People’s
Procuratorate of Jianli County of Hubei Province has frozen the bank accounts
of Wuhan Terra Company amounting to RMB540 million. Wuhan Terra Company
received an indictment issued from People’s court of Jianli county, Hubei province
during the year, and People’s Procuratorate of Jianli county, Hubei province raised
a prosecution against Wuhan Terra Company and its 3 members of management
in the name of crime of offering bribery by entities and the crime of offering
bribery to entities. Wuhan Terra Company has engaged professional lawyers to
follow up the legal procedures for this case in order to maintain its legal interests.
Although the case was at the stage of court proceedings and the final judgment
cannot be determined, however, the Company decided to make provision of
RMB540 million subject to this case at Wuhan Terra Company level.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 18,643 employees (2015: 17,995)
of whom 39 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial and finance related
personnel), and the rest were in Mainland China. The total remuneration for the
year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately HK$1,322.0 million
(2015: HK$1,084.8 million).

Employee benefits and bonuses are based on their individual performance, the
Group’s profit condition, benefit level of the industry and the current market
condition. The remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure
internal equity and its competitiveness in the market. In driving performance,
we also grant share options, under the share option scheme of the Group, to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the Group.
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Dr. LU Hua
ZE 3w

* 7 B AN B

Chairman
£

Dr. LU Hua, aged 53, an Executive Director since 21 June 2011 and the
Chairman of the Board since 31 January 2013. Dr. LU was the President of
the Company during the period from 21 June 2011 to 30 January 2013 and
the Acting Chairman of the Board during the period from 24 April 2012 to 30
January 2013. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. Dr. LU is also a director
of various members of the Group. Dr. LU holds a doctorate degree in Political
Economics from The Nankai University and a master’s degree in Finance from The
University of Reading in UK. Dr. LU held the position as the president of Shum
Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited from April 2009 to
December 2012. Prior to this, Dr. LU served as the chairman of Shahe Industria
Co., Ltd. (000014.SZ) and Shenzhen Shahe Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. and the
general manager of Shenzhen Property Development Company Ltd.. Dr. LU also
served as a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China, Ltd. (2318.HK) and Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). At present,
he is a director of Shenzhen SEZ Construction and Development Group Co., Ltd..
He has vast experience of over twenty years in property development, corporate
governance and administrative management.
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Mr. HUANG Wei
HiRfk

Executive Director
WITEE

Mr. HUANG Wei, aged 46, an Executive Director and President since 21
July 2015. Mr. HUANG was an on-the-job graduate at Guangdong Academy of
Social Sciences, where he graduated with a major in law. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University. Mr. HUANG is currently a director and president of Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He is also a director of
various members of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he served as a deputy
secretary of the Party Working Committee, a deputy director of the Management
Committee and a director of Social Work Committee of CPC Shenzhen Dapeng
New District and served as a member of the Standing Committee, a director of
District Committee (district government) Office and a district government party
member of Longgang District and the Longgang District Youth League secretary.
Mr. HUANG has extensive experience in management.
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Mr. MOU Yong
R

Executive Director
WITEE

Mr. MOU Yong, aged 54, an Executive Director since 1 December 2009.
At present, he is also a director of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited and its various subsidiaries. He graduated from The
Shaanxi University of Technology with major in Chinese Language and Literature
and obtained an advanced MBA from The Peking University. He is a lawyer of
The People's Republic of China and an arbitrator of The Shenzhen Arbitration
Commission. Prior to joining the Group in 2009, he held the positions of the head
of Enterprise Leadership Personnel Management and the chief of General Office
at The Shenzhen Municipal People's Government State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission. At present, Mr. MOU is also a non-executive
director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). Mr. MOU has extensive
experience in corporate governance and administrative management.
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Mr. LIU Chong
Bl eH

Executive Director
WITEE

Mr. LIU Chong, aged 57, an Executive Director since 30 December 2010 and
a Vice President of the Company since April 2010. Mr. LIU is also a vice president
of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and a
director of Shum Yip Shahe (Group) Company Limited. He holds a bachelor’s
degree and postgraduate qualification from The Jiangxi University of Finance
and Economics with major in Accounting and he is a senior accountant. Mr. LIU
is also a director of various members of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
he used to serve successively as a deputy general manager and financial
controller of Shenzhen SDG Company Limited (FII T EBER L T), a
director and financial controller of Shenzhen Petrochemical Group Co., Ltd., a
director and financial controller of Shenzhen Health Mineral Water Co., Ltd., a
director of Shenzhen Tellus (Group) Company Limited (200025.SZ), and was an
independent director of Shenzhen Shenxin Taifeng Group Co., Ltd. (000034.S2)
during the period from May 2009 to February 2014. At present, Mr. LIU is also
a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.
(2318.HK). Mr. LIU has over 30 years of experience in finance and accounting
management.
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Dr. WU Jiesi
AV Y N L

Non-executive Director

FNTESR

Dr. WU Jiesi, aged 65, a Non-executive Director since 11 May 2006. Dr. WU
holds a doctorate degree in Economics and conducted post-doctorate research
work in theoretical economics at The Nankai University in the PRC and was
conferred a professorship qualification by The Nankai University in 2001. Dr.
WU served in various positions in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from
1984 to 1995 and served as the president of the Shenzhen Branch. From 1995
to 1998, he served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal Government.
From 1998 to 2000, he served as the assistant to the Governor of Guangdong
Province.

Dr. WU served as the chairman and honorary president of Guangdong Investment
Limited (270.HK), the director and honorary president of Guangdong Tannery
Limited (1058.HK), an executive director of Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(754.HK), an independent non-executive director of Yingli Green Energy Holding
Company Limited (NYSE:YGE) and China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (3968.HK),
respectively, a non-executive director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (855.
HK), an executive director, a non-executive director and vice chairman of China
Aoyuan Property Group Limited (3883.HK), and an independent director of China
Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. (600999.SH). At present, Dr. WU is a non-executive
director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (886.HK), an independent director
of China Life Franklin Asset Management Co., Ltd, and an independent non-
executive director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (966.HK),
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (392.HK), Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited and China CITIC Bank International Limited respectively. Dr.
WU has rich experience in finance and corporate management.
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Mr. LIU Shichao
B8 e 2k

Non-executive Director

FRTEST

Mr. LIU Shichao, aged 45, a Non-executive Director since 18 January 2017.
He is a director and the chief financial officer of Shum Yip Group Limited and a
director of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from Zhongnan
University of Finance and Economics (now known as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law) majoring in accountancy. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
economics and the title of senior accountant. Mr. LIU was the deputy head of
statistics and assessment (budget finance) department and the deputy head of the
second division of enterprise department of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government.
Mr. LIU was a director and the chief financial officer of Shenzhen Energy Group
Co. Ltd. (000027.SZ). He is currently also a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd
(000014.S2), a director of Kashi City Shenzhen Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. (BRI ERREBRAF), a director of Shenzhen United Assets and
Equity Exchange Co., Ltd. (#ITEEEER ZFRMHER2AF) and a director
of China Resources SZITIC Investment Co. Ltd. (R ZEBEZZREBFEAF). M.
LIU has considerable working experience in financial management and financial
auditing.
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Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael

Independent
Non-executive Director
BUFNTES

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 67, an Independent Non-executive
Director since 9 October 2002. He was formerly the deputy chairman of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and a commissioner in the Strategy & Development
Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission. Prior to that, he
was the deputy chairman, chief operating officer and executive director and
responsible for the Intermediaries Division, comprising the Licensing and
Intermediaries Supervision Departments of the Securities and Futures Commission
until 31 December 1997. In addition, Mr. WU also served as an independent non-
executive director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (188.HK), an
independent non-executive director and chairman of Cypress Jade Agricultura
Holdings Limited (renamed as China Finance Investment Holdings Ltd.) (875.HK)
and an executive director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd. (536.HK).

REEEAE Nttt BZEZ-FHANBRY
TBUENTES FEILEEARSEEER
kA BAEFEEEEZESRERRERECZE - 1
W2Hl - BAEHFREEERERZE RN ERE
RE (BREERRPNERERDS) 287 28
BERATEEEE-NANEETZA=+—H It
Oh - REETIE BIERES S RIZRAR L F(188.HK)
ZEUFHTEE  HIEREERERAR CREAT
BEREESEERRAF) @BHNZ BUFERTES
ZIRLEIBETESHAERAFBIBH) HITES -
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Mr. LI Wai Keung
R

NI

Independent
Non-executive Director

BUFNTES

Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 60, an Independent Non-executive Director since 27
September 2004. Mr. LI graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds
a master’s degree in Business Administration from The University of East Asia.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LI had worked
for Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK). He was also an
independent non-executive director of Sun Century Group Limited (1383.HK).
Mr. LI is currently a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited
(270.HK) and an executive director and financial controller of GDH Limited, an
executive director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (124.HK), an independent non-executive
director of Hans Energy Company Limited (554.HK) and China South City Holdings
Limited (1668.HK), and a director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group) Company
Limited (000089.SZ). In addition, he is appointed as the chairman of the Council
of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited on 26 October 2015, and he is
also a management accounting advisor of the Ministry of Finance, PRC, the vice
chairman of the Financial and Accounting Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong
Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, and the president of Hong Kong Business
Accountants Association Limited.

ZfERGA Nt B-TENFAA-TLHER
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Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David

Independent
Non-executive Director
BUFNTES

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David BBS, JP, aged 59, an Independent Non-
executive Director since 13 June 2013. Dr. WONG received a doctorate degree
in Economics from the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. WONG has extensive
experience in manufacturing, direct investment and international trade. Dr.
WONG is active in public service. He is a Hong Kong deputy of the 12th National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China (B +=E2BARKREA
). He is also the chairman of the Land and Development Advisory Committee,
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and the Protection of Wages
on Insolvency Fund Board. Dr. WONG was appointed as a Justice of Peace (JP)
in 2010 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2012 for his valuable
contribution to the society.

Dr. WONG is currently an independent non-executive director of Huayi Tencent
Entertainment Company Limited (formerly known as China Jiuhao Health Industry
Corporation Limited) (419.HK), Concord New Energy Group Limited (formerly
known as China Windpower Group Limited) (182.HK), Redco Properties Group
Limited (1622.HK), Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (formerly known as Reorient
Group Limited) (376.HK), and Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (934.HK), which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

HREMEE(BBS, P) ATAE BZT—ZFKX
ATZHREEBIIENTES - FR—NN\LFE
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R-Z—=—F =ETERRRKHESZERS) UK
BREEHEELZEEER -
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Mr. WANG Minyuan
EHELA

Mr. WANG Minyuan, aged 57, engineer, is currently a Vice President of the
Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr. WANG joined the Group in August
2012. Prior to this, Mr. WANG had served successively as a deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Metro Group Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Expressway Co., Ltd.
He holds a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from The Zhejiang University.

EEEE - B+ TR REARA XX
EEAERQFEAE - TRER-_T——F/\AMA
AERE - EUt A TRERERIITHESEER
RARFRYTREABFEAR D AR ALE - B
EMIRBIATIRIBELEM - RETRRE

He has over thirty years of extensive experience in engineering design and ~ FEBRLOCEEHSENEN=TF 2 YE THEK
construction and corporate management. & o

Mr. LIANG Kaiping

Mr. LIANG Kaiping, aged 58, is currently a Vice President of the Company, BEEELE B N\m BAEARRAR - FEEEAR

Shum Yip Group Ltd. and Shum Yip Holdings Co., Ltd.. He graduated from The
Wuhan University, holding a master’s degree in history. He joined the Group
since 2000. Prior to this, he was the director and president of Shenzhen Futian
Investment and Development Co., a general manager of Shenzhen Futian Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd., and an associate supervisor of Office of Futian
District Committee of Shenzhen. Mr. LIANG has over thirty years of experience in
corporate management.

Mr. DONG Fang
Wi

RERAR (RE) BRAAEEE - REFNHEX
2 REELBRIEM - RN _TTTFNALE
Mo ik za HEERYDRARERRAAES
Fay  AmERFLERELRABLE - Bl
BHRZBAZRITAFRU - RANARLXEES
NTEAR=TFZER -

Mr. DONG Fang, aged 44, is currently a Vice President of the Company, Shum
Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from
The Hunan University with a master’s degree and a senior engineer qualification.
He joined the Group since 2006 and served as a general manager of the real
estate department and investment department of the Company, and a deputy
general manager of Huizhou Canton River Expressway Co., Ltd.. Prior to this, he
used to work in the Transport Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. Mr. DONG
is currently the non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.
HK). He has extensive experience in corporate management, property investment
and operation management.

A Wl REARE - REREERA
ARARFE (RE) ARAFEAE - REXRHAFAK
2 BERIZURSRIRMER - RR_FTTRX
FMARKE BERRAMMEDELE REHFE
KE BMEANREREBRAREMGLE - il
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Dr. DAI Jingming
SR e

Dr. DAI Jingming, aged 52, is currently the General Manager of Planning
and Finance Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group Ltd.. Dr. DAI
graduated from The Faculty of Agricultural Mechanical Engineering of China
Huazhong Agricultural University with a bachelor of engineering degree in 1986
and from The Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with a master degree
in economics in 1992, He also obtained his Ph.D. degree in economics from
The China Ministry of Finance Institute of Fiscal Science in 1998. He is currently
an accountant. Dr. DAI joined the Group since 1998 and held a position as
general manager of administrative office department, audit department and risk
management department respectively. Prior to this, he used to work in Hubei
Province Agricultural Engineering Head Limited and Wuhan City Branch of the
Agricultural Bank of China. Dr. DAl is currently a non-executive director of Coastal
Greenland Limited (1124.HK). Dr. DAI possesses extensive professional knowledge
and experience in corporate finance, investment and financing management.

Mr. LU Jigiang
e i e A

WEMIEL I+ R REARARAZEEAR
DA M BEHALE - FHLR-NNARFERR
THEFREASRERME  BISTEN —N
N_FEENPEREAE  BEESRIEN ¥
R ANNFREERTE BT A ERERT - &
KESELEM - BRGHED - BELR-ANANEF
MAKREE  GHREERAE  FH ERERE
HRLIE - 2B WEEBAILE REEMAE
ARRPERERTHEN AT - BELREAEK
EXEBRAR(124H)ZFATES - BELREE
BBRRBEAER ARG YENERMAMEER -

Mr. LU Jiqiang, aged 46, is currently the General Manager of the Board
Secretariat and Chief Legal Officer of the Group. He holds a master’s degree of
Civil and Commercial Law from Law School of The Peking University. Presently,
he is a PRC Lawyer and arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission (CIETAC), Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration, and
Shanghai International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission. He joined
the Group since 2003. Prior to this, he worked in China Merchants Group. Mr.
LU is currently a non-executive director of Coastal Greenland Limited (1124.HK).
Mr. LU has extensive experience in corporate operation management, law affairs,
compliance and risk management control.

Mr. ZHU Guoqgiang
oR 1 58 6 A

PEBWEL  MHAR RAEASEEEENERE
REREREBRE - RABULRAEEERREE
BLEU - RATERMETEERLEEIHEE
B (CIETAC) - RYIBER A ES - LEEREEE S
HZEEMHE - RR-_ZZ=FMALKE - KLt
ZH REBRNARREE  BEAERTAERER
EBERDA124H)ZIFFMTES - BAERERER
B ARER  ARKERESTAASELR

Mr. ZHU Guoqiang, aged 43, is currently the General Manager of Capital
Market Department of the Company. He obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology. He joined
the Group since 2004, and held positions as general manager of investment
department and strategic management department of the Company. Prior to
this, he worked in Shenzhen Construction Investment Holdings Ltd.. Mr. ZHU is
familiar with the real estate market and property development process and has
maintained good communication with investors.

KBRS =5 REARREREE HRL
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GCORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) strongly believes that good
corporate governance is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) throughout the year 2016, except for code provision E.1.2 that
our Chairman, Dr. LU Hua was not able to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 2 June 2016 due to other business commitment. Our
President, Mr. HUANG Wei chaired the meeting and, together with the chairman
of the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee and
other directors, were present to answer the shareholders’ questions.

T |

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices under continual
review to ensure their consistent application and to improve our practices having
regard to the latest developments including any new amendment to the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, supervising and evaluating
business and financial performance of the Company, determining appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances and
ensuring operational efficiency and effectiveness by establishing a comprehensive
corporate governance framework with appropriate risk control measures and
aiming to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated certain functions to respective committees, including
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the
details of the responsibilities, membership and activities during the year of
each of them are set out in the section headed “Board Committees” below.
These Board committees assist the Board to discharge its duties while the
responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and business management are
delegated to the executive directors and senior management. Matters specifically
reserved to the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant changes in corporate structure, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments, material acquisition and disposal of assets, selection of directors,
changes to remuneration policy for directors and senior management, terms of
reference of board committees, as well as major corporate policies.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the conduct of the
business and development of the Company, including reports on significant
matters. Besides, all Board members are provided with monthly management
updates which contain periodic financials with summaries of key events, outlook
and business related matters of the Group. Should independent professional
advice be considered necessary by the directors, such kind of services would be
made available to the directors upon request.

The Company has arranged Directors & Officers Liability and Company
Reimbursement Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of legal
proceedings and other claims against them arising from their office and execution
of their powers, duties and responsibilities.

in W

HHEE

R Rt

EZQHRIFENEET  ABRIEARAIMBERE
RBE  EERFHERRNEBEMBRE - BEE
ARARBEANAELEE ARANABAR RS
MEXERRERGEEEORBEGER - BRE
BEOMEIME  BORARERREE

%ﬂm

ETeRETRRERETHRZES  BRERZA
€ REZBELFHZEE RFZEERARN
FAZEE KEFNNREPHBIENTXEFER
el -H RFEFZECHPEFERTRME
MATESNRREEABRERREEAREER
A% - BERBTEZTSRENEELRMLENBR
xR BREHR RERBNEAED  HF IBR
B BEAMBLLEEE BEET EZLAME
EEFHBRNEY EXZEeRREENRTE
BERR

MEESSREDAERNELRERERE  Ta
BEEBALTLBELERERN2EARNEMNE
£ BREAFEOBRE - W 2REZEKEN
ERHESBARHERES  NAHALREZERH
KERRERZEE ARREBGHBEZSEZRE M
EZRRBLVESTBUSRERE  ZBREKE
EXR{TES -

ARFEREERSRBERABBRATEES
%iﬁiﬁﬁﬁimiﬁﬁr&HM%1ﬁ&%§$
%D!EJA&HE{Z%/\EE& T%ﬁfﬁ’{ AA

48



Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A 7

Annual Report 2016 =& — < EF iR

Corporate Governance Report

* % "

Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and five non-executive
directors of whom three are independent non-executive directors. Our
independent non-executive directors constitute not less than one-third and
non-executive directors constitute more than half of the Board.

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung, our independent non-executive
directors, have served the Board for more than nine years. The Board considers
that they have continued to exercise independent judgment on the matters of the
Group and there is no evidence that length of tenure is having an adverse impact
on their independence. The Board therefore considers that Mr. WU Wai Chung,
Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung remain independent, notwithstanding the length of
their tenure.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the criterion set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

All directors, including the non-executive directors, have a specific term of
appointment which is not more than three years. Each director has entered
into an appointment letter with the Company and pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company, every director, including the non-executive directors,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
One-third of the directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office at each annual general
meeting and eligible for re-election by shareholders. Also, any director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy shall retire at the next general meeting of the Company
and be eligible for re-election by shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed
for the re-election of each director.

The Board members do not have any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Brief biographical particulars of the
directors are set out from pages 35 to 45 of this annual report.
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Chairman of the Board and President

The roles of Chairman of the Board are performed by Dr. LU Hua, whereas the
roles of President are performed by Mr. HUANG Wei. The Chairman of the Board
is responsible for leading the Board to formulate good corporate governance
practices and procedures together with the directors, determine the strategic
directions, business plans and investment proposals of the Company, assess
its performance and supervise the business affairs of the management in
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board, whereas the President is responsible for
overseeing overall operations of the Company and ensuring the implementation of
plans efficiently.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of
the Company and to discuss future strategy. Four regular Board meetings and
two special Board meetings were held in 2016. At the Board meetings, the Board
reviewed significant matters including the Company’s business development,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and half-year report
and discloseable and connected transactions. At least fourteen days’ notice of
a regular Board meeting was given to all directors who were provided with an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and the
accompanying board papers were sent to Directors at least three days before
the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft and final versions of minutes of
each Board meeting were circulated to directors for their comment and record
respectively. In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board
also held a separate meeting with non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors without executive directors present on an annual basis.
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Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and ~— #HG % - HFH R B G &k BT i R st 8k
seneral Meetings
The attendance record of each director at Board meetings, Board committee R -ZT—AF EEEHFEEe S EELEE

meetings and general meetings in 2016 is set out below: FRMREREHDEHIINT
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee i Committee General General
Meeting Meeting [ l\/leeting Meeting Meeting
BRE E e [P
, % % EFAE  BRIAE
No. of meetings held BIINSENRE 6 4 1 1 1 1
Executive Directors HITES
LU Hua (Chairman) = (L) 3/6 - 1/1 - 0/1 1/1
HUANG Wei (President) =& (#%) 5/6 - - - 11 11
MOU Yong £H 3/6 - - - 11 1/1
LIU Chong 2= 5/6 - - - 11 11
Non-executive Directors FHITES
WU Jiesi RiER 4/6 - - - 0/ 17
HUANG Yige HEO 6/6 = = - 11 11
LIU Shichao® 2t Re - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive B I TES
Directors
WU Wai Chung Michael RizE 5/6 4/4 - 1 17 1
LI Wai Keung TR 6/6 4/4 1/1 11 11 11
WONG Yau Kar David BERE 6/6 4/4 11 11 11 01
1. Resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 18 January 2017. 1. R-ZF—tF AT N\ABEIFRTES -
2. Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 18 January 2017. 2. RIZ—+HF-A+N\REZERIFNTES -
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BRI S

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of ~ EFEERM EMMAM S+ AAH LD RTAESE
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) ~ TTEFHX 5 ZIRETR (FETR]]) - ERARFE
as the code of conduct of the Company for dealing in securities of the Company ~ FETTEFRHMTREM - EALBEFFHET
by the directors. Having made specific enquiry to all the directors, all directors ~ 2k - 2REZORR - RENBEAFEA-—BEE
confirmed that throughout the year, they had complied with the required standard ~ TIRETRIFMEORERE - f5h EZSTHCHRSA
set out in the Model Code. In addition, the Board has also adopted the principles ~ REFRIHIIMRAI R RAEAEAAREREARA
and rules of the Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees in ~ ZHIEEES

respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS" CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director will be provided with necessary induction
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under relevant statutes,
laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an on-going process, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company also updates directors on any latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

In 2016, the Company had arranged an in-house directors’ training on topic
under the Listing Rules. The Company had also arranged a site visit to the
Company’s property development projects in Shenzhen, the PRC for the directors.

A summary of the training records (including participation in site visit) reported by
the directors for year 2016 is set out as follow:

RSB R A

ARZENESHERREELGENABIEINER - LA
HEREGADNANEEREHU LB - %52
RARERTHEEREEN TR -

EXRJIBRERR  ARRBBAAER2ERE
EXUR NBRMEMEMB NG - ARAFAN
By A B FHR gt B WA R R E A8 A B E T &
FREN MERERIBAELHURHEOEERTER

R °

R-Z-—RF ARFCH EMRABETIELHA
BEZEY - ARBANLHESEHRERARAMR
RERIINYEFEIAR -

EZE2HR_T-AFEMNEIICE (BRE2NELE
) BRI

Type of training covered*

PR &I o) R R

LU Hua B 12,3
HUANG Wei &fE 12,3
MOU Yong 25 12,3
LIU Chong EES 12,3
WU Jiesi RER 1,2,3
HUANG Yige' B 1,2,3
LIU Shichao? Bt -
WU Wai Chung Michael RIZE 12,3
LI Wai Keung X 12,3
WONG Yau Kar David ARE 12,3

#: #:

1. Participation in briefings/training seminars/conferences/courses/workshops on subjects 1. Z2NMEHBEEEEMT - 0EESR  FERER B

relating to directors’ duties, corporate governance, legal and regulatory, finance and
accounting, economic and industry specify matters etc.

2. Reading materials/regulatory updates/management monthly updates

3. Site visit
Notes:
1. Resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 18 January 2017

2. Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 18 January 2017

BEE  BEBEARTERETEESIENEN
&/ EMEE g% RE/HEE

2. BEMH EEEHEN EEESAEMEH

3. EihEXR

1. RIZB—tF-A+/\BREHFNTES
2. RIZ—tHF-A+N\BEZERFNTES
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its functions. The
respective roles, responsibilities and activities of each Board committee are set
out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, who
are all equipped with commercial and financial skills and experiences required for
understanding of accounting information. It is chaired by Mr. LI Wai Keung and
other members are Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, making recommendations on the appointment of external auditor
and monitoring the effectiveness of external audit, supervision of internal audit
and oversight of the integrity of financial information and the financial reporting
system, overseeing internal audit, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and ensuring such functions are adequately resourced. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

The Audit Committee performed the following in 2016:

Financial reporting
—  Reviewed the 2015 annual financial statements, annual report and results
announcement and recommended the same to the Board for approval :

—  Reviewed the 2016 half-year financial statements, half-year report and
results announcement and recommended the same to the Board for
approval;

7 W
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FENAL  BELEDHIIWT :

FEEFZ

EREET
BERRESH-ABUFNTETAN  REDAR

TREAERTRNAZEMBRORER - BRZ
i?ﬁ?&ﬁ%é%&{f Hit B AREREE
KEREEL -

ﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ ERZESAEER (BTRRN) &

AEEINE A - BB AR 2 B #ﬂm
%%J&Wgﬁﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ%,m%ﬂﬁ
BARRMARET - HMEE&W%?&%Mu&
ERZSVHRARHER -BERZEENRBELES
XARAREBURBERARIMERATE ([
Fr ) MU NEE] -

BRZBER T NFLETATIE:
AFEER
%@_7 TEFRMBHRE  FHRERXER

O UVEEERSIE

— BHIZ-AFLFEUERER FFERER
EENE TEREEQIE

53



Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF A R 7

Annual Report 2016 =& — < EF R

Corporate Governance Report

i K SR RE

External audit and interim review

—  Reviewed report submitted by external auditor on their statutory audit of the
2015 annual financial statements and their independent review of the 2016
half-year financial statements;

—  Reviewed and discussed the observations and recommendations on the
financial reporting and control matters set out in the 2015 management
letter submitted by external auditor;

—  Reviewed the representation letter issued by management to external
auditor in connection with their audit of the 2015 financial statements;

—  Reviewed with the external auditor their plan for statutory audit of the 2016
annual financial statements, including the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations.

Risk management, internal control and internal audit
—  Reviewed the evaluation report on internal control and risk management
systems for year 2015 issued by the risk management department;

—  Reviewed with the risk management department on the risk management
and internal control systems and their effectiveness, the overall risk
management, internal control and internal audit work progress and findings,
and the adequacy of resources and staffing for such functions.

In the meeting held on 27 March 2017, the Audit Committee reviewed and
approved the 2016 annual financial statements, annual report and results
announcement and, and considered reports from the external auditor. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the evaluation report on internal control and risk
management systems for year 2016 issued by the risk management department.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in
the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

S BB R AR R 5T
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and other members are Mr. LI
Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior management according to its
terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters of non-executive
directors, the setting up of adequate and transparent procedures for setting such
remuneration. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

No director or any of his associates is allowed to determine their own
remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall consider
factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of directors, employment
conditions of other positions within the Group and whether their remuneration are
performance-related.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the director fees
of non-executive directors and the remuneration of executive directors and
other incentive rewards such as grant of share options to directors and
senior management. In January 2017, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendation to the Board for the remuneration in respect of the appointment
of Mr. LIU Shichao as non-executive director.

The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

7 W
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HMZHE
FHZEEm-—ABUFATEFMAN - FHEES
HERSBLECER HAKBERFRBLARR
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R R AEH -
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Number of Individuals

Remuneration Bands A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/8 7T 21,500,000 7T 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 £ 2,000,000/8 7T 3
HK$2,000,001 or above 2,000,00178 T8k A £ -
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration and
the five highest paid employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two of them are
independent non-executive directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
and other members are Dr. LU Hua and Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to determine the policy for
the nomination of directors, to set out the nomination procedures and criteria to
select and recommend candidates for directorship. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year 2016, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and opined that it is adequate for independent
and effective decision making. The Nomination Committee also reviewed and
recommended to the Board in relation to the re-election of the retiring directors
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2016. The
Nomination Committee also assessed the independency of the independent
non-executive directors.

In January 2017, the Nomination Committee reviewed and recommended to
the Board in relation to the appointment of Mr. LIU Shichao as non-executive
director. All appointments of directors are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. In assessing potential candidates for the Board, the Nomination
Committee considers the diversity perspectives as set out in the paragraph
below. Notwithstanding the diversity perspectives, all appointments to the Board
are based on merit, having regard to the ability of candidates to complement
and expand the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for
decision.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set
out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board, a copy of which is available on the Company’s
website. The Board recognizes the benefits of a diverse Board with members
possessing a balance of skills, experience and expertise which complement to
the business success of the Group, and seeks increasing diversity at Board level
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for, and has performed during the year, the following
corporate governance duties:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e {0 review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management;

e o review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL Ja A BB g

Responsibility Hit

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems EE&BHREMEERNSERZFEE  BEIR
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems. Management is responsible for = ZEHENERE  MERBRIEE R LRHTA
designing and implementing an internal control system to manage the risks to the ~ HELXHEUAZFARENEEQAIEKHNEAR - &5
Company to the maximum extent, in order to identify and manage these risks so Bl FE 12 5 LL @R ’féﬁﬁTMa&T)ﬂ PEIE - &7 4% -
as to understand, reduce, mitigate, divert or avoid these risks. The Board hereby ~ HEBHBHELEK - EEE %Eﬁtfﬂ“é&i? me

explains that the systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk B2 M IEER KH iﬁk%fﬁ EReEp)E R
of failure to meet business objectives, and only to provide reasonable, but not ?fﬂ\@ﬁéﬁﬁ’\]%E@LITE%’FWAQIEW#%@;W@
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. IREE ©
Risk Management Structure R B A
Board Oversight EZgEE
Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board REXEFSTENFLEZSS
e FEnsure that an appropriate and effective risk management framework is . ’EE%EIE SRR — S BN A MR
established and maintained by the Group. REBLE -
e Oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of o EEERELCRREBEBMRI  BIK
the risk management framework. ERFEMIE-
e Oversee management in their risk mitigation efforts. o EREHERRMAEIENIE-
Risk Management, Reporting and Communication RRER RERERE
Risk Management Department B
e Being the specialized risk management department, is responsible for o AEREEIHIM EEEEEZERRE
the construction and operation of the comprehensive risk management BREZERESENEETIHE: 8E B
system of the Group; guide and supervise the overall risk management HpZHBMEEMBCEREZARRE
of other departments and the respective enterprises which they belong Tieo
to.
e  Risk management: Regularly conduct systematic risk evaluation and o EREE: FHETRGRRTE HEX
carry out prior risk audit to major businesses. ERETERRRERZ o
e Internal control: inspect, evaluate and optimize the implementation of o REEG : BE - FFEME(CAEGERE
internal control system, to avoid the risk of implementation. TIER - RERT ERER -
e Internal audit; carry out multi-level audit, to implement the risk of o AT : HEZENNEFIE ZEE
rectification, prevention and operation of audit. SRR - hEsERR -
e  Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management o BREVEBERN - ARBREEERBHNK
framework has been conducted at least annually and provide such e 1%1&%’?%% REESELHHE
confirmation to the Board through the Audit Committee. o
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Performing Daily Risk and Monitoring Responsibility
Functional Departments, Risk Management Departments of
Subsidiaries and Individuals

o Responsible for carrying out risk management procedures and internal
control measures in their daily operations.

° Regularly review the risk profile and report to the risk management
department and management on the risks within their respective
operating and functional areas.

i
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Risk Management Process

The Company adopts an integrated “bottom-up” and “top-down” risk review
process, requiring the heads of functional departments and business units of the
Company to participate in identifying operational risks and incorporate them into
various business and decision-making processes, including strategy formulation,
business development, business planning, capital allocation, investment decisions,
internal controls and daily operations, to enable

(1)  Comprehensive identification and prioritisation of all significant risks
throughout the Group,

(2)  Escalation of significant risks at the right managerial level,

(3)  Effective risk dialogue among the management.

Bottom-up Process

° Business units and functional departments identify, evaluate, propose
and implement risk management solutions for specific operations within
their terms of reference; and report annually to the risk management
department of the Company on significant risks identified during the risk
management process.

o The departments of the Company are responsible for inspecting their
own business processes, collecting and sorting out the internal and
external risk initial information within their scope of functions extensively
and continuously. The risk management department regularly screens,
abstracts, compares, classifies and combines the initial risk information
collected by each department and draws the risk coordinates map based
on the risk evaluation results of each department and preliminarily
determines the management priority of various risk of the Company,
formulates risk management strategies, and proposes and implements
of risk management solutions.
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The risk management department of the Company, through aggregation,
filtering and prioritising processes as well as consultation process,
compiles a corporate annual work report on comprehensive risks and an
evaluation report on internal control and risk management systems.

The risk management department of the Company reports their works to
the Audit Committee annually and submits Evaluation Report on Internal
Control and Risk Management Systems to the Audit Committee and the
Board for their review.

Top-down Process

The Audit Committee examines the new-born risks or significant
strategic risks that may have a significant impact on the Company in
the long run, and reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company.

In addition to the risk evaluation function, the management from the
functional departments is responsible for identifying and evaluating
the financial and other risks in different areas of the Group from the
aspects such as investment auditing and strategic planning, financial
management and legal compliance respectively, and forms a normalized
mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly carry out systematic
significant risk evaluation, so as to achieve dynamic management for
significant risks.

A normalized mechanism for risk evaluation has been formed, which
regularly carries out systematic significant risk evaluation, to identify,
evaluate and analyze all kinds of existing or potential risks in current
business development, and timely tracks and monitors the moving trend
of significant risks, control the progress and effectiveness, so as to
achieve dynamic management for significant risks.

Prior comprehensive risk evaluation and audit is required to be
conducted for significant business such as tender, bidding and listing of
land, equity acquisition, joint venture and partnership etc., in order to
achieve such an operating mechanism that the audit opinions without
prior risk evaluation will not be submitted to meetings for approval, thus
the significant business risks has been effectively controlled.

Annual review is performed to strengthen the systematic and
standardized construction for internal audit.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system of the Company is based on the principles under the
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission).
The internal control and risk management systems are seriously evaluated and
reviewed annually by the risk management department of the Company, the scope
of which covering five aspects such as control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring measures and information and communication in
order to assess whether the internal control and risk management systems is
sound, appropriate, effective and sufficient. The risk management department
annually forms an evaluation report on internal control and risk management
systems.

Principal Policies and Measures of Internal Control
Control Environment

The Company has established a code of discipline of corporate
governance policy, human resource management policy, regulatory
business operation and governance, as well as regular review and
refresher training on key ethical practices.

The Company has compiled the human resource compilation system.
Through implementation of the management guidance manual, the
human resource concepts, policies, systems get further unified and
standardized, and the policy get more transparent; in achieving the
corporate objectives of the Company, the accountability has been
implemented for each employee as to the internal control responsibility.

Risk Assessment

The risk management functional department identifies and assesses the
systemic risks faced by the Group by regular risk inspection; It controls
the risk situation of subsidiaries through regular risk management
reporting system of subsidiaries and the risk assessment and control
for significant projects and business, and identifies and assesses the
changes that may have a significant impact on the internal control
system.

In addition to the risk management functions, the relevant functional
departments of the Company are responsible for identifying and
assessing financial and other risks in different areas of the Company
from the aspects such as strategy planning and investment auditing,
financial management and legal compliance.

Compile a comprehensive risk management report and submit it to the
Audit Committee for consideration and timely take corresponding risk
management measures.
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Ensure that policies are implemented effectively through the
development of policies with specific requirements and formulation of
procedures.

Key control systems and processes, including budget and cost control,
submitting management report, corporate policies and corporate daily
activities, for approval, review and division of duties through financial
reporting systems and processes. The internal control system of the
Company includes a mature organisational structure, a clear definition
for the duties and powers of each unit. The Company has established
policies and procedures for major business functions and business units.

The Company has formed a set of effective performance appraisal
mechanism through years of experience. In 2015, the Company
established and circulated the Administrative Rules on Supervision and
Management of Audit Rectification for the first time, which included
the completion of audit rectification into annual appraisal indicators
for related subsidiaries, and initially established a circular managerial
accountability mechanism of audit rectification.

Monitoring Measures

Continuously inspect compliance and conduct risk management and
internal control reviews.

The Board Secretariat and relevant functional departments are
responsible for the overall assessment and monitoring for the
established procedures to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
to monitor the compliance with applicable laws and other key provisions.

The internal audit is performed by the risk management department of
the Company, which is responsible for independent auditing towards risk
management and internal control.
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Information and Communication

o Implement, maintain and continuously develop business and information
management systems to support the business and operations of the
Company, including financial, information disclosure and collaborative
oversight.

° Disseminate corporate information in a timely manner through the
intranet of the Company, collaborative office systems and corporate
e-mail system.

o Establish the website of the Company and implement shareholder
communication policies to ensure that shareholders receive
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comprehensive, clear, transparent and timely information about the 8o
Company.
INTERNAL AUDITING i B
The risk management department is responsible for the internal audit of EREESMEEEBANTE:T  EREZUN(EE

the Group. It reviews the risks involved in daily operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries by using the audit plans and procedures set out in the
Comprehensive Risk Management Manual and the Interim Measures for
Internal Audit Management it established, and conducts regular post-evaluation
reviews on internal audit items to ensure the effectiveness of risk management
framework.

Each year, following the strategic plan of the Company and based on the
operational management needs and the annual work arrangement of the
Company, the risk management department determines the priorities of internal
audit work and formulates annual internal audit plans.

The annual internal audit plan shall include the following basic elements:

1) Annual work objectives of internal audit;

2)  The specific audit items to be implemented and the order in which they
should be implemented,;

3)  The audit resources allocated to each audit item
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According to the Interim Measures for Internal Audit Management, the items must &R (ABF TEERBETINE) - BRETETH

be audited shall include the following:

ERERETIEE:

Type of Audit Content
Hal A
Economic Responsibility Audit During the three years of term of office of the corporate management team, at least one internal
BT TR economic responsibility audit shall be performed
CEELMFIFARDE  FEETEMIREREEREESET
The departure of a leader of enterprise requires an economic responsibility audit
CEEEART  FEETRERES:
[tem Audit For significant investment projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
EEE EAREBE SIFAREETEDIRE

Post-Evaluation Audit
{ReHERRT

For on-going operating projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
SECEIEE BIFNFRETEDURER

After the investment projects are all completed, a comprehensive post-evaluation is required
towards to their operation and economic effectiveness

REER2MTKE - FEHEEENEENRFTETEANRTERT

In addition to the above, the risk management department will also conduct % Eiléh EBERHFTERELEREREN

specialized internal audit in respect of functional departments and subsidiaries,

AAEETHEEY - Bk ARSEF e £ B

having considered the actual operational and management situation, the work  EFRHIEK » FLSBALSPT BN ELESHET

focus of the year as well as the risks faced by the Group as assessed at the
beginning of each year, The risk management department conducts internal

EHARESTIE ETRRAREESURAMER
B ERCETIIEHETHRPESEE -

audit supervision towards following matters of the wholly-owned and controlled

enterprises of the Company:

The implementation of the relevant financial laws, regulations, rules and
regimes by the state, government and superior authorities;

The implementation of the operating guidelines, policies, rules and
regulations formulated by the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of
the Company;

The soundness, rationality, effectiveness and implementation of internal
control systems and regimes;

Financial revenue and expenditure, asset quality, operating performance
and other related economic activities;

The establishment and implementation of various operating plans, planned
budgets;

Important economic contracts, investment projects, mortgages loans or
provision of guarantees, infrastructure projects, etc.

BR BAMEREIEBHIEEMLER &
B RENBEOERRTER

FE2E  BREEHEOLLTH  BE &
EHIENERMTER
AEEFREMBEOREMNE - AEME AR
MEFTRER :
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EEREAR RERE  ERERRIEMRE
R ERTIRENEBEN
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REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL AND MAIN PROCEDURES TO ADDRESS
THE LACK OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Based on the above risk management and internal control systems, the risk
management department of the Company conducts regular review and evaluation
in accordance with three aspects of risk management, internal control and
internal audit, to identify the deficiencies of internal control and improve the
system process.

The risk management department establishes a work plan for the coming year in
the later part of every year, which sets out the objectives and scope of the audit.

Internal auditing includes the testing of the monitoring on the finance, operation
and compliance. The risk management department shall engage an external
accounting firm to issue an annual internal audit report, and the risk management
department shall, towards the deficiencies in monitoring raised by the accounting
firm, make rectification on the details of the audit disclosed by the internal audit
report and on the audit results of the department concerned.

Towards the identified deficiencies of internal control, the risk management
department communicates the issues with relevant functional departments
or subsidiaries in time, put forward measures of rectification and establish
corresponding policies after discussion with management, and circulate a notice
of rectification to the functional departments or subsidiaries, so as to urge
enterprises to complete the rectification within the prescribed time.

During this year, the implementation of the rectification towards enterprises
turned out good, and passed the second round of testing on internal control
conducted by the accounting firm.

The risk management department has not identified any significant deficiencies
of internal control in the internal control carried out during the year. Based on the
results of the audit and the feedback of management, the management believes
that the existing internal control system is still valid as a whole.
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REVIEW ON EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL IN 2016

The risk management department has predicted and analyzed the risks faced
by the operation and management of the Group in 2016. After assessment,
there are 3 major risks faced by the Group in 2016, namely resource security
risk, industrial structure risk and asset management risk. The risk management
department has put forward operational and responsive measures and strategies
towards these risks, and during the year, has simultaneously strengthened the
audit in advance for major business risks, carried out special risk research for
key projects, and monitored the changes in corporate risk profiles through regular
evaluation of financial risk warning indicators including solvency, asset operation
capability, profitability and capital operation capability.

During the year, the risk management department has conducted internal audit
and examination on rectification of audit opinions on the subordinate enterprises:

° Commenced specific audit of leasing of resource assets. By audit
classification method, specific audit was adopted comprehensively to the
work on leasing and management of resource assets during January 2015
to May 2016. For any flaw in establishment and implementation of leasing
management system found in certain companies, insufficient preparation
and implementation of instructive pricing range of leasing assets, default
of substantial rent payment of certain lessees, high vacancy rate of certain
properties, insufficient of leasing deposit and other problems, notifications
of rectification were issued and requested subordinate enterprises to rectify
within specified period.

° Completed rectification review of specific audit of bulk purchase. For any
problems found during specific audit of bulk purchase of last year, the
Company has issued notices of audit rectification at the beginning of the
year and strengthened its supervision over audit rectification. It also has
examined the implementation of rectifications of its subordinate enterprises
and strengthened its closed-loop management of audit rectification and
supervision.

° Commenced annual audit of internal control. For any general flaws in
internal control such as plenty of shell companies, fund precipitation in
fund management, no establishment of account for low-value consumables
and etc, found in annual audit of internal control of the Group by the
accountant, they were rectified one by one and all flaws in internal control
discovered during the year were rectified. Thus the accountant has issued
an unqualified audit report of internal control.
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During the year, the Audit Committee and the risk management department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system of the Company for
the year 2016, the scope of which including financial, operational and compliance
controls, as well as the progress of overall risk management and internal control.
The annual review has also taken into account the adequacy of the resources,
qualification and experience of staff in accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions of the Company; and the sufficiency in training courses
received by the staff and related budgets.

The Audit Committee and the Board have also reviewed the Evaluation Report
for Internal Control and Risk Management System for the Year 2016 issued by
the risk management department. The Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control system is effective and sufficient as a whole.

PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING INSIDE INFORMATION AND
INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES

The Company requires that any department or individual shall keep any
information which may constitute inside information in strict confidentiality and
shall not leak or report the contents without the prior approval of the Board. The
Board makes timely disclosure decision on the inside information (if necessary),
and the information disclosure of the inside information shall be in charge by the
office of the Board.

WHISTLEBLOWING

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy which provides employees with
reporting channels and guidance to raise concerns about possible improprieties
related to the Company, a copy of which is available on the Company’s website.
In 2016, the Board had not received any whistleblowing enquiry or complaint.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company, who has confirmed
his compliance with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Our primary corporate contact person is Ms. Edith Wong, our
General Counsel.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the preparation
of financial statements of each financial period which shall consistently adopt
suitable accounting policies and to comply with the accounting standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and to reflect the
financial position, the results during the period and cash flow of the Company in
a true and fair manner.

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young was engaged as the Company’s external auditor since 2000. As
the period that the Company has continuously engaged Ernst & Young as its
external auditor has exceeded the prescribed number of years according to the
relevant regulations issued by the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission regarding the
audit work on financial statements of state-owned enterprises in Shenzhen, the
PRC, Ernst & Young retired at the close of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 2 June 2016 (“2016 AGM”) and did not seek re-appointment.
KPMG was engaged in place of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external auditor
with effect from the close of the 2016 AGM.

During the year, the services provided by KPMG and the fees for such services
were as follows:

Statutory audit fees: HK$4,250,000 (2015: HK$4,250,000 (Ernst & Young))

Fees for other services (interim review and report on continuing connected
transactions): HK$1,000,000 (2015: HK$1,020,000 (Ernst & Young))

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication channel setting out
the dialogues that the Company are in place to promote effective communication
with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring shareholders are provided with timely
information about the Company and encouraging them to engage actively in
communication with the Company and to exercise their rights as shareholders in
an informed manner.
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The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a corporate website
(www.shenzheninvestment.com) where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual and interim reports to
shareholders, announcements, business development and operations, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public’s access.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
face-to-face communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each issue at the general meetings.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business activities to
persons with legitimate interests and respond to their questions. We meet with
investors on a regular basis to update them on our business progress and
strategy. In addition, we endeavor to share both financial and non-financial
information that is relevant and material, for instance, we publish unaudited
contracted sales performance voluntarily on a monthly basis, and respond
promptly to enquiries arising from general public and individual shareholders.
However, in all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information is
disclosed to selected parties.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “C0O”), the
Listing Rules, and the articles of association of the Company as amended from
time to time, shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) may call general
meeting, put forward proposals at annual general meetings (*AGM”) and direct
enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following procedures:

—  Convening of General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may request the directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the
CO.

In accordance with Section 566 of the CO, the directors are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
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moved at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention
to the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science
Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); and must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the
directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become
subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting.

—  Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholders are requested to follow the
requirements and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution
if it has received requests to do so from (a) the Shareholders representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM of the Company to which the requests relate;
or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights to vote on the resolution at
the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Company
Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in electronic
form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under
Section 615 of the CO to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at
the Company’s own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the
AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same
time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director can be found on the website of the Company headed “Investor Relations”
under the “Corporate Information” section.
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Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing through the Board
Secretariat at the below contact details:

Address: 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre
No. 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email:  ir@shumyip.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2723 8113
Fax: (852) 2723 2263

Share registration related matters

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration,
change of name or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants, the
Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at the
below contact details:

Address: Level 22 Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Email:  is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2861 1465
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in presenting to
shareholders their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group consist of property development for sale,
property management and property investments for rental income. The property
development process is vertically integrated from land acquisition, project
planning, material sourcing, construction and project management through to
sales and marketing to ensure high standards in every aspect. The Group’s
professional property management team manages a variety of types of properties
including government offices, office buildings, residential estates, villas and
science and technology parks mainly located in Pearl River and Yangtze River
deltas as well as the central region. Our investment property portfolio includes
commercial, residential and industrial buildings and car parking bays, which are
located mainly in Shenzhen. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are set out in note 19, note 21 and
note 20 to the financial statements, respectively. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the financial
position of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 103 to 241.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK10.00 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK13.00 cents per share)
and a special dividend of HK5.00 cents per share (2015: nil), which subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, are payable on or about Friday, 18 August 2017 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 16 June
2017. Together with the interim dividend of HK7.00 cents per share which was
paid on 18 November 2016, the total dividend for the year ended 31 December
2016 will amount to HK22.00 cents per share (2015: HK16.00 cents per share).

=" :
7 OR T I

FATES (£2) RADBRESAEIRE T
—AE+Z A=+ AR FRRAERGAH
B -

FEEH
AEETIEXBRERENEARLE NEER
EMERENRBES KA - WERE R ARER
EEEAEBRE LB EERE  WER
B IRER REEBRUEMSEH  NEREGE
REOYEIRKE - AGECEXNEEEBKRER
SRELNE  BRIENMERK=A R=ANP
HERNBAKE 578 £ E  AIERRK
Bl - &TW&ﬁ%%ﬁ a%IE“%FWWWﬁ
% FERTIEREAREES - ATEWER
AM”T&%%QTZE&%%#F”%%FW?@

RETEE19 - MsE21 BP0 N AEBETBERK
ZHETETMEAE

EE KB

AERHZE T R"F+_A=Z+—HIEFEZRF

RARREREERZ B 2 BN E N E103E241
BZABHRRA -

EEQEZRN-_T—tENATNA (EHH) kAl
&mm_i +EXNATAB (EHH) LHALQA
BRAMZBER  KEHEZ-ZT—~"F+-A=1—
AEFEZRBBRESE0.008I (ZE—1F: &
FR13.007 L) K5 BIR% B &AR5.008 L (ZF—H%F -
T EASBRERARAIEERFAEFTAS L4k
BRENZZE—AF+—A+N\BEREZTBRES
BB7.007%810 - BE=—T—A~"F+-A=+—HLEFEZ
BB BEAFR2.008 (Z2—1F © Hk16.004
) -

72



Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A 7

Annual Report 2016 =& — < EF iR

Directors’ Report

RO W

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” respectively from pages 10 to 17 and pages 20 to 34 of this
annual report and the paragraphs below.

Law and Regulations

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property management
and property investment in the PRC and is therefore subject to the relevant
laws and regulations of the PRC, including but not limited to, constitution,
company law, contract law, law of state-owned assets of enterprises, law on
land management, city immovable administration law, labor contract law, etc..
In addition, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited apply to the Company. The Company attaches great
importance to legal compliance, and carries out all the business activities in
compliance with the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations.

Key Risk Factors

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial conditions,
operational results or growth prospects leading to a divergence from expected or
historical results. The following paragraphs list out the key risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below, and there may be other
risks which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could become material in the future.

Macroeconomic Risks

The overall economic downturn and capital market risk. The downside systematic
risk in China’s economic transformation and the risk of the shrinking wealth
effect caused by fluctuating capital market will bring all kinds of uncertainty to
the Group’s operating environment.

Industry Risks

There is a downside risk in the real estate market in China, in particular the real
estate market in Shenzhen. The income from property business accounted for
approximately 80% of the Group’s total operating income, and in the Group’s
income from real estate sales, the income from the real estate sales in Shenzhen
has a higher proportion. Therefore, if there is a downside risk in the real estate
market, especially the real estate market in Shenzhen, this will have an effect on
the Group’s sales revenue and profitability.
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Exchange Rate Risks

There is a downside risk in Renminbi exchange rate. The Group’s main assets
are located in mainland China while the Group’s reporting currency is Hong Kong
dollar. The decrease in Renminbi exchange rate can cause the depreciation of the
Group’s assets and earnings denominated in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar,
the reporting currency.

The Group did not adopt any financial instrument to hedge against exchange rate
risk in the year. In future, the Group will monitor the exchange rate risk, apply
financial instruments to hedge against the currency risk, and consider prudently
increasing the percentage of the debt denominated in Renminbi at appropriate
time.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operations will be affected by multiple risk factors related to the
real estate business. Inadequate internal processes or personal misconduct and
external partner’s breach behavior, or other factors beyond control may have
certain negative impacts on the Group’s operation.

Policy Risks

Since the end of September 2016, Shenzhen and other cities have been under
an environment with extremely stringent policy control, while the changes in and
the efforts in implementation of the policies including restrictions in property
purchase, selling price and mortgages shall have an impact on trading volume
and selling price of real estate market. The Group may adjust the contracted
sales plan and the launching time for part of the projects based on the release
and implementation of policies. This will affect the contracted sales of the Group.
In addition, the Housing and Construction Bureau of Shenzhen Municipal has
made adjustments to the conditions for filing on completion of construction and
examination for projects in Shenzhen since 1 January 2017 requiring approval
documents or permission documents on planning and environmental protection be
filed as a condition for the filing of completion of construction and examination,
which will delay the delivery of the Group’s projects in Shenzhen by about half a
year, and will have an impact on the recognition of sales revenue for individual
project.
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Highlight of ESG Report

While striving to achieve a win-win situation for enterprises, shareholders and
business partners, the Group is also committed to actively take on the corporate
citizen responsibility to protect the environment. In order to consolidate the
social responsibility management system of the Group, and implement various
environmental, social and governance measures, the Group has made reformation
in respect of structure and policy in the current year. For structure, in addition
to establishing the “Environmental, Social and Governance Working Committee”
and its affiliated working group and defining the roles of supporting staff, the
Group has also engaged a third party to carry out special trainings on awareness
and ability, to enable management and reporting work on a continuous two-track
basis. For policy, the Group has guided the employees to integrate relevant
concepts into day-to-day operations through establishing environmental, social
and governance policies, towards the goal of the Group together.

The Group encourages innovation and actively improves the quality of
environment and constructs an eco-friendly building environment in the operating
concepts of low pollution and low carbon and in the various manners including
green construction. In addition to various environmental protection measures, the
Group are also concerned about the quality of employees, communities, products
and services.

The development of an enterprise cannot be achieved without the support from
stakeholders. The stakeholders of the Group include government authorities,
investors, business partners, customers, employees, suppliers, industry
associations, etc. The Group attaches great importance to the suggestions
and advices of various stakeholders and consistently implements the existing
communication mechanism. During the year, the Group carried out again a special
stakeholder survey programme on the environmental, social and governance
issues of the Group, and in aggregate collected suggestions and advices from
more than 400 stakeholders. In order to meet the expectations from the parties
and to clarify the importance of the various aspects, the Group shall respond to
various parties with a more detailed environmental, social and governance report.

The Group does not only attach great importance to development of employees
and use of talents, but also actively participates in poverty alleviation and
community volunteer work, and strives to provide diversified services to and
create greater value for broader communities through various ways including
development of wisdom park, strengthened business management, building a
health platform for elderly and remodelling a business model of “real estate +
service”.

Please refer to the “2016 Environmental, Social and Governance Report” to be
issued by the Company for details.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 7. This summary
is not part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year is set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTIES
Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out on pages 242 to
252,

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in
note 19 and note 20 to the financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$1,327,977,000 of which HK$764,916,000 and
HK$382,458,000 have been proposed as final dividend and special dividend for
the year. Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
on page 107 to 108 and note 36 to the financial statements respectively.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION
Interest of approximately HK$422,640,000 was capitalised during the year in
respect of the Group’s property development and investment projects.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases
respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest of the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.
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DONATIONS
During the financial year, the Group has made donations of approximately
HK$16,895 for charitable or other purposes.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors is set out on page 4 of this annual report. There was no
change of Directors in year 2016. Mr. HUANG Yige resigned as a non-executive
Director with effect from 18 January 2017. Mr. HUANG Yige has confirmed that
he has no disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter relating to
his resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of
the Company. Mr. LIU Shichao was appointed as a non-executive director with
effect from 18 January 2017.

In accordance with article 100 of the articles of association of the Company, Dr.
LU Hua, Mr. MOU Yong and Dr. WU Jiesi will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election.

Mr. LIU Shichao was appointed by the Board as Director to fill casual vacancy
on 18 January 2017. In accordance with article 91 of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. LIU Shichao will hold office as Director only until the next
following general meeting following his appointment by the Board with effect from
18 January 2017 and, being eligible, he has offered himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The list of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year of this report is available on the Company’s website at
www.shenzheninvestment.com under the “Corporate Governance” section.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 35 to 45 of this annual report.

Following the appointment of Mr. LIU Shichao as a Director on 18 January 2017,
he was appointed as a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (000014.S7) with
effect from 14 February 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT

No Directors had a material interest in any transactions, arrangements nor
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries were entered
into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors has any direct or indirect interest
in a business which competes or may compete, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Dr. LU Hua is the chairman and a director, Mr. HUANG Wei is the president and a
director, Mr. MOU Yong and Mr. HUANG Yige (resigned on 18 January 2017) and
Mr. LIU Shichao (appointed on 18 January 2017) are directors, and Mr. LIU Chong
is the vice president, of both Shum Yip Holdings Limited (“SYH”) and Shum Yip
Group Limited (“SYG”). SYH and SYG, through their subsidiaries and associates,
have interests in property investment and development businesses in PRC.

In addition, Mr. MOU Yong is also a non-executive director of Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK), an associated company of the Company, whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and engages in
property investment and development businesses.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements respectively.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 June 2012 (“Share Option
Scheme”). The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:—

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and reward
to the participants to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefits of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

2. The eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are the employee or
director (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) of any member of the group comprising the Company, Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, Shum
Yip Group Limited, the holding company of Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited, and their subsidiaries and associated companies from time to
time (the “SY Group”) or any employee, partner or director of any business
consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of and
to any member of the SY Group, as the Board may at it absolute discretion
determine.

3. The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of adopting the Share Option
Scheme. That 10% limit was refreshed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 19 June 2014 whereby the Company was authorized
to grant further options carrying rights to subscribe for up to 538,252,770
shares, representing 10% of the total number of the Company’s shares in
issue as at the date of the said meeting, under the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 634,320,370 (of which options to
subscribe for 110,132,343 shares had been granted and were outstanding),
representing approximately 8.29% of the shares in issue of the Company.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to each Participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue, unless otherwise separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting. Further, any
grant of option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
him in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue; and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, is subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option Scheme
is to be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, and shall expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of date upon which the option is granted
and accepted in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

There is neither any minimum period for which an option must be held, nor
any performance target which is needed to be achieved before the option
can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified
at the time of the offer.

The period open for acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion provided that it shall
not be opened for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the date upon
which the option is granted and accepted in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is
earlier. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall be made
with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.
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8.  The exercise price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and shall
be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (i) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until 22 June 2022
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms stipulated
therein.

Please refer to note 35 to the financial statements for further information of the
Share Option Scheme.

During the year, 6,920,000 options were granted, 10,666,400 options were
exercised, 11,826,000 options were lapsed and 701,257 options were cancelled
under the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2016, 110,132,343 options
granted under the Share Option Scheme were still outstanding.
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8. TTEENHMESESIHET YBELRUTZ
Rk (EEMARHMARAR (THRAH])
BHHEXRFAEARFABRMREHE B ZHH
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9. BREAIEMRAME-T-__FRA-TZ
B - BRIERBES AT A2 R AT -

ERBRES A AR 2R RRMES -

FA 6,920,000 BIRES & - 10,666,40017 B AR 42
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The particulars of, and movements in, the share options outstanding under the T3 &5 N BT IE s+ 2178 T R 171 2 BARKE 2 &5
Share Option Scheme during the year are set out below: BLrE

Number of share options
BREYE
Other Date of Exercise Exercise
At1 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled changes At 31 grant of period of price of
January during during during during during December share share share
2016 the year the year the year the year the year options options options
JiN
“FRE W RER K i ‘ | i
—-A-H ; fife ) ] BRERS fREE f1feE
HKS per share
T
Dirgctors
3
LU Hua 7,830,000 - - - - - 7830000  28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.8
RE
IjtlrJf\:IyGWei 3,196,000 - - - - - 3196000  27/7/2015 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 3.396
"E
MOU Yong 5,246,000 - - - - - 5246000  28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.8
£B
LIU Chong 5,246,000 - - - - - 5246000  28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.8
=
21,518,000 - - - - - 21)518,000
Other employees
AftES
Iiafgtgregate 100,238,000 - (10,666,400)  (11,826,000) - - 77745600  28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.8
E|/\
4,650,000 - - - (701,257) - 3948743 21712015 28/1/2016-27/1/2019° 3.396
6,920,000
(Note)
- (WisE) - - - - 6920000  14/6/2016 14/6/2016-27/1/2019* 3108
104,888,000 6,920,000  (10,666,400)  (11,826,000) (701,257) - 88,614,343
126,406,000 6,920,000  (10,666,400)  (11,826,000) (701,257) - 110,132,343
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*  Qptions shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to  *  BRESETIHRITEL T RBERRE
performance review:

Maximum percentage of Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of

Share Option exercisable the Share Option

AITRBRER L TERA L IR R A 2 1T AR AR

40% at any time from 28 January 2016 to 27 January 2017
—E-—RNF-RAZtN\BEZE—tF—A-t+tHZEAEH

70% at any time from 28 January 2017 to 27 January 2018

—tFE-AZ Tt N\BEZE-\F-AZTtHZEAEHE
100% at any time from 28 January 2018 to 27 January 2019

—N\F-AZtNBEZZF-NF-A-+LRZERKER

** Options shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to = BEREBRTIANTETSRBEEZAER
performance review:

Maximum percentage of Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of

Share Option exercisable the Share Option

AT RS B TERA L IR R A 2 1T AR AR

40% at any time from 14 June 2016 to 27 January 2017
TE—RNFANRTREEE—tF—AZt+EHBZEAEHE

70% at any time from 28 January 2017 to 27 January 2018

—tE-AZ T N\BEZE-N\F-AZTtHZEAEH
100% at any time from 28 January 2018 to 27 January 2019

“N\F-AZtNBE-Z-NF-A-+LRZEMER

Note: The closing share price was HK$3.00 per Share on 13 June 2016, being the date izt : ROR—T—AEAA+T=0 (NEERFRERERTE
immediately before the day on which such options were granted. HalzBH) 2B EAESRKI.0ET -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) adopted by the Company were as follows:

Long positions in the shares (“Shares”) and underlying shares of the
Company:

i

Z IR

T-RNE+-A=Z+—HB ARRAZEERES
RAQARREMEREE (T LEH LS
[BHRAEED]) SEXvE) 2Bm - BER
¢%ﬁmEM%&%TMM%W%%mH%
SAREIREBBHARGMERRAR ([HR
2% kAR (BEREBHFRBERIZZE
MXW“W&@%%EZ% SHARR) - KRR
BREERREAENIEEFE 2 B LRz ERRA
B BRBARREMZ EMBEATAZSETEER
SIZETFA| ([ZETR])) BRNEARRE KT #
BRKBEWMT -

]

SOl 4

> 4
0

AR

WS m O
=

‘* okr

um%
\\\ﬁ\m‘;
>‘*tﬂ+

ATy (Tt 1) BB eA 2 5 47

Underlying
shares
Number of pursuant to Aggregate Percentage of
Name of director Capacity Shares share options interests ~ Shares in issue
BEERES Eaﬁﬁkﬁ
S BRI 8 A ; S ZERN
LU Hua Beneficial owner 1,122,383 7,830,000 8,952,383 0.12
B ESHEEA
HUANG Wei Beneficial owner = 3,196,000 3,196,000 0.04
=i ESHEAA
MOU Yong Beneficial owner - 5,246,000 5,246,000 0.07
£5 ESHEBA
LIU Chong Beneficial owner - 5,246,000 5,246,000 0.07
ElES ERBEAA
WU Jiesi Beneficial owner 3,400,000 - 3,400,000 0.04
RER ESHEBA
LI' Wai Keung Beneficial owner 1,180,880 = 1,180,880 0.02
e L ESHEEA
Note: The percentage was calculated based on 7,649,164,458 Shares in issue as at 31 e BAIREBZE-S— X F+_A=+—RZERTK

December 2016.

177,649,164, 45851 & ©
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Interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are stated in detail
in the preceding section “Share Option Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2016, any interests or short positions in
any Shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (which is the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or its associated corporations and none
of the Directors, or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or its associated
corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

i

ESRNARABAE EEN E—
AT -

8 TRl T

BREXHBREEN BE-T—AF+-_A=Z+—
A BEARAEERESTRABRRARRET
AR (TEEEHFRBEROIEXN) 2 FMAk
MREEROKEFTEEREES RBE KISV
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2016, the interests and short positions of the shareholders (other
than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:—

Interest in Shares

h

B9
RARREMEERRZRSTHRABMAN  RZE—
ﬁ¢+—ﬂi+—a BE (KARRZESIESHTHA
BBRIN RAQRRG RAERAFHEEEREES K
g MW%W%%M@%%%ZMXW$@ BE2
BRRAR  REBRARAIREES KPS KAE

3%%%ﬁﬁzﬂ£ﬁ2%\ KRBT

By h 2

Number of Shares

BHKEA
Percentage
of Shares
in issue
Capacity Long Position  Short Position (Note 3)
BB Z1TR M
. : ZBADH
78 %A ")
Shum Yip Group Limited* (“SYG”) Interest in controlled corporation 4,674,502,843 - 61.11
REEBERAR (NAXEE]) XEEE 2z R (Note 2)
(PitzE2)
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“SYH”)  Beneficial owner 4,610,751,918 — 60.28
i (5E) BRAR (X% (RE)]) ExBEBA
Interest in controlled corporation 63,750,925 - 0.83
XEER R (Note 3)
(P &E3)
Notes: BisE
1. The percentage was calculated based on 7,649,164,458 Shares in issue as at 31 1, AL DBREREZE—AF+tZA=+—HZEETR
December 2016. 1 7,649,164,458f% 51 & ©
2. SYG is deemed to be interested in the 4,674,502,843 Shares which SYH is interested in 2. RER¥E (5B ARELECEEZEWBAR SRR
by virtue of SYH being its direct wholly-owned subsidiary. BREL (£8) BAES 524,674,502, 843 AR 7 o #E /5 1

3. These 63,750,925 Shares were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Successful Years Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Shum
Yip Finance Company Limited (“SYF”). SYF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYH and
accordingly, SYH is deemed to be interested in these 63,750,925 Shares.

* For identification purpose only

3. % %63,750,9250% % 13 FSuccessful Years Holdings Limited.Z
2EMBRARATFEEERADEFA - MSuccessiul Years
Holdings Limited B A ¥ S BMBARLF ([RESR]) 2
BHB - FESBARE KE)N2EWBAR
b ORE (BE) #R A% A % 563,750,9250R Ik 17 &9 1

%o
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company had not been
notified by any person (other than directors and chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under note 43 to the financial statements.
Some of these transactions also constitute non-exempt connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, for which the
Company has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Set out below is the information in relation to certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions carried out by the Group during the year.

On 27 January 2014, Shum Yip Group Limited (“SYG”) and Shenzhen Nongke
Holdings Company Limited (“Nongke”) entered into (a) an agricultural land
entrustment agreement (“AL Entrustment Agreement”) pursuant to which SYG
will appoint Nongke (i) to hold and manage certain agricultural lands and
related assets; and (i) to authorize Nongke and its wholly-owned subsidiaries
to manage such agricultural lands and related assets in accordance with their
existing operations, in each case, at the cost of SYG for a term commencing on
22 August 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016, and Nongke is entitled to
a management fee with an annual cap of RMB1.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 and RMB1.7 million for each of the years ending 31 December
2015 and 2016 respectively; and (b) a floral market entrustment agreement
(“NFM Entrustment Agreement”, together with AL Entrustment Agreement, the
“Entrustment Agreements”) pursuant to which SYG will appoint Nongke to handle
legal procedures with respect to the investment and operation management
of B¥RIEFIEMETREER (Agricultural Popular Science and Flora Expo),
the social car parking space and certain commercial facilities at a parcel of

i
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land at Futian District; and (ii) to demolish all the building structures currently
erected thereon pursuant to the relevant requirements, at the cost of SYG, for
the period from 22 August 2014 to 31 December 2016. Nongke is entitled to a
management fee with an annual cap of RMBOQ.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 and RMB1.0 million for each of the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2016 respectively. As SYG is the ultimate holding company of the
Company and Nongke is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since 22
August 2014, the transactions contemplated under the Entrustment Agreements
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company. As the Entrustment
Agreements are on better terms to the Company, the transactions contemplated
under the Entrustment Agreements are subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
then Listing Rules notwithstanding that all the applicable percentage ratios are
less than 0.1%. The Entrustment Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were approved by independent shareholders on 29 May 2014. For
further details, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 12 May 2014.

The Independent Non-executive Directors had reviewed the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that they have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. onnormal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

i

BRBRERRANERE L2MBREEY  BRd
RESEAL HRE-FT-NFNA-T-HEE
“E-RETZA=T B BRMBBRREEC
Z-MFET A=t RLEFEARFELRARE
NETHERERNAZE _T-AFR-_T—R"FT
“RA=t-BUEFERFESRIRRER ERARKI00
ETNERE - ANAXEERAR A REERD
A REME-Z-MENAZTZREARAARZ
2EMBAR > ZREHER FRETIRIBAAR
RAIZREBRER S - ANZEBANGEREERARE
AR BEMEEAADLEER%  BRFEH
BATHETHRZEETERLTRANBR 2
& FEERIBURRLERT - ERHERAR
THETZRIR - B-—NEFRA-TNBEEBEY
BRIE - BRE—SHE FE2HARRAEHEAZ
T-NFERAT-RZENH -

BUFNTESCER L AKERER S  THEAL
R

1L RNARERER-REBBRPAIL

2. BRARGRIERERTL: &

>

3. LREXRZZHABEBEARE  HEFEATAE
BYFAARABRR BRI -

ARANNELBM D BEREEEGMAERMAL
BB & TERRIF30005% [BRABHNELWBER
MO ETIE] R2REBHAE0N [BREE
ITRAMLHERER S 2 ZBM R | HEFEHE
ZRBRERS -

88



Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A 7

Annual Report 2016 =& — < EF iR

Directors’ Report

RO W

The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing the auditor’s findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group on page 231 to 232 of the annual report in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rule. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SHARES ISSUED
During the year, the Company issued 265,147,470 new Shares, details of which
are set out below:

(i) On 11 August 2016, 250,251,905 new Shares were issued and allotted to
the shareholders who have elected to receive their 2015 final dividend by
way of scrip dividend in lieu of cash.

On 18 November 2016, 4,229,165 new Shares were issued and allotted to
the shareholders who have elected to receive their 2016 interim dividend
by way of scrip dividend in lieu of cash.

10,666,400 new Shares were issued and allotted upon the exercise of
options under the Share Option Scheme. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

(i)

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of its listed securities during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, throughout the year and up to the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
Shares are held by the public.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific performance of the
controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“1st Facility Agreement”) dated 25 June 2013 entered
into between the Company as borrower and a bank, a HK$300 million (or its
equivalent in US dollars) transferable term loan facility (“1st Facility”) was
provided to the Company. The 1st Facility shall be repaid by the Company in one
lump sum on the date falling 36 months from the first drawdown date.

By an agreement (“2nd Facility Agreement”) dated 9 October 2013 entered into
between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up to a principal amount
of US$235 million (or equivalent to approximately HK$1,833 million) transferable
term loan facility and up to a principal amount of HK$1,654 million transferable
term loan facility (“2nd Facility”) were provided to the Company. The 2nd Facility
shall be repaid by the Company in four instalments of various percentages of the
total amount of borrowings, with all outstanding amount shall be fully repaid on
the date falling 60 months from the date of the 2nd Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“3rd Facility Agreement”) dated 25 August 2014 entered into
between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up to a principal amount of
US$435 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3,393 million) transferable term
loan facility and up to a principal amount of HK$2,510 million transferable term
loan facility (“3rd Facility”) were provided to the Company. The 3rd Facility shall
be repaid by the Company in three instalments of various percentages of the total
amount of borrowings, with all outstanding amount shall be fully repaid on the
date falling 60 months from the date of the 3rd Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“4th Facility Agreement”) dated 4 December 2014 entered
into between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a principal amount of
HK$400 million transferable term loan facility (“4th Facility”) was provided to the
Company. The 4th Facility shall be fully repaid in 36 months commencing from
the date of the 4th Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“5th Facility Agreement”) dated 29 May 2015 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a principal amount of
HK$200 million term loan facility (“5th Facility”) was provided to the Company.
The 5th Facility shall be fully repaid by the Company in three instalments with
the last repayment date falling 60 months from the date of the 5th Facility
Agreement.
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By an agreement (“6th Facility Agreement”, together with the 1st Facility
Agreement, 2nd Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement, 4th Facility
Agreement and 5th Facility Agreement collectively referred to as the “Facility
Agreements”) dated 7 March 2016 entered into between the Company as
borrower and a syndicate of lenders, a US$230 million transferable term loan
facility and a HK$1,000 million transferable term loan facility (“6th Facility”) were
provided to the Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 6th
Facility shall be repaid by the Company in instalments with the last repayment
date falling 60 months from the date of the 6th Facility Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of the issued share
capital of the Company, ceases to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company, ceases to have management control of the Company, or ceases
to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal
People’s Government of the People’s Republic of China and at any time after the
happening of an event of default, all amounts due under the facilities may be
declared to be immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2016, all advances made under the 1st Facility Agreement
had been fully repaid.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The articles of association of the Company provides that each Director, Secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Ordinance) which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group’s results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the work of Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 46 to 71.

i

BEALDE (EAEFA) E—FEAEFIARZZT—X
F=ZAtBFTuz—EHE (B ORiha &
RE—DRERS F_0riHs F-naER
% FOOREARERERNREDESREA %S0
E¥pi]) 0 —$ £ % /5230,000,0003% 7T 2 7] 85 F
EREER—24%/51,000,000,000/ T2 78 E T H
BEXEE ([ER28E]) BREPMEZETRES
RETFADF - BAEREEALRADHEERR
B-SEFBHATVEANBEREEBESER
~NTEAZBEE -

REZERERZ A% (58) ARAFTBER
BEARFRZELHUZEHETRA  RTBRARELZ
BE-RARR  ATBRHARAZEE  ZTHH
PEARANERNMARBFEGRBED51%2 1
@ RIRRIER RS - MR BEEEMERGE

EREARR  ZERERTHALBASRARE
HEIHRLATEER -

R-E-RF+_A=1-8 REE-HEEHS
EHZ IBEFETHEE -

M S A
ARBMABERAIRT - £RRRPIFFATORA
BEA ARFEBRES WEIHLSRAEHRE
BORBRBENBRARI IR —IERLEL
BBERARAEETRGRE - itoh - FRFEHR
HHEERRBABNERARTDRBEINES
BRANBRERRE -

HEULHEE
AEEFNRXECHERZEOEN - AHUENZE
ZBERARZERENEBENEZERE R RE

o

91



Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF A R 7
Annual Report 2016 =& — < EF R

Directors’ Report

RO

AUDITORS 3 A

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2016, Emst & R-ZZE—AFNAZBETZARAREBEFRE
Young retired as the auditor of the Company and KPMG was appointed as the - Rk @:tMiESHEEAR R 2 ZAUM MES
new auditor of the Company. BEMEREREALRDR 2 HZEE -

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016  HE-E— A F+-_A=+—BIFEZEAIER

have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves ~ ROHREHEAMERMERZ -  EEHEHHER

for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. IR AAREERRBEFAY LRE - UHEER
EREEREETL -

This report is approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board by FRECELETATIATREEZ SRS
LU Hua *FE

Chairman EE

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017 5 ZE—+tF=A=++H
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 103
to 241, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

MREYFH (5)

Valuation of investment properties and investment properties under development

RENERBREHPRENFNGEE

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 120 to 121.

BRI A R FNFI6REI20R121 BRI S5 E °

The key audit matter
BRELEE

The aggregate fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
investment properties under development as at 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$22,807 million, representing 24% of the Group’s
total assets as at that date.

RZZ-—R"F+A=1+—0 ESEREVERFETRENE
AR ERER2807TEAT  HESENZ P EEER24% °

The net change in fair values recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represented 15% of the Group’s profit
before taxation for the year ended 31 December 2016.
FAGERRRPNAAEESFREEEEHE_T—NFT_
A=+—BILEERBIATFEII15% o

The Group’s investment properties and investment properties
under development, which are located in Mainland China, comprise
shopping malls, office premises, residential premises and car
parking bays.
BEEEURPEARENRENERERTFRENEBEENES
BTE  IENEREES o

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties and investment
properties under development were assessed by the board of
directors based on independent valuations prepared by an external
property valuer.
REERENEREETFRENENAAETNAESERENTY
EHEMGEEMB LG EETIHE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RERHNEERTE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties and investment properties under development
included the following:
EEHRENFRERTFREMENBEETIENEZET
B

e assessing the competence, capability, experience of the
locations and types of properties subject to valuation,
independence and objectivity of the external property
valuer;

o FTEINEYEMEMNEE - g2 FAEEUERERY
EMiERELR  BUMREEL

e evaluating the valuation methodology used by the external
property valuer based on our knowledge and experience of
other valuers for similar types of properties;

o REZTZHRCURRMENOEMEERMAHRALR - T4
INERD S (B RN T AR (B %

e comparing, on a sample basis, the tenancy information
included in the valuation models, which included committed
rents and occupancy rates, with underlying contracts and
related documentation;

o DMEARXBEERETAENHERS (APRERETMN
e MEER) EREE 4 RAARSUFETLE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

PRAE R (B

Valuation of investment properties and investment properties under development (continued)

RENERBRHIRENENGE (R)

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 120 to 121.

FR A RN 16 RE 1202121 B EHHE

The key audit matter
HEEREE

We identified valuation of investment properties and investment
properties under development as a key audit matter because of
their significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because the determination of the fair values involves significant
judgement and estimation, including selecting the appropriate
valuation methodology, capitalisation rates and market rents and,
for investment properties under development, an estimation of costs
to complete each property development project.
ERNRENERBERPREVFUHGAUBRRNEZUEURAA
ENETTREREREBABMMMGS  EEERBEENMENRE
BREENTHEE RTKEMEERER KA (RERP
REMEME)  EERREDERERPRENEOGERER—
EARERER -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RERFNEER T

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties and investment properties under development
included the following: (continued)
EEHRENMERERTREMENGEETHGRNEREF
B (&)

e (discussing the valuations with the external property valuer
in a separate private session and challenging the key
estimates adopted in the valuations, including those relating
to market selling prices, market rents and capitalisation
rates, by comparing them with historical rates and available
market data, taking into consideration comparability and
other local market factors;

o FTHEINBMEGEMEBN REE  WBBHLMAEET
RANEZM (BRATSEE  mHHEENEXIER
HfhE) BRLLERME ARSBEREER  WEEALL
HREMEMTISEE

e conducting site visits to investment properties under
development, on a sample basis, to observe the
development progress and comparing the observed
development progress with the Group’s records;

o DMBEAABMENBRTREVFEER  UERERE
B WRBRINEREETREEENDIETHR

e challenging management’s property development budgets
reflected in the latest forecasts with reference to market
statistics for estimated construction costs, signed
construction contracts and/or unit construction costs for
recently completed projects developed by the Group.

o LBMEFEBMAE CEEBENRRAOR/IEXEHMA
TELEBMEFRE  HRIEAPRENEEENNFEE
RIEERHER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

MREYFHE (5)

Valuation of property development projects in third-tier and fourth-tier cities in Mainland China

REAE=  IEETYERREANGE

Refer to note 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 128 to 129.

BLMGE N BRENAI17RI8REI128Z129B B BFE °

The key audit matter
HRENER

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a number of property
development projects located in third-tier and fourth-tier cities
in Mainland China stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value, which totalled HK$12,969 million as at that date.
RZZ—RETZA=1+—R ESEEPEAE= - &K
TMHRAEZENFERIER - ZFBENZAUKARATERF
B ANBIEESIR - BEEA12969EBTT o

The calculation of the net realisable value of each property
development project at the financial reporting date was
performed by the Group’s internal property experts.
EMEEEBERNYBREARUERFENGEIRESE
NI EBRET

The calculation of the net realisable value of property
development projects involves significant management
judgement and estimation in preparing and updating project
feasibility studies and estimations of the costs to complete
each property development project as well as in assessing
the expected selling prices for each property (with reference
to recent sales transactions in the nearby vicinity and prices
for new property sales) and the estimated future selling costs
(including price discounts which may be required to stimulate
sales) and requires the application of a risk-adjusted discount
rate to estimate future discounted cash flows to be derived
from each property development project.
MEERBEAZRFENGESREAERE B ML
BERHEUMEINIEE TR RTKS M EEREE B BKAR
ARG E S MERRIBE WEREE (2 ZMiLEE AT
HER MR EHEBR) REFTTRIEERA (BIERE
HEMRFEZNERMM) - W ERERAR R AR R TR
EMERREE BEENRRURRERE o

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RERFRNEERER %

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of property
development projects in third-tier and fourth-tier cities in Mainland
China included the following:

BEEHPEAE=S  OREMYEEREEOGEETHHNER
BrRafs:

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of management’s
key internal controls which govern the preparation and
monitoring of management budgets and forecasts of
construction and other costs for each property development
project;

o THRNMIEEEEAMSNXEREANEREEFHUNEE
WA RBETRE A TR e A M B i il Y ket~ BiAETT
ARl

e conducting site visits to property development sites, on a
sample basis, and comparing the observed progress of each
property development project with the development budgets
reflected in the latest forecasts for each property development
project;

o DMBARBMEDNNEERELRS  UHERINENE
FRBEMNEFZEZYELRRE R NSHERT R EEE
HEITHE

e evaluating the valuation methodology adopted by management
in its assessment of net realisable value and comparing the key
estimates and assumptions adopted in the valuations, including
those relating to average net selling prices, with available
market data and the sales budget plans maintained by the
Group;

o EEEREHVERFEETIARAERNMGERE L
ERRANEZMEFNRSR (BRETIFHEEREANM
SRR BRETISEE R E S BRENHE AT 2T
w;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

% B

PR (B

Valuation of property development projects in third-tier and fourth-tier cities in Mainland China (continued)

REAE=  IEETNRBREANMEE (K)

Refer 1‘0 note 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 128 to 129.

BRI BHREN F17RIBRE128Z 129B BB 5B °
The key audit matter
BRELEHE

We identified the assessment the valuation of property
development projects in third-tier and fourth-tier cities in
Mainland China as a key audit matter because of the inherent
risks and potential management bias involved in estimating
the costs to complete each property development project and
future selling prices for each property development project,
particularly in light of the current economic circumstances and
various property market cooling measures introduced by local
governments in various cities across Mainland China.
ENEF TS MEERERNKAREMEERIER HARK
HEBBRMSRNNERRMEEEERE  LERRERE
%@%%&@Ikhm T B B HE B S B E TS
B EERTGPEARES  NRETHEEREE K
%@%E%@ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁo

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RERHNEERTE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of property
development projects in third-tier and fourth-tier cities in Mainland
China included the following: (continued)

BEEHPEARE=

- OERETHRERBEOGEETIEOER

BFes: (&)

comparing the estimated construction costs to complete
each property development project with the Group’s latest
development budgets and comparing the costs incurred to
31 December 2016 against the development budgets as at
31 December 2015 to assess the accuracy of management’s
forecasting and budgeting process;
BEXENEFERBENMGAREINAE EXRENKEIER
BEETHUR  UHBE-S—"F+t-A=+—HEE4LX

BREBZE AT _A=+t—HMBERBEETLR
WS E B R A B R AR R

challenging management’s property development budgets
reflected in the latest forecasts with reference to market
statistics for estimated construction costs, signed construction
contracts and/or unit construction costs for recently completed
projects developed by the Group; and
SERHERRANTERAEE EEBNERAOR/
3 EEERENFOTIEEMEMERKA  HRHE
FREMNEEENMXERBERLER &

performing sensitivity analyses to determine the extent
of change in those estimates that, either individually or
collectively, would be required for the property development
projects to be materially misstated and considering the
likelihood of such a movement in those key estimates arising
and the potential for management bias.

ETHRMAN - NEEZSAABERNEFEREBELE
RERNEPEE  TERZFEEMFHREEN A I
BRREMNEENY
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Accounting for the acquisition of a subsidiary
WEE— BB A R NEREE

MREYFHE (5)

Refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 118 to 119.

FLHGER B RANAITREIBE119R A EFTHE

The key audit matter
HEELEE

During the current year the Group acquired a 95% equity
interest in Fairwind Power Limited for a total consideration of
HK$2,264 million.

WREE - S£BE U Fainwind Power Limited#995% 0% 1 - &K (B
F22 64EBTT

Management calculated that the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired at the acquisition date, 15 March 2016,
totalled HK$2,937 million and, consequently, a gain on a
bargain purchase of HK$526 million was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2016.

EEERE RBERM (ZZ2—R"F=ATAA) RKEHTH
AFEENARESTRNITEAT  ARRBE_S—RF
Jr%)ﬂ =T —BIEFENGEBRRTRERS.6EBTARER
Bmig -

The calculation of the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired involved significant management judgement,
particularly in relation to assessing the fair values of properties
under development and deferred tax liabilities. The fair values
were assessed by the board of directors based on independent
valuations prepared by an external property valuer.

AR FEEAAENGESREREEEHE  LEREN
BERPNENAABREEHEHEE  AREHEEER
BINBYI S L ER AR R B L (R EEITAT A o

We identified accounting for the acquisition of Fairwind Power
Limited as a key audit matter because of the significance of
the gain on bargain purchase to the consolidated financial
statements and because the determination of the fair values
involved significant management judgement and estimation,
including selecting the appropriate valuation methodology and
determining current prices for land parcels.
ERIAGERBERENREBEMENEEUURLABE
METSIREAERBHEMG  BREEBEENMENE
MEFHRAORITER - F5 KU EEFairwind Power Limited#) &5+
REARER —BHEERZEE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REGPNEERS %

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for the acquisition of
Fairwind Power Limited included the following:

&% HiFairwind Power Limited 08 1AM & S BRIB A £ TR LN BZIE
FefE

reading the sale and purchase contract to understand the
nature of the transaction and to evaluate the accounting
treatment adopted by management for the acquisition;
BEEECRNTHRRINIEE - Wi HERERKESER
RHgRIEE

comparing the payment of the consideration payable to bank
statements and other relevant underlying documentation; ‘
T R B H T BRI T AR B8 I Lt AR B AR ST AT LU

obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared by the
external property valuers engaged by the Group and on which
the management’s assessment of the fair values of assets and
liabilities acquired was based;
ERNBEHESRERFNI BN ELEMEREERERE
BUASNEEENE BN R BETTENMERS

assessing the external property valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the assets being valued and
considering their objectivity and independence; and

AN ELEMEEEGMEAANER  LRNEXH
Ho WEERERBUNEY K

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
discussing with the external property valuers, without the
presence of management, their valuation methodology and
challenging the assumptions and critical judgements which
impacted their valuations, including the current prices for land
parcels in the vicinity of Fairwind Power Limited’s properties
under development, by comparing these assumptions and
critical judgements with market data, our past experience of
similar transactions and the Group’s business plan supporting
the acquisition.

ERBEEZROWET - BHINEDEBEMEEREDES
BIER THREMERE  WERHY T EZS[HENRR
ST HETETIZE0E (B FEFaiwind Power Limited 3 & F ¥ £ 454
MREHRITER)  EERERURINERREEERIAZF
WEEENZEKE HREMENRINEE B REER -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OUR AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.
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3%}

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT  HMHM%E a5 A 05 SEAENEL (5)
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's — HERBUZEMBENBEAERAEARRTER ©
report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG EERASHMERM
Certified Public Accountants HEEERD

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BAEPIR

10 Chater Road BT

Central, Hong Kong KFRENE

27 March 2017 “E—+F=H-1++H
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B oA R’ #f K

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-T-—AF+-A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
“E-XRF —T-h%
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE T TAET
Revenue I 5 21,353,993 18,428,172
Cost of sales SHERA (13,083,234) (12,053,688)
Gross profit EH 8,270,759 6,374,484
Other income and gains Hib WA REF] 5 832,342 615,289
Increase in fair value of equity investments at FRBRRAREFEZRIERE
fair value through profit or loss, net RAEEINFRE 870 580
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMERNRKEEM 16 1,204,139 1,082,176
Recognition of change in fair value of FHEHERB 2 BERMES
completed properties held for sale/properties BRPYEEEE
under development upon transfer to REMERTES
investment properties D ERE 16 654,516 432,102
Selling and distribution expenses HHE Ko HEEUR (362,224) (483,087)
Administrative expenses THRX (956,298) (867,298)
Other operating expenses Hip g (1,656,121) (542,978)
Finance costs AR 6 (838,167) (708,484)
Share of profits less losses of RGN A R E N EEF
joint ventures and associates HEE 1,142,976 607,845
Profit before taxation e B 7 8,292,792 6,510,629
Income tax expense PrEHiR % 8 (4,821,911) (3,423,377)
Profit for the year F AR 3,470,881 3,087,252
Attributable to: oI -
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAIERFR 3,170,581 2,868,796
Non-controlling interests R R 300,300 218,456
3,470,881 3,087,252
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER 11
Basic J-9N HK42.36 cents HK40.56 cents
42.36784L 40.5675 1L
Diluted s HK42.35 cents HK40.56 cents
42.35784L 40.5675 1l

The notes on pages 113 to 241 form part of these financial statements. Details of
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for

the year are set out in note 12.

FIREMAZMEBRZERBHRRZ— 82 - BBA
AFERRREEFRENEREE ZFHE - ST
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G B E R R AWK E

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_T-—AF+-A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
“E-RE 0%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(=3 THER FAET
Profit for the year FEREM 3,470,881 3,087,252
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEKE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to e Em R BRZER ¢
profit or loss:
Available-for-sale investments: AHERE
— Changes in fair value —Ah{EE (10,785) (6,261)
— Income tax effect — T2 2,696 1,565
22 (8,089) (4,696)
Share of other comprehensive income of ElEEERAIREENAIEMEA
joint ventures and associates g (235,432) (175,080)
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINER
foreign operations fERZER (2,918,015) (1,767,065)
(3,161,536) (1,046,841)
ltems that will not be reclassified to BIrERHEZERE AR
profit and loss:
Share of other comprehensive income of NG E =N
joint ventures and associates Hib2Eba = (72)
- (72)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEWRE
net of tax R 1e (3,161,536) (1,946,913)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEkKGRE 309,345 1,140,339
Attributable to: 51
Equity shareholders of the Company RRRERRE 170,542 1,038,058
Non-controlling interests IS 138,803 102,281
309,345 1,140,339
The notes on pages 113 to 241 form part of these financial statements. F3EM B 2N ERZEN SRR 2 — B0
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e
W

CEERE

A

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-RE “E—hF
+=ZA=+-—H +-R=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE FET FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 13 3,844,311 4,144,176
Prepaid land lease payments BN T A ERIE 14 36,083 40,355
Goodwill EES 15 322,240 322,542
Investment properties LS 16 22,807,211 20,908,173
Interests in associates BN AR 20 3,994,821 3,838,027
Interests in joint ventures BENRER 21 3,300,931 3,037,310
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 22 112,985 123,684
Other long term assets HibREABE 23 3,188,483 1,778,889
Breeding biological assets FEMENEE 24 = 7,075
Deferred tax assets BETHIEEE 33() 1,954,441 1,386,915
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 39,561,506 35,587,146
Current assets REBEE
Trading biological assets HEEAMEE 24 8,136 9,576
Completed properties held for sale BIEFEZEERDE 17 7,514,657 9,031,517
Properties under development LR E 18 35,292,229 30,311,525
Inventories 78 25 93,354 98,803
Trade receivables JE M ER SR 26 322,506 528,154
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ?EH* CEe RHEMEKTIE 27 1,684,928 1,696,026
Equity investments at fair value ARBEE T;z”&ftfﬁéﬁgiz
through profit or loss BERRE 28 4,566 3,696
Restricted cash ZRHES 29 2,204,157 4,110,729
Cash and cash equivalents HERELZEY 29 9,859,526 9,708,046
Total current assets TEEEARE 56,984,059 55,498,072
Current liabilities REEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HEBETREMES 30 5,288,454 5,274,153
Trade payables JERTERA 31 1,116,432 1,013,126
Other payables and accruals Hib R ZIE R EAER 32 17,023,915 13,920,890
Due to the immediate holding company FEREEERAR ,T,\IE 43(b) 1,270,755 158,301
Due to the ultimate holding company JEfS AR IE "”T 43(h) 2,850,880 3,816,007
Tax payable FER iR 33(a) 8,755,178 6,494,559
Total current liabilities SEEEAsE 36,305,614 30,677,036
Net current assets RBEEFRE 20,678,445 24,821,036
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREEE 60,239,951 60,408,182
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6B R R E

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AfF
+=ZH=+-B +-A=1+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE T FAL
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ARBTREMES 30 14,468,791 16,100,940
Deferred income EIA 34 27,375 32,088
Due to the immediate holding company [ BB A R FOR 43(b) 752,362 348,894
Due to the ultimate holding company R AR N Rl BUR 43(b) - 965,897
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEE 33(h) 8,770,489 7,391,297
Total non-current liabilities FREBaBELEE 24,019,017 24,839,116
Net assets BEERE 36,220,934 35,569,066
Capital and reserves EXRfE
Share capital e 36(b) 18,281,191 17,478,481
Reserves B 36(c) 14,529,622 15,847,384
Total equity attributable to equity of ANRIERRRIENG
shareholders of the Company e gap b 32,810,813 33,325,865
Non-controlling interests FEERR 3,410,121 2,243,201
Total equity e b 36,220,934 35,569,066

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2017.

Huang Wei
B
Director

s

The notes on pages 113 to 241 form part of these financial statements.

EFeN T tF- AT LAERERETIE -

Liu Chong

IES
Director

s

FIIE2M A ZMEBRAER BRI 287 -
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Rl SE UL M

Notes
Wi
At 1 January 2016 Z2-57E-B-8
Proft for the year Efgf)
Other comprehensive EhEpRE
income for the year: Wiz :
Changes in far value of ~ JHEEREY
avallable-for-sale LrERY
investments, net of tax Rk
Share of other [
comprenensive income of  REFE L
joint ventures and Efh2E
associates e
Bxchange differences o~ #Z55 £
translation of pa 3}
foreign operations =8
Total comprehensive EhiEhE
income for the year 3
Final 2015 dividends E-RERERE 360)
Interim 2016 dividends ZE-RERERE 360)
Acquisition of non-controlling  REEZEE
Interests Ea
Disposal of non-controlling HEFIR
Interests s
Exercise of share options s 36(0)
Lapsed and surrender of BAURRE
share options i 36(c)
Equity-settled share WREEH 2 Bk
aption expense fi% 36()
Dividends declared to SQE
non-controlling v
shareholders &

Transfer from retained profits £ B R2EA

At 31 December 2016 ZE-AETIRZT-R
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22 /\ — =
oA O o B R
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KorEaREEN
Available-
for-sale
Share Asset  investment Exchange Non-
Share Other option Capital  revaluation revaluation  Statutory  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital 1eserve feserve  feseve  reserve  reserve  reserve 1eserve profits Total  Interests equity
e
el EEBlE  REE Bz ki
kA Efiis GE  ANER BE  mBE iTRE R REEH 48 R,
Notes  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
WE TR TR TR TEr TR TEn  TEr THn TEr T TR TEn
At 1 January 2015 “E-1E-A-H 14564800 (219,127) 69,526 59,019 216,214 24271 1,799,651 3,341,494 10,700,013 30,495,860 2,277,775 32,773,635
Profit for the year ERgf] - - - - - - - - 2868796 2,868,796 218456 3,087,252
Other comprehensive income EREMH2E
for the year: W
Changes in far value of ~ JREEREY
available-for-sale INELER
investments, net of tax Bk - - - - - (469) - - - (469) - (469)
Share of other comprehensive [E(RA 2R A RS
income of joint ventures NGhL
and associates 24E - - - - 12 - - (175,080) - (175,198 - (175,159
Exchange differenceson ~ BEEIERL
translation of foreign 5
operations B - - - - - - - (1,650,890) - (1,650890) (116,175) (1,767,065)
Total comprenensive income ~ ERZEHEAEH
for the year - - - - (72) (4,696) - (1,825,970 2,868,796 1,038,008 102,281 1,140,339
Final 2014 diidends “3-MERERS B0 4846 - - - - - - - (59605 (054759) - (954759)
Interim 2015 dividends “R-RERHRE 36(0) - - - - - - - - s s )
Aouisition of non-controling e FE4RR
interests R - 70,987 - - - - - - - 70987 (70,987) -
Contribution by non-controlling ~ 3428
interests iz - - = - - - - - - - R 55T
Exercise of share options fIiFemE ) 178,560 - (35,766) - - - - - - 14279 - 14279
Lapsed and surrender of BAURRE
share options BiE 36(c) - - (426) - - - - - 426 - - -
Issue of shares 350 36(0) 2,730,275 - N N N - - - - 2730275 - 730,275
Equity-setled share DRA T 2Bk
option expense 53 36(0) - - U - - - - - - Ui - U
Dividends paid to TR
non-controlling REe
shareholders RE - - - - - - - - - - (88425  (88,425)
Transfer from retaingd profits BB AREAER - - - - - - 3835 - (3832 - - -
At 31 December 2015 ZE-RETZRZT-R 17478481 (208,140) 57,504 59019 216,142 19575 1,837,976 1,515,524 12,349,784 33,325,865 2,243,201 35,569,066

The notes on pages 113 to 241 form part of these financial statements.

FI3R2M B2 WA ERBRER 2 —5 °
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W a B s B K

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-RF 0%
+=A=t-B fT-A=+-H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
fidsx T FET
Cash flows from operating activities RAREGHER 7EESRE
Profit before taxation PR A 8,292,792 6,510,629
Adjustments for: BT SR
Finance costs BEMAR 6 838,167 708,484
Finance income BB (263,938) (344,594
Depreciation e 13 180,607 155,936
Increase in fair value of investment REMEARE
properties 0 16 (1,204,139) (1,082,176)
Recognition of change in fair value EREREMER
of completed properties held for BEFEY
sale/properties under development BEKEL
upon transfer to investment “hnEBEZ
properties ‘R 16 (654,516) (432,102)
Dividend income from REJHLEREZ
available-for-sale investments SYON (1,287) (1,329)
Share of profits and losses of joint EIEEZNA M E AT
ventures and associates A R B (1,142,976) (607,845
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BN A ERIE
payments i 14 1,065 1,309
Loss on disposal of items of property, HENE  BERXHEEE
plant and equipment B8 7 4,836 -
Gain on disposal of HEREMEL
investment properties FG 5 (4,081) (26,302)
Gain on a bargain purchase —HREBENSG 5 (526,249) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBARZFE 5 (3,599) -
Increase in fair value of EREEEMEE
trading biological assets NTRIER:) 24 = (1,274)
Write-down of completed properties BIERECERMEL
held for sale A 17 353,754 254,118
Write-down of inventories FEZHE 7 4,876 -
Write-down of properties BRPWEZ
under development BB 18 503,499 118,272
Net fair value gain on equity investments BRBRIEANEFE 2 RE
at fair value through profit or loss BEZ AR FERS (870) (580)
Equity-settled share option expense PARRANSZ 1+ 2 BB A il =2 35 11,823 24,171
6,389,764 5,276,717
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W oo B e B K

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-RF 0%
+=ZA=+—-HA +TZHAH=1—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BiE THET FAL
Decrease in trade receivables FEY B SERFUR D 172,317 173,156
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, BRHIEA - T REMEKEIR
deposits and other receivables (m),/ m (468,099) 280,329
Increase in prepaid land lease payments B LA EFIEE M = (329)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BE (8N, B (5,662) 37,645
(Increase)/decrease in trading biological SEREEEMEE (B, B
assets (974) 1,430
Decrease in completed properties held BIEGEZDERDE
for sale A 12,323,026 9,319,042
Increase in properties under development ERPYEL (4,954,139) (5,669,648)
Decrease in trade payables JERE S IRFR D (57,963) (3,103,027)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HMEATIBRETER
and accruals CR4d),/ s8m (1,743,419) 4,115,535
(Decrease)/increase in an amount dug to e ERER AR
the immediate holding company (), #Em (126,536) 104,774
Decrease in an amount due to B SARIEIR A R R
the ultimate holding company W (1,772,451) (262,144)
Decrease in deferred income RIS N (2,595) -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZRARLRD,/(Em) 29 1,906,572 (2,860,050)
Cash generated from operations REXBELZRE 11,660,241 7,413,430
Interest paid 2RFLE (1,045,844) (1,489,374)
Mainland China taxes paid BB AERE (3,217,599) (2,168,433)
Net cash flows generated from REFHEEZHERE
operating activities A 7,396,798 3,755,623
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e

 F B & W B K

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-RE —h%F
+=A=t-B fT-A=+-H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T FAL
Cash flows from investing activities REKREEHZEERE
Interest received BUF S 78,135 181,289
Income from available-for-sale investments e Hj’%&;ﬁz%li\ 1,287 1,329
Dividends received from associates B U2 A B S 99,869 118,774
Dividends received from joint ventures B2 Q%QTH 158,333 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYE - TJ%& LETE
plant and equipment g z0E 3,657 4,013
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEMRS
properties I8 26,328 88,162
Purchases of items of property, plant and BAME  BERERE
equipment JERE (169,466) (268,394)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B DA 37 (2,765,682) -
Increase in breeding biological assets EEEEEEN (262) (198)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposal of HEWBRARRE (RH)
subsidiaries S RNEFR (10,779) 141,358
Proceeds from available-for-sale investments — aJftHEREMEZIE - 2,799
Additions to investment properties REMEEM (514,106) (329,524)
Acquisition of an associate gt UNG] (10,061) -
(Increase)/decrease in loans to joint ventures BYEENTIZET (Em),/#d (56,965) 3,020,426
Decrease in loans to associates BIBENRZETRD = 3,515
Decrease in other long term assets HpREEERD = 12,491
Decrease in pledged deposits BIRBFHR D = 31,228
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from BEEY (FH),/ 52
investing activities RenEFE (3,159,712) 3,007,268
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W oo B e B K

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RF 0%
+=A=+-H +-A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BiE TEx FAL
Cash flows from financing activities RERMEEH I EERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BIIRMPTS VR 30,400 2,873,071
Dividends paid ERE (727,817) (1,176,280
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders s 3EIE AR 5 2 % 8 (127,013) (88,425)
Capital contribution from FERBRZ
non-controlling shareholders FE - 22,557
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to FEA R RPN B 20 IE
the ultimate holding company GRLA) /1 (1,650,171) 675,562
Repayment of loans from fellow subsidiaries EBERZMBRRIZER (76,616) (253,336)
Increase in amounts due to [ENEZERARFEA
the immediate holding company 9 887,700 -
Repayment of loans from EVE ST §
non-controlling shareholders 5N - (2,374)
Loan to non-controlling shareholders B IR E 2B (258,570) -
New bank and other borrowings BT REMEE 4,946,030 8,123,125
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EBERTREMES (7,270,481) (15,382,937)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEETEMARSRETFE (4,246,538) (5,209,037)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRBEZEN (BYD)
cash equivalents /BIFE (9,452) 1,553,854
Cash and cash equivalents FENzREREE
at beginning of year ZEY 9,708,046 8,375,476
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMNEEXSBHEEFEE 160,932 (221,284)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRESSEY 29 9,859,526 9,708,046
Analysis of balances of cash and cash RekReEEY
equivalents BEHOM
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHE 8,086,363 7,646,777
Non-pledged time deposits with original E=PNiA R ) EI PR=1EAR
maturity of less than three months 2 E
when acquired P 4 29 1,773,163 2,061,269
Cash and cash equivalents as stated FRPBARE /BERER
in the statement of financial BekEE
position/the cash flow statement ZEY 9,859,526 9,708,046
The notes on pages 113 to 241 form part of these financial statements. FNIE2M B 2 RN ZS Bz -
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OB R kW R

CORPORATE INFORMATION 1 AdER

Shenzhen Investment Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company is located
at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) are described in note 4.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip Holdings”, /=
#(%£E)ER 2 7), which is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The ultimate holding company of the Company is JZZ£EHR A7) (“Shum
Yip Group”), which is a state-owned company established in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

FIEBRBERRA ([ARF)]) A—RREET
MLz BREERTR - ARAZEMPFRN
REBNEMERBIRHRERETLSE - K
RAREMBRAR (RER[AKE]) <X EX
8 S ETIAL 3 1

ESRA  ARRZEEERORARE B
KL ZIARE — &% (RE) BRAR (TRFE

(%H

1) o ARTZ BBERAABRAEAR

HAE (THE]) RYKLZZBEBRR - REE
BERDA ([REEE]) -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FEFEBUOR
(a) Statement of compliance (a) HHEMH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basic of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the
Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures.

ZEVBREACRET AV B RS LR
([BEEMBREER]) OAEHBRER
2 BEMARNERNBEMBEREE
Bl ZAgAMAg ((BEGHALE])
BhROEEETER ([FEGER]) M
2B ABARGHRANURER DA
PIRTE - REMBHRETTEBEHE
RHMARARES EHRAERRESR
T ARERANEIRETBREBERT
Xo

FEGHAAREHETARERASH
9 B A O T B BT RA 2 93T A
BAEBIBREEA - B0 REEY
RIS AR RBL & H
BRESHERRARR 2 BAEEAR
ZAR) M RZEHBEAAED 2 E
B

S e 2 A A
BE-_T-A"F+-A=1+—HLFEZ
BeRBRREBRALARANBLRR
AEERBERARA LR 2B -

113



2

Shenzhen Investment Limited ZEIF AT B2 7

Annual Report 2016 —ZE— < EF#f

Notes to the Financial Statements

OB R kW

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Basic of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 2(h));

— leasehold land and buildings within property, plant and
equipment (see note 2(i));

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale investments
or as equity investments at fair value through profit or loss (see
note 2(g));

—  Diological assets (see note 2(m)); and

— contingent consideration payable within “due to the immediate
holding company” (see note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with
notes 2(p) or (q) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement,
and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(f) and
(k)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree. Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are recognised in accordance with note 2(u)(ii).

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in securities and financial assets

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in securities
(other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and other financial assets are as follows:

Investments in securities and other financial assets are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does
not include any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in note
2(v)(vi) and 2(v)(vii).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@)

Investments in securities and financial assels
(continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 2(Kk)).

Investments in securities and other financial assets which do not fall
into any of the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
investments. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and whose fair
value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(k)). Dividend income from equity securities and interest income
from debt securities calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in
notes 2(v)(vi) and 2(v)(vii), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt securities
are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 2(k)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in
the course of construction or development at the end of the reporting
period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(v)(iv).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Investment properties (continued)

(i)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(j)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments
are accounted for as described in note 2(j).

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with note 2(i) up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at the date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
and recognised in asset revaluation reserve within equity until the
retirement or disposal of the property (when it is released directly
to retained profits). For a transfer from completed properties held
for sale to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use are stated at their
revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair values at the end of
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land and buildings
held for own use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the asset
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to profit
or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in respect of
that same asset had previously been charged to profit or loss.

Construction is progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(k)), and is not depreciated. Other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(x)). Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the lease terms
20%

10% to 25%

9% to 20%

10% to 25%

—  Leasehold land and buildings

—  Leasehold improvements

—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment
—  Motor vehicles

—  Plant and machinery

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on
a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Operaling leases

Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset transfer to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases. All other leases are operating leases. Where the Group has
the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments under an operating lease is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the
leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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(k)

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in securitics and other

financial assels

Investments in securities and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale investments are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(g)), the impairment loss
is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 2(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 2(K)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in securities and other
financial assels (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale investments, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of assets (continued)

(k)

()

(ii)

Impairment of investments in securities and other
financial assels (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

—  prepaid land lease payments;

- other long term assets;

—  goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries and associates in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

2

FHEEFBOR (8)
(k) HAERME (5)

()

(i)

REFRAEMEBEEZRENME
(&)

REBREZMEEEREE - BEK
BIERARERRI - HREHE
RAREL YT - ERBERT - X
EHRESERAREREAR - E
AEBERBEBER BB TR
B4 & B E MR RS LR
BREBENBEERAASENENE
BT AER - HRUE R BER
BANMBHNERERAEERE TR
[ - fEKBNEMED L EMER
H A EL 1R Y Bl & BRI B 2R M HERR, ©

R EERE
AEERSRERREHA R
BROR - ARAI T 5 EEA ERE
MR - REESN - TR AR
EEETBRELAEEERD

- PE BERRERERR
BIIRZMERIL)
- BENLHREFE:

- EtRHEE:

[
=
T
A

- EARAHMBRRKRARIR
WELARILBMERAZRE -

126



2

Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A7

Annual Report 2016 —E— < EF#f

Notes to the Financial Statements

OB R kW R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(I) Inventories
(i) Property development
Inventories in respect of property development activities are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and
net realisable values are determined as follows:

—  Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion. They are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle.

The cost of properties under development for sale
comprises specifically identified cost, including the
acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised (see note 2(x)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
property.

—  Completed properties held for sale
In the case of completed properties developed by the
Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development project,
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

(ii) Other inventories
Inventories other than those in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

Inventories (continued)

(ii) Other inventories (continued)
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

(m) Biological assets

Biological assets represent breeding pigeons recorded as non-current
assets and trading pigeons and cloned orchid flowers recorded as
current assets. The biological assets are measured at their fair value
on initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period less
estimated costs to sell. The fair values of the biological assets are
determined based on the most recent market transaction prices. Any
change in fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biological asset
is included in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated with
a customer for the construction of an asset or a group of assets,
where the customer is able to specify the major structural elements
of the design. The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in note 2(v)(ii). When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract at the end of
the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period
are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised
profit less recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented
in statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due from
contract work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet
paid by the customer are included under “Trade receivables”. Amount
received before the related work id performed are presented as
“Receipt in advance” under “Other payables and accurals”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(0)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(k)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
to the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss unless
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy for borrowing costs
set out in note 2(x).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
2(u)(), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as “restricted
cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents
in the statement of financial position and cash flow statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subjected to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
participates in the central pension scheme (the “CPS”) operated
by the local municipal government for all of its staff. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 8% to 20% of their
payroll costs to the CPS. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CPS, except to the extent that
they are included in the cost of investments not yet recognised
as an expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Employee benefits (continued)

(s)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employee are accounted
for as increase in value of investments in subsidiary in the
Company’s statement of financial position which is eliminated
on consolidation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless
it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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(1) CHEBFZMBRER - B RIRRH

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2
(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued Ui

EHERZHBER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within other payables and accruals. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that category
of asset. Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note 2(u)
(i) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in other payables and accruals in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 2(u)(iii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or were
not present obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with note 2(u)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(v)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the risks
and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered to the
purchasers and collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured. Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under receipts in advance within
other payables and accruals.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Contract revenue
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably:

—  revenue from a fixed price contract is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred to
date to estimated total contract costs for the contract; and

— revenue from a cost plus contract is recognised by
reference to the recoverable costs incurred during the
period plus an appropriate proportion of the total fee,
measured by reference to the proportion that costs
incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of the
contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(v) Revenue recognition (continued)
(iv) Rental income from operating leases

(v)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset.

Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Service income
Service income is recognised when the relevant services have
been rendered.

(vi) Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(vii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(viii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are credited to a deferred income account
and are released to profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant assets by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FE&BK (%)
(w) Translation of foreign currencies (w) AhiHE

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. The
results of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related

to the Group if that person:

U)

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

)

(i

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

Notes to the Financial Statements

OB R %W

EEGFBOR (8)
(x) fEEEBAR

Wiig - BRILEAEERBENRER
K (YRR KEREEFEAERTER
BRBE) FRZEERAN — B BT
B - R EERAERENARIIZ -

EERAERREREEN MO BERE
TEELBERXKRG - fERALE
RERKEERGR Wfﬁ BRBEE
FILBHRE EEETE

o
=)

4

+ﬁA§%§F¢ﬁmﬁLi%Eb
EAMDEHTHATTE - BEHkF
IEEERARERL -

Wt 7y

(@)

—BATHEEZRETAA TS
AR BASEMRER

) EHlEREAE
i) HEEEEEAFE: ¥

iy ABAEEXAEEZRANHE
BEBAE -

BEATRAKRENERREATEE
B

ERAKEAR-SEH
RAGIE- RS FNCIR

(i ﬁ,x
=N
ARFAZMBLRZERE

i) —-HEERE—ZENEZ
N

35|'
ol IF &

30

|

puiis
> ke D>

iy MEZTEHAR-F=FH24
&

vy —HEBAEE=ZFZAER

140



2

Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A7
Annual Report 2016 —E— < EF#f

Notes to the Financial Statements

o Rk W

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2
Related parties (continued)

(y)

(z)

(b)

Segment reporting

(continued)

()  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for

financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar

economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements are
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant
effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

(i) Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
the properties with similar lease and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources including: (i) current
prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition
or location (or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted
to reflect those differences; (i) recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iii) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment properties based
on valuations determined by independent and professional qualified
valuers. Significant judgement and assumptions are required in
assessing the fair value of the investment properties. Details of the
judgement and assumptions are disclosed in note 16.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(if)

(iii)

Estimation of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale according to their
net realisable value based on the realisability of these properties. Net
realisable value for properties under development is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the selling price based on
prevailing market conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion (including land costs). Net
realisable value for completed properties held for sale is determined
by reference to management’s estimates of the selling price based on
prevailing market conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses.
Provision is made when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be realised. The assessment
requires the use of judgement and estimates.

Estimation of fair values of identifiable assets arising
from acquisition of a subsidiary

As disclosed in the note 37 to the financial statements, the Group
acquired 95% equity interests in Fairwind Power Limited (“Fairwind”)
during current year for a consideration of HK$2,264,233,000. The
Group, after assessing whether the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed constitute a business, determined that the acquisition of
Fairwind is a business combination rather than an asset acquisition.
Consequently, the Group adopted acquisition accounting, which
reflects the acquired business in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition has been completed. Using
acquisition accounting requires the acquired assets and assumed
liabilities to be recorded as of the acquisition date at their respective
fair values. Any excess of estimated fair values of acquired net
identified assets over the purchase consideration is recorded as gain
on a bargain purchase. The Group makes judgements and estimates
in relation to the fair value allocation of the purchase price. The fair
value of acquired assets and assumed liabilities, which is determined
using valuation techniques. Estimating the fair value assigned to
each class of acquired assets and assumed liabilities is based on
expectations and assumptions, in particular in relation to the current
prices of property interests, the expected growth rate and the discount
rate.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by business units, which are organised
based on their products and services. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments:

(@) the property development segment engages in the development of
residential, industrial and commercial properties;

(b)  the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial and
commercial properties for their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management of
both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale of
industrial and commercial products; and

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the hotel operations,
manufacture and sale of aluminum alloy products and agricultural
products, design and construction of gardens and other businesses.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, restricted cash, cash and cash
equivalents, equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, tax payable, an amount
due to the immediate holding company, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations.
The adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from such measurement.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4 HEEHE (H)
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the DEMEEREREDL2ZH %EE\ SHE
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing B REBHRAMEBETRS -

market prices.

Property Property Property
2016 development  investment management Manufacture Others Total
“E-RE VS NERE NEER Rig Hfts @
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TARL TAR ThRL ThRL ThRL ThR

Segment revenue: AERE

Sales to customers HETRF 17,807,883 764,802 1,556,802 298,050 926,456 21,353,993

Intersegment sales NEERHE - 17,402 50,997 - 60,553 128,952
17,807,883 782,204 1,607,799 298,050 987,009 21,482,945

Reconciliation H5%

Elimination of intersegment sales HHENEREE (128,952)

Revenue e 21,353,993

Segment results before increase in -~ REMELR L EEMET2

fair value of investment properties DiEEE 4,764,075 956,650 124,634 38,403 1,342,067 7,225,829
Increase in fair value of investment REMENLE

properties #1 - 1,204,139 - - - 1,204,139
Recognition of change in fair value ABEGEZDER

of completed properties held for MENREED

sale upon transfer to investment BRELE

properties ES - 97,375 - - - 97,375

Recognition of change in fair value of ~ BZEERWELAE
properties under development upon B RS
transfer to investment properties BEmE = 557,141 - - - 557,141

Segment results after increase in -~ RENEAREEME

fair value of investment properties 2 E%%& 4,764,075 2,815,305 124,634 38,403 1,342,067 9,084,484
Reconciliation ik
Elimination of intersegment results HEDEuEE (124,874)
Interest income LN 263,938
Fair value gain on financial SRIAZAAE

instruments, net WiHE 870
Corporate and other unallocated NAREAMADE

expenses £A (93,459)
Finance costs BERR (838,167)
Profit before tax BRHADRR 8,292,792
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4 HEHEE (8D

Property Property Property
2016 development  investment management Manufacture Others Total
ZE-RE NERR NERE NEER B Hil et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TEn TEn T T T
Segment assets PREE 52,519,669 25,025,456 275,089 157,525 4,050,420 82,028,159
Reconciliation o
Corporate and other unallocated assets A REHANTEE 14,517,406
Total assets BEE 96,545,565
Segment liabilities TEER 15,444,021 3,119,732 717,452 95,614 3,563,389 22,940,208
Reconciliation Bt
Corporate and other unallocated RAREMRAE
liabilities B 37,384,423
Total liabilities aaf 60,324,631
Other segment information: HttpBEH
Depreciation Vil 61,406 25,285 19,867 3,612 70,437 180,607
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BN LEERE
payments B - - - - 1,065 1,065
Share of profits and losses of AN NG
associates and joint ventures BRI RER 56,650 490,256 - - 596,070 1,142,976
Write-down of properties under YRENE
development AE 503,499 - - - - 503,499
Write-down of completed properties  B{EFE 7B ERME
held for sale iE 353,754 - - - - 353,754
Interests in associates REBE N AR 2,426,225 95,931 309 15,133 1,457,223 3,994,821
Interests in joint ventures REENAER 3,118,267 - 11,052 - 171,612 3,300,931
Capital expenditure* EAx 10,993,203 579,551 18,641 3,389 66,092 11,660,876
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) IYEEE (8
Property Property Property
2015 development  investment  management  Manufacture Others Total
“Z-1% mERE mERE nE¥ER fiE At Lk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FAL
Segment revenue: RN
Sales to customers HETRP 15,056,911 789,473 1,369,006 430,800 781,982 18,428,172
Intersegment sales PERHE - 7,060 25,913 - 148,154 181,127
15,056,911 796,533 1,394,919 430,800 930,136 18,609,299
Reconciliation H5
Elimination of intersegment sales HENBREE (181,127
Revenue Wiz 18,428,172
Segment results before increase in fair R &%% 1 7 B M4 2
value of investment properties SREE 4853632 610977 84,901 11438 (68830) 5502118
Increase in fair value of investment ~ BEYEALE
properties byl - 1,082,176 - - - 1,082,176
Recognition of change in fair value BABEREY
of completed properties held for BERMEALE
sale upon transfer to investment BHUBERE
properties mE - 432,102 - - - 432,102
Segment results after increase in -~ REMEALERME
fair value of investment properties ~ EX& 4,853,632 2,125,255 84,901 11,438 (58,830) 7,016,396
Reconciliation il
Elimination of intersegment results HiEPEREE (30,621)
Interest income FIBMA 344,594
Dividend income and unallocated gains [k A &R A Eilhz 27,066
Fair value gain on financial SRIAZARE
instruments, net Iz EE 580
Corporate and other unallocated INSVER R
expenses R (138,902)
Finance costs BERA (708,484)
Profit before tax B AR A 6,510,629
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4 S ()

Property Property Property
2015 development investment  management  Manufacture QOthers Total
ik ELE WERE WEER BqiE Eft &3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L L TiEL TEL TiEL TEL

Segment assets PREE 48,747,765 22,729,484 162,570 184,983 3,924,577 75,749,379
Reconciliation %
Corporate and other unallocated assets AR R A KA REE 15,335,839
Total assets BEE 91,085,218
Segment liabilities PE8E 16,624,958 1,057,481 623,955 39,371 499,493 18,845,258
Reconciliation g3
Corporate and other unallocated RAREMRAE

liabilities 8E 36,670,894
Total liabilities BafE 55,516,152
Other segment information: At &R
Depreciation nE 66,968 17,927 10,903 8,403 51,735 155,936
Amortisation of prepaid land lease B THAETE

payments @i - - - - 1,309 1,309
Share of profits and losses of associates JE{5H 42 R R4 G AT

and joint ventures e g 344,054 207,355 10,507 - 45,929 607,845
Write-down of properties under BEANE

development AE 118,272 - - - - 118,272
Write-down of completed properties  H{EFEZBEKIE

held for sale HE 254,118 - - - - 254,118
Interests in associates R R A AIER 3,592,512 80,084 3,791 15,133 146,507 3,838,027
Interests in joint ventures REERTER 2,878,888 - 24,822 - 133,600 3,037,310
Capital expenditure* EAZ 6,094,347 816,255 5,792 18,913 8,600 6,943,907
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * EALHBERAENE  BFEREE  REDE

investment properties, properties under development, completed properties held for BRPE  BESEZEERDERREREA
sale and acquisition of subsidiaries. Al

As the Group generates substantially all of its revenue from customers HRASBERABIWREEBURFEKRRE 2
domiciled in Mainland China and most of its non-current assets are located BEPAXRIAERBEEGMAHBIARE - 5l
in Mainland China, no geographical information is presented. BEIWERER -
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Wi ~ S A R B
WaEREHENE AEXRIXEMMER
B HERA - BEEERAREMBA -

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5
Revenue, represents proceeds from the sale of properties, commercial and
industrial goods, rental income, management fee income and others.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: Wi EARFMEZ 0T
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue g
Sale of properties HEME 17,807,883 15,056,911
Gross management fee income ERBIAGE 1,556,802 1,369,006
Gross rental income from investment properties ~ BEWEMR SN BEE 764,802 789,473
Sale of commercial and industrial goods HEmERTEER 298,050 430,800
Others Hi 926,456 781,982
21,353,993 18,428,172
Other income and gains HAgA R i
Bank interest income |ITFIEMA 80,370 72,526
Interest income from joint ventures BENBZFBRA 95,658 191,723
Interest income from independent third parties KEBIE=F2F2WA 87,910 80,345
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 37) FREEE 2 FE (H337) 526,249 -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREBEMEZFIE 4,081 26,302
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZFIE 3,599 -
Government grant (note 34) BB (BiEs4) 14,704 10,175
Others Hith 19,771 234,218
832,342 615,289
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FINANCE COSTS 6 REBA
2016 2015
—E-RE 0%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FET
Interest on: FBLH
Bank loans RITEW 775,154 1,015,533
Other borrowings HibiEE 242,418 139,641
Loans from the ultimate holding company [ERRIER AT ZER 202,325 214,268
Loans from the immediate holding company ERNERERRFZER 26,861 -
Loans from fellow subsidiaries ENRANBARZER = 7,575
Loans from non-controlling shareholders JER SRR AR R 2 B3 14,049 7,705
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not ~ WIEEBERE AL EEZ2BEE
at fair value through profit or loss 2R B RS A% 1,260,807 1,384,722
Less: Interest expense capitalised into properties  J5 : BT MEF BFHY
under development -v:N(d (422,640) (676,238)
838,167 708,484
The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.42% — 4.89% per annum . BERADRE BI42%E489%E R (ZE—1F
(2015: 3.53% — 5.64%). £ 353%%5.64%)
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B i i
AEBZBRBAENE MG/ GIA) THISE
RE

(b)

(a) Cost of sales (a) SHERA
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of properties and inventories sold BEENENFENR 10,455,681 9,842,550
Cost of services provided AR A 2,627,553 2,211,138
13,083,234 12,053,688

Staff costs (b) HTHA
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
Wages and salaries TERE® 1,198,107 965,971
Equity-settled share option expense PARR R 32 A5t 27 B P e ) s 11,823 24,171
Pension scheme contributions BRSFEMETFE 112,098 94,665
1,322,028 1,084,807

151



Shenzhen Investment Limited ZEIF AT B2 7
Annual Report 2016 —ZE— < EF#f

Notes to the Financial Statements

OB R R W R

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7 BRBUATERA ()
(c) Other items (c) HAbEH
2016 2015
“E-XRE —Z-hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fisE THERT TET
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments J&{< £ i & 8 % 54 14 1,065 1,309
Depreciation e 13 180,607 155,936
Impairment losses AR
— trade receivables — JEUBR X 26 9,150 844
— other receivables — Bt EMGIE 1,401 3,264
10,551 4,108
Reversal of impairment losses of trade P U B R0 (B 48 )
receivables 26 (1,601) (157)
Write-down of inventories FERE
— properties under development —BRERBYE 18 503,499 118,272
— completed properties held for sale —BEREZBRRE 17 353,754 254,118
— others — HEfth 4,876 -
862,129 372,390

Minimum lease payments under operating — +i RIEFZELEHESIK

leases in respect of land and buildings itk 21,017 27,597
Net foreign exchange gain BB 5 U 3 AR (10,582) (7,883)
Rental income on investment properties KENERSWARERLE

less direct operating expenses of f32115,200,0007 7T

HK$115,200,000 (2015: HK$98,224,000) (ZZE—F4F :

98,224,000/ T (649,602) (691,249)
Changes in fair value of contingent FERT BB A A)

consideration payable to the immediate FARERNE

holding company o 34,620 33,136
Loss on disposal of property, HEWNE  BEKR

plant and equipment ZER 4,836 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZERMIN & 5,250 5,270
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is calculated at 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group has no
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”),
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the BVI.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT") at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income during the year.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation
of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

HEOHBRZ AR

ZE-RERBNER  BEREFAGITER
REFIIZ165% (B —F4E : 165%) 2B Rt

s
o

ERAKEFEALENEBELIRNERT G
M- BT ELABFEHE R -

RERBEZES (RBRZEE]) ZRAR
Bl AREBERRBRZESHMEMAE
Bio

REVBAGEE FR - PENBL AR
B BERVMARETE R RN HAEXHAEH
([EXAERER] -

B AR ([T ER]) R Es
0%ZE60RREF R - T EEHENE
FTSFBR BB i (F AR - ERKARRH
BMERETHZ TNHEY -

2016 2015
“E-RE —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FAET
Current tax: BIEAFRIE -

Mainland China CIT REIARECEMERER 2,326,349 1,633,155
Withholding tax on dividend i B B 139,402 130,174
LAT in Mainland China B AR 1 IR (B R 3,190,927 1,937,337

Deferred tax EEHEER
Mainland China CIT HERECERSHER (561,709) (34,520)
Withholding tax on dividend fix S B 4,968 35,651
LAT in Mainland China B AR £ R (E R (278,026) (278,420)
Total tax charge for the year REEREXLER 4,821,911 3,423,377
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 8§
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

FERERZINEHR (H)

2016 2015
—E-XE —h%F
HK$°000 % HK$’'000 %
THERT TAT
Profit before taxation R %5 A v A 8,292,792 6,510,629
Notional tax on profit before taxation, & EERAHEFE 2R
calculated at the rate applicable to HaDEH 2
the respective tax jurisdictions ZEHE 2,122,436 25.6 1,612,194 24.8
Profits and losses attributable to joint & % A &) &5t < A 7] {5
ventures and associates i R B (285,744) (3.4) (151,961) (2.3)
Income not subject to tax BERT 2 WA (145,583) (1.8) (4,901)
Tax effect of current year's tax losses K ERE R Z$¢F%%IEJ§§
not recognised BehiBz 2 348,531 4.2 202,720 3.1
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses AHAZBEFERIES
utilised BrhByE (15,096) (0.2) (4,238) (0.1)
Tax effect of temporary differences not REMER 2 L =% 2/
recognised BRE 207,403 2.5 93,098 1.4
Expenses not deductible for tax TENHZ Y 260,918 3.1 266,452 4.1
Effect of withholding tax on AEBHEMEQR
distributable profits of the Group’s DIREFZ
PRC subsidiaries BHRTE 144,370 1.8 165,825 2.5
LAT T L ER 2,912,901 35.1 1,658,917 25.6
LAT deductible for PRC CIT purpose  zt e B 4> 2 B8 5 o 3034,
2T ER (728,225) (8.8) (414,729) 6.4)
Actual tax expense ERHERY 4,821,911 58.1 3,423,377 52.6

The share of taxes attributable to associates and joint ventures amounting
to HK$619,121,000 (2015: HK$630,027,000) is included in “Share of
profits less losses of joint ventures and associates” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

B e kA A EIGTIE A619,121,0008 T

(ZZ—n%:
AEES

630,027,000/ 7C) &t AR A ERER

ERRRBEREENRER] BT -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9 EHHEEEITBAEME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed REEBLDAEGIEIB3N)ER AR (HEESF
pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BER) BOIZ BELAEEESERERT
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BAEBMEWMT :
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE “T—AhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FEHT
Fees wE 1,750 1,750
Other emoluments: Hips -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREDNG 9,053 9,792
Equity-settled share option expense (note) ARAS 2 R S () 2,437 5,442
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFTEMER 1,307 1,424
12,797 16,658
14,547 18,408
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors and M AR 7 ERER L IE R AN R B RE 2

chief executive under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(s)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy,
includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of

equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of
options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the

directors’ report and note 35.

BRTEERBRITHABZEREZ GEE - %
SRREBENERAEBEHUBRONINREE
T8 (FRMEE2)(0) < &5 BR R I B R A
TARBBAWAKERAARBEFE SR
ERNZBHRAE -

FEENMNREZ FBERERLBREZ T2 KRR
FEER BERESSREZ [BRETE] R
R
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9 EFRERHTBEAEME (8)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BB ES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year KNEEENBUFNTESHEOT ¢

were as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RiEm 330 330
Li Wai Keung FRRE 380 380
Wong Yau Kar, David BRE 380 380
1,090 1,090
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent AEEUEAMENELIENTES 2
non-executive directors during the year (2015: Nil). & (ZE—RF E)-
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BATEFRIEMITES
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
e DS
EER Xz Efre
e BEYFE BREREX STEIMR k)

HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$'000 HK$’000  HK$°000
FTExT TERT FTExT FTERT FTERT

2016 —T—RF

Executive directors: HITES
Lu Hua EES - 3,379 761 509 4,649
Liu Chong 2= - 1,634 510 224 2,368
Huang Wei =E - 2,918 656 424 3,998
Mou Yong BB - 1,122 510 150 1,782
- 9,053 2,437 1,307 12,797

Non-executive directors:  FEHTES :

Wu Jiesi RES 330 - - - 330
Huang Yige** "B 330 - - - 330
660 - - - 660
660 9,053 2,437 1,307 13,457
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9 EFREFTBEAEME (8)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BUTEFEREMTESR ()
(continued)
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
e PARRAR
R Itz Rike
e EWNE  BRERX RELESA k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TR TAT TRET TET

2015 “E-hF
Executive directors: WITES:
Lu Hua EE - 3,405 1,413 515 5,333
Liu Chong f= - 1,856 947 268 3,071
Gao Shengyuan* == - 1,665 1,342 238 3,245
Huang Wei* =g - 1,609 793 225 2,627
Mou Yong BB - 1,257 947 178 2,382
- 9,792 5,442 1,424 16,658
Non-executive directors:  JFHITEE :
Wu Jiesi RER 330 - - - 330
Huang Yige B 330 - - - 330
660 - - - 660
660 9,792 5,442 1,424 17,318
* On 21 July 2015, Gao Shengyuan resigned as an executive director and * R-B-—RE+A-+—0 SETEEH
Huang Wei was appointed as an executive director. TEEREEEEEAHTES -
On 18 January 2017, Huang Yige resigned as a non-executive director and o R-E—+E—F+/\B 5 KREEES
Liu Shichao was appointed as a non-executive director. ﬁ§$&§mﬁg§§(ﬂ%#ﬁﬁ§$ o
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i

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10 fakE#HER

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2015: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2015: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor the chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

AEEZIARRHEERE-28Z (-2~
IF: ZR8F) RFEFIMEFBEHINEL
XHIFH9 - B TME (ZT—RF : WA) FAR
AEERERTHABZERFREENAFRE 2
BeFBEmT

2016 2015

—E-RE 0%

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2UREMNG 3,302 3,499
Equity-settled share option expense PARAS N 2 iR = 1,020 1,894
Pension scheme contributions RREFT B 449 535
4,771 5,928

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HeBATHEZFEEIFRRTHRARZE
REFEEHAMT :

Number of employees

EE¥A
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,00178 7L £3,000,0005% 7T - 2
2 2

In prior years, share options were granted to two non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in note 35 to the
financial statements. The fair value of these options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RBEFER  MAFEFRFIERTRARLZ
RERHERRRENTEERGMERBRE
ARE—SHENHNMHEREM DI REE
BN ZSBREZAAE (AEREBHRR
BaRkAER) CRELBHREE - Mt AXF
EMBHREREEDAALIGFEZRERRT
HABZE&EHEEME C HEERA -
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$3,170,581,000 (2015: HK$2,868,796,000) and the weighted
average of 7,484,946,956 ordinary shares (2015: 7,073,029,529) in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

11

R A

(a) HRIEAREF
BREABFZAEDRBADAERZR
RERAFEEEF3,170,581,00087€T (ZF
— R4 :2,868,796,000/57T) RO EITE R
B 0 F 35 817 484,946,9560% (=T — T
1 7,073,029,5290% ) + SHEMT ¢

EBERNEFLIE

Number of shares

RBEE

2016 2015

—EB-RE —T-HEF

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—RA—HAEBTLERK 7,384,016,988 6,656,055,289

Effect of shares issued BRETRHZFE = 375,944,444
Effect of shares issued in respect of AR B3 1T D

scrip dividends Va7 97,856,506 -
Effect of share options exercised TEERECFE

(note 36(b)(ii)) (PR #E36(0) (i) 3,073,462 41,029,796

Weighted average number of ordinary Wt+ZA=+—Hz
shares at 31 December LE AR N T B 7,484,946,956 7,073,029,529

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$3,170,581,000 (2015: HK$2,868,796,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 7,486,167,671 shares (2015:
7,073,647,254), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

BREHRF
BRESBNZHEDRBEAARAER
B 38 JE 1k 3% #13,170,581,0008 7T (Z & —
B F : 2,868,796,00078 jr) K X @ A% 0
T 19 #7,486,167,6710 (= T — 1L & :
7,073,647,254%)  sHEMT -

(b)

EERNEFIE (BF)

Number of shares

RGO EE
2016 2015
—B-AF —T-h%F
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ A=+—RZ2LBBMETF
at 31 December 19¥ 7,484,946,956  7,073,029,529

Effect of deemed issue of shares under
the Company’s share option scheme for nil
consideration (note 35):

BB AR AR 2R EE S
TRH 2z E
(Bf#E35)

1,220,715 617,725

7,486,167,671 7,073,647,254
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12 DIVIDENDS 12 KB
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FET
Dividends recognised as distribution during BRABERDRZKE
the year:
Final dividend declared for 2015 — HK13.00 ERZE-RFRPRE — TR13.00
cents per share (2015: declared for 2014 — Bl (ZE—RF : ER=ZT—H
HK13.00 cents per share) (i) FREME — FMRI3.0050L) ()
Scrip shares RERH 751,256 4,846
Cash B4 208,666 954,759
959,922 959,605
Interim — HK7.00 cents (2015: HK3.00 cents) per 1 EAf 8 — A% L @ AR7.0055 1L
ordinary share (ii) (ZZ—FF : 3.0081) (i
Scrip shares RERD 15,733 -
Cash e 519,151 221,521
534,884 221,521
Dividends proposed after the end of the reporting & HEE DR ZES ¢
period:
Final dividend of HK10.00 cents (2015: final REANG B AT 3@ A%10.007& L
dividend of HK13.00 cents) per ordinary (ZZ—1F : RPKS
share (iii) 13.007 1) (i) 764,916 959,922
Special dividend of HK5.00 cents (2015: special %5 plIiX 8 &A% & @ AR5.00/8 1l (=&
dividend of nil) per ordinary share (i) —HF  BRIRSZEN) (i) 382,458 -
1,147,374 959,922

(i)

(i)

The declared final dividend of HK13.00 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 was paid in August 2016. The declared final dividend of HK13.00
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 was paid in August 2015.

On 29 August 2016, the board of directors has declared an interim dividend of
HK7.00 cents per share. The shareholders were given the option of receiving such
dividend wholly in cash, or wholly in new fully paid share(s) of the Company in lieu
of cash, or partly in cash and partly in the form of scrip shares.

On 27 March 2017, the board of directors recommends a final dividend of HK10.00
cents per share and a special dividend of HK5.00 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: final dividends of HK13.00 cents per share and
special dividend of nil). The proposed final and special dividends will be paid in cash
but shareholders will be given the option of receiving such dividend wholly in new
fully paid share(s) of the Company in lieu of cash, or partly in cash and partly in
the form of scrip shares. The proposed final and special dividends for the year are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the period.

(i

BERZBE-T—AGT-_A=-+-HBLEEZ
KEBEERISBUNER T A~FN\AX »
BERZBE-T-—WET-_A=+-HLEEZ
REREERIB0BIER-Z—RENAXN -

A\CE-RENAZTAR EFEERTHKRE
BE700E - BRREERE2HAREHA - %
2EARREZHBRBN - KO URE REBD
DA R 38R B D 2 T R MR AR,

R-E—+EZA-t+tA BEEGHHE_T—
NETZA=T-HUESERZRERBREGHR
10.0075 11l J 5 51 A% B 2 AR5.008 1L (ZT—HF -
REBEFI3.0040 - RIS FREBW) -
HERRARBREMERRS - RRBERERI
BehR  S2BURRRZHERES - B
MRS REDUAARR R Z F R KM 2 A R BR
B AFERRERPRERFRREARRRARR
gﬁ%@%%@ﬁﬁ@rm&ﬁmﬁiﬁiﬁ%ﬁ
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 W% R R

Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Plantand Construction
(note) improvements  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
AELIHR HENE  GH - %E
B (W) £ Rikf RE  HEREE  HRIR 2
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TAR  TAR  TER  TER TR TAR TR
At 31 December 2015 and A\-F-RF+-F=1-H
at 1 January 2016: kZ5-7§-R-H:
Cost or valuation WAFE 3,181,121 33,113 282,157 9,519 161,02 1,020,861 5054823
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (387,626) (134,887)  (217,838) (75,055) (95,241) - (910,647)
Net carrying amount BEFE 2,793,495 178,226 64,319 21,464 65,811 1,020,861 4,144,176
At 1 January 2016, net of accumulated R=E—XE-A-8-
depreciation ENBZHE 2,793,495 178,226 64,319 21,464 65,811 1,020,861 4,144,176
Additions RE 5,347 25,834 31,237 1,146 1,098 104,804 169,466
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAT - - 1,215 448 383 - 2,046
Disposals e = - (1,557) (335) (6,601) - (8,493)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBARA - - (540) (161) (15,332) - (16,033)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ AFETERE (98,490) (39,584) (26,394) (8,665) (7,474) - (180,607)
Exchange realignment B A (182,239) (11,412) (3,157) (1,042) (3,965) (64,429)  (266,244)
At 31 December 2016, net of RZE-1E
acoumulated depreciation T2A=+-B &1k
2iE 2,518,113 153,064 65,123 12,855 33920 1,061,236 3,844,311
At 31 December 2016: RZE-RE
t-h=t-8:
Cost or valuation RARAE 2,965,768 318,421 287,118 86,698 92,859 1,061,236 4,812,106
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (447,655) (165,363)  (221,995) (73,843) (58,939) - (967,795)
Net carrying amount SmFE 2,518,113 153,064 65,123 12,855 33920 1,061,236 3,844,311
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 13 %% - B Kkt (%)

Leasenold
land and Furniture,
buildings Leasehold  fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
(note) ~ improvements  equipment vehicles ~ machinery in progress Total
RETHR nENE G- kB
£ () £ Rt NE  HEREE  ERIR #%

HK§'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKEO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'00O
TAR ThR TERL ThR TARL TEL ThR

At 31 December 2014 and RIE-IE+-A=1—H

at 1 January 2015; KZE-7F-A-8:
Cost or valuation RAGfE 3,228,917 270,457 258,648 95,009 171,197 30,831 4,055,059
Accumulated depreciation 2378 (40892 (105399 (206504  (66611)  (95.151) - (145
Net carrying amount RHTE 2,888,025 165,058 52,144 28,398 76,046 30,831 3,240,502

At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated  R-E-1E-F-8-

depreciation BHRZHE 2,888,025 165,058 52,144 28,398 76,046 30,831 3,240,502
Additions RE - 57,994 42,240 2,41 930 191,839 295,474
Transfer from investment properties ~ EEBRENE

(note 16) (fiiz16) - - - - - 800637 800,637
Reclassification Exip 4,379 (3779 342 - 163 (1,111) -
Transfer from completed properties held BB EZ{EFEL

for sale BERNE 69,714 - - - - - 69,714
Disposals e (2,042) (41 (1,394) - (270) - 4117
Depreciation provided during the year ~ AEEHERE (76,733) (35,381) (27,596) (8,444) (7,782) - (155936)
Exchange realignment B} 5% (89,848) (5,261) (1417) (961) (3276) (1335 (102,09
At 31 December 2015, R-E-RF+-p=t-R"

net of accumulated depreciation AR ZTE 2,793,495 178,226 64,319 21,464 65811 1,020,861 4,144,176
At 31 December 2015: RZE-1E+-f=1-R:

Cost or valuation BAgfhE 3,181,121 33,113 282,157 96,519 161,052 1,020861 5,054,823

Accumulated depreciation Z:hE (387,626 (134,887) (217,838) (75,059) (95,241) - (910,647)

Net carrying amount RHFE 2,793,495 178,226 64,319 21,464 65,811 1,020,861 4,144,176

Note: The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revaluated in 2014 and the surplus M AEEZHELHREFR-_S—NESHGEHE
on revaluation of HK$242,536,000 were recognised in asset revaluation reserve. EERE242536,0008 TR EEEHHERAER -
These leasehold land and buildings are situated in Mainland China under medium ZERELREFHMN TREARE - WA+ EHE
term leases. WA -
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Had the revaluated properties held for own use carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would have been:

13 W%~ Wp Rkt (B0

HEREERZERNERKARRATEA
B ABREESS

2016 2015

—E-RF ZE-hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx THT

Leasehold land and buildings HELMRET 2,312,121 2,555,675

On 5 January 2011, Shenzhen Nongke Group Limited (“Nongke”), a
subsidiary acquired by the Group on 22 August 2014, entered into an
agreement with a real estate developer (the “Counterparty”), an independent
third party. Pursuant to the agreement, Nongke agreed to exchange certain
of its properties located at Longxi Garden (& % {t [&), Futian District,
Shenzhen, the PRC with an carrying amount of HK$314,123,000 (including
investment properties of HK$301,833,000 and property, plant and
equipment of HK$12,290,000) at 31 December 2016, for new properties
with total gross floor areas of 8,469.85 square metres to be built by
the Counterparty. The new properties will be built by the Counterparty at
the current location of Longxi Garden upon demolishment of the existing
properties owned by Nongke. At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the timetable for the demolishment of these properties is not
determined yet.

On 3 September 2012, Nongke entered into a supplemental agreement
with the Counterparty. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, Nongke
agreed to further dispose of certain of its buildings located at Longxi
Garden with a carrying amount of HK$181,368,000 as at 31 December
2016 to the Counterparty for a cash consideration of RMB250,457,000, of
which HK$30,000,000 had been received by Nongke as of 31 December
2016 and was recorded as receipt in advance within “other payables
and accruals”. At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Counterparty has no obligations under the supplemental agreement to settle
the remaining consideration of HK$220,457,000 until the commencement
of demolishment of these properties.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has not yet obtained the ownership
certificates in respect of the buildings with a net carrying amount of
HK$361,092,000 (2015: HK$344,270,000).

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s land and buildings in Mainland
China with a net carrying amount of approximately HK$678,753,000 (2015:
HK$728,180,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group
(note 30(a)(i)).

R-ZZE——F—FRA  FIFEREIERA
(e (FAEER-_2-—NENA-+=H
Wiy —HMBAR) BBYE=FEHERE
wmEhn)sumE - R AE+-F=
+—B REZHE  BEEEBARFRER
miEHERZEEKEE /314,123,008 7T (2
R B YE301,833,0008 T ME - BEERE
12,290,000 70) 2 B FREAMEE R HFTIRE
BEMERS460.85F H K ZHME - MER
RERHER 2B AME R ERE AN EELE
BRI ERMN - RSV BBRRENAS  ZE
MEZBREBERDABE

R-ZE——F#NA=R BHEHFIIHT
F o BEHRGZ  ERREREHE-—SHE
HURBEEERRBAER=ZE—A"F+=ZA=
+—HA181,3680008 T2 & TET - BER(E
BARE250,457,000T F HE-Z—~F+ A
=+—H " EREWKEEA30,000,0008 T - I
EABEFRBATEMES R RETER] - B
ZEMBEREEMBY  UHIRZENERRE
FRAVEZEEREHRBRBEERT ZRE
220,457,000/ 7T °

R-ZB—RE+-A=1+—8 AEEHAR
BEREFE 4361092008 T (ZE—h%F:
344,270,000/ 70) ZIEF 2 BHIERE

RZE—R"F+-A=Z1+—0 AEERFEKX
B E 2 BREFE4)5678,753,0008 L (=5 —
AF 1 728,180,000 L) 2 AT LM RIEFEIE
B ERAEEERBITER ZER (300
i)
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14 PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14 FM MM ERHE
2016 2015
—E-XRE i e
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAL
Carrying amount at 1 January R—R—BZKHEE 41,741 44,688
Transfer from properties under development BRONEDYE
(note 18) (FfzE18) - 319
Charge for the year AEERH (1,065) (1,309)
Exchange realignment B i % (3,311) (1,957
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—BzEHE 37,365 41,741
Current portion included in prepayments, STABNRE i REMERGIE .
deposits and other receivables BNEE (1,282) (1,386)
Non-current portion JERNERER 36,083 40,355
Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments for land use rights in BN LWHEETIERERERHENFEZFEX
Mainland China held under medium term leases. Bt {F FRAE 2 TEN FUR ©
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GOODWILL 15 T&

HK$’000
FAL
Cost at 1 January 2015 RZE—RF-H-HZRA 322,765
Exchange realignment TR (223)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2015 R-E-RE+-A=1+—HzZREREAE 322,542

At 31 December 2015: WZE-—RF+=-fA=+—8":
Cost B 322,542
Accumulated impairment losses RiRERE -
Net carrying amount REFE 322,542
Cost at 1 January 2016 RZE-R"E-R—HZKR 322,542
Exchange realignment kS (302)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2016 RIE—RF+-_A=+—HZRARERE 322,240

At 31 December 2016: RZZE—RE+=-F=+—0:
Cost AR 322,240
Accumulated impairment losses RiREEE =
Net carrying amount RHFE 322,240

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated to the Group’s
property development cash-generating unit (“CGU”).

The recoverable amounts of the CGU is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by the Group’s senior management. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 2% (2015: 2%) which is consistent with
the forecasts included in industry reports. The growth rates used do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the business in which the
CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 12%
(2015: 12%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant business.

8 TR B A B A R

BRFBRHMBBZEE N EEARENEH
¥ReELEM ((REELEM]) -

ReEL Bz e RIREREAEERR
BEEABHEZ AFRRIBRECRRSRE
BRHEZEREEET -HBARFHRZRS
MERM2% (ZF—1F : 2%) ZIEFHMEE
BRRETHE  ZERRETERESAEHRA
B AERETERREELEMELER
B RBFHERER - B RERMI2BME X
(Z2—0%F :12%) TUAHFR - RAZHEEX
BB RRAEBESE HRER -
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 HEMHE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) MR H SR
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties  development
2016 —E-RE at fair value at fair value Total

BARE BARE
FIfR2ERE  SIRZBET

REME RENE k)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016 RZE—X"F—A—H
ZIREE 14,486,000 6,422,173 20,908,173
Additions NE = 555,826 555,826
Transfer from completed properties ERARBEGFEZCERYE
held for sale (note 17) (P &E17) 204,922 - 204,922
Transfer from properties under EREERPYE (H:118)
development (note 18) - 653,716 653,716
Recognition of change in fair value of ~ FEREZEFEZDZRME /
completed properties held for sale/ R Y e
properties under development upon EREMER
transfer to investment properties NAEEEE
(note 17 and 18) (BFz¥17%18) 97,375 557,141 654,516
Increase in fair value of investment REWMERRE
properties o 600,239 603,900 1,204,139
Disposal HE (22,247) - (22,247)
Exchange realignment fE i (868,246) (483,588) (1,351,834)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 R-T—X F+_-_A=+—H
ZEREE 14,498,043 8,309,168 22,807,211
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

16 #EWHE (H)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) HRmI{HEE (4)
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development
2015 —E—hF at fair value at fair value Total
BARE BARE
SR EERK  FIRZEEF
REME REME ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TET TET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2015 RZZE—RAF—A—BzZKAE 13,163,533 6,855,061 20,018,594
Additions NE - 615,598 615,598
Transfer to construction in progress EREEETR (M:313)
(note 13) - (800,637) (800,637)
Transfer from completed properties ERERBEGECEERDE
held for sale (note 17) (BFzx17) 589,317 - 589,317
Recognition of change in fair value of  EERZHIEFE 22 M ME
completed properties held for sale BREREYEE
upon transfer to investment AhE#
properties (note 17) (PHEE17) 432,102 - 432,102
Transfer to properties under HREERRPYE
development (note 18) (KfzE18) - (21,533) (21,533)
Increase in fair value of investment REWMERAE
properties 0 925,294 156,882 1,082,176
Disposal HE (61,860) - (61,860)
Exchange realignment B i T (562,386) (383,198) (945,584)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 R-Z—FE+-F=+—H
ZEREE 14,486,000 6,422,173 20,908,173

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China and

are held under medium term leases.

AEBZ REMEUNPEARE - YARHED

"B

RZF-R"ET-A=Zt-AZEEFENR
1,397,344,0007% 7T (= T — 11 FF : 1,226,953,000
BIL) ZAKEETHRANR HAET BB
FIBEMAHEE - ARENEZRBEE LT

N
&

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment
properties of the Group with a net carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,397,344,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$1,226,953,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant
certificates.
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

16 #&EME (8)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) MRMEEEIR ()
At 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment properties with a RZZE-—R"F+-A=+—H *EEK
net carrying amount of approximately HK$777,095,000 (2015: HEREFE 777,095,008 (ZE— &
HK$1,884,717,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the F :1,884,717,00087T) 2 HEMEIERA
Group (note 30(a)(iv). SEFTERITER R (HEE30()M) ©
The Group’s investment properties consist of several commercial AEEBENEBELEMNFE AR
and industrial properties in Mainland China. The directors of the JBERIEEF - ARREEERE
Company have determined that the investment properties consist MEZHEL BERERERENES
of two classes of asset, i.e., commercial and industrial, based on TRAMEEE HEERIX - A5H
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s ZEREMER_ST—R"E+_A=+—
investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2016 based on ARBUEZEEERMEFMEMpPHE
the valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent BENEEMBRAR (EE9ET AT
firm of professionally qualified property valuers who have among BHEMEeEReE  RWELNE
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent RERIGEFHAESETLR) 2(HEE
experience in the location and category of property being valued, at & A 4922807,211,0008 L (2 —HEF:
approximately HK$22,807,211,000 (2015: HK$20,908,173,000). 20,908,173,000/& T ) °

(b) Fair value hierarchy (b) 2 RAE S e

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

TREBRAGERRERRBLR AL
AE BERF-EAAESR(EER
EAMBREENET =NOAEIE)

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair IOMERRE PRBEHENBECER
value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the DE2REEREMERTREREREE N

observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e  |evel 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

e |evel 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

e  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

ZBANEEEMT

o EAfE: ERAE-LBAE
(FlmREEEXAENTERHR
RHEZRRMSRE) TEZAA

fmF

o E-RMME: RAE-_HRBAE (0
mABRE-RAIBEEHAE) B
ARAEATNABEGABFEZR
REFIERGABA A RHETS
HEZBAE

o FEZRRBE: RAEATUBRGA
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16 #EWMFE (H)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (b) ARMEFHEHE (4)

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016 using
BRANTBER-2—A"E+=A=1—H

ETZARENE
Unadjusted
quoted
prices Significant
in active  Observable unobservable
Recurring fair value markets inputs inputs
measurement for: BEMDNRETE (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REREZ ABE EAFTER

ERHERE BAE BAE
(5—FE) (5=F) (5=FE) M
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR Tz Tz Tz

Commercial properties HEETF -

18,893,412 18,893,412
3,913,799 3,913,799

Industrial properties T¥igF -

22,807,211 22,807,211
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16 HEMFE (H)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (b)

WRMEHIRAE ()

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using

ERAUTEEN -_"Z—RE+-RA=1+—8

BT ARERE
Unadijusted

quoted prices Significant

in active Observable  unobservable

Recurring fair value markets inputs inputs
measurement for: BEUARENE (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REHE 2 AHE ERPAEHR

EETISRE BAE BAE
(B—F8) (5-B) (B=R) ok
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FET FET TET FET
Commercial properties BEEF - - 16,768,302 16,768,302
Industrial properties T#@F - - 4,139,871 4,139,871

- 20,908,173 20,908,173

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2015: Nil).

The Group’s property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

REFER  F-RRFE-_RDAETE
VTEERAVEEEFERE=R(=F
—hFE)-

RETFHHE A RFRERE APETH
EF AEENEEELMBAE SR
BN REERRLAEEER -

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs to LT BEEMELEMBZEERERTEH A
the valuation of investment properties: HEIHE .
Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs Range
ER* EXTABREBAE &E
Commercial properties Comparison method (Discount)/premium on quality of the buildings (50%) — 25%
BEETF LR BFEEr (FR)/HE (2015: (40%) — (10%))
(50%) — 25%
(ZZ—F%F : (40%) - (10%))
Industrial properties Comparison method (Discount) on quality of the buildings (50%) — (5%
I3EF LA BFEEZ (WHR)

(50%) — (5%

)
(2015: (30%) — (5%))
)
(ZZ—5F : (30%) - (5%))

170



Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A7

Annual Report 2016 —E— < EF#f

Notes to the Financial Statements

B

£ W

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16

The fair value of investment properties located in the Mainland China is
determined using comparison method by reference to recent sales price
of comparable properties on a price per square meter basis, adjusted for
a premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group’s buildings
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for higher quality buildings

will result in a higher fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair value

measurements are as follows:

BEME ()

iR EARE 2 R ENERAE

EIRE

e

Vsl hik

ALEMEZTOHER (RETRER) KA

HEUAT T - L RR

/\/ﬁﬁ{fﬁ_ﬁ

MEERAEEET
BEMELRBIINRTINFE - EF
BER DR BETELS °

EEHS

ZEF-RANEFEZERFAEDHOT -

2016 2015
—nE —hE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THEx FAET
Commercial properties: BERET:
At 1 January n—A—H 16,768,302 16,327,052
Additions NE 555,826 615,598
Fair value adjustment (note) DRAERAE (M) 1,163,805 468,642
Recognition of change in fair value upon transfer  E{EFE 72 %HME /
from completed properties held for sale/ BEPYEERS
properties under development to investment REYEE
properties HRLAEE 654,516 432,102
Transfer from completed properties held for sale & B e ZET%JM%% 204,922 589,317
Transfer from properties under development ERaREPYE 653,716 -
Disposal HE (17,098) (61,860)
Transfer to properties under development EREUEPYE = (21,533)
Transfer to construction in process BREEETRE = (800,637)
Exchange realignment B i FH % (1,090,577) (780,379)
At 31 December wW+Z—A=+—8 18,893,412 16,768,302
Industrial properties: T¥EF:
At 1 January w—A—H 4,139,871 3,691,542
Fair value adjustment (note) INNEEEI(IES) 40,334 613,534
Disposal & (5,149) -
Exchange realignment Rk (261,257) (165,205)
At 31 December RN+=-—A=+—H 3,913,799 4,139,871
Note: Fair value adjustment of investment properties is recognised in the line item Wi BEYET DA EARRGABRE Y [BEYE

“increase in fair value of investment properties” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

AAREEM] —EPRER -
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17 COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, completed properties held for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$204,922,000
(2015: HK$589,317,000) were transferred to investment properties upon
change in use as evidenced by the signing of relevant tenancy agreements.
The excess of the fair value of these properties at the date of transfer over
their carrying amounts, amounting to approximately HK$97,375,000 (2015:
HK$432,102,000), was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

In addition, the application for ownership certificates of certain completed
properties held for sale located at Li Lin Terrace (Z#%2) and Li Cui Court
(%2 %) of Nongke and its subsidiaries (the “Nongke Group”) with a total
carrying value of HK$13,548,000 as at 31 December 2016 was still in
progress. Pursuant to the acquisition agreement between Nongke Group
and Shum Yip Holdings in 2014, any interest in the properties located at
Li Lin Terrace (##%5) and Li Cui Court (%22[) with the total carrying
amount of HK$13,548,000 as at 31 December 2016, of which the
ownership certificates have not yet been issued, shall be deemed to be
owned by Shum Yip Holdings if certain conditions are not satisfied by the
Nongke Group within a specified period of time.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with a net carrying amount of approximately nil (2015: HK$66,738,000)
were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 30(a)(i)).

During the year, write-down of completed properties held for sale located
in Mainland China of HK$353,754,000 (2015: HK$254,118,000) was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss due to
the decrease in the estimated net realisable value of certain completed
properties held for sale.

T FEfrEZ TR R

REZE-_ZT— R E+-_A=+-BiItEE"
REAEYN A2049220008 T (ZT—HF
589,317,000 7T) FHIEHFE 2B ERMENES
AR ERSEERRNER CERERE
WE - NERAH ZENEIAABEBLE
BREE D 4 597,375,008 L (ZE—RF
432,102,000/ 7C) * ERRABRANER o

o BRIRENBRAR ([BRER]) LR
AMAERGREA AT REREZEERY
¥W-E-RE+-A=+-HE@ELES
13,548,000/870) EFTEEZEMERET - BE
BREEERE (£E) R-T—NFET2EK
BiHe  WENEERETHRARENE TK
P R BMAE R BREZ WA BB EE
ZHENE (RZE—AFT-A=+—HE@
#2({8/513,548,0005T) HEMERHGRARAE
(£8) %5 -

RZE—RNE+-A=1+—H ' AEEFE@FE
AT (ZT—T1F :66,738,00087T) 2 HEFE
ZEERMECER  (EAAEEMERBTE
R (MIEE30(@) () ©

ik

FR - A RPEARE 2 BEFE BB MER
{8353,754,0007 7T (= F — AL 4F : 254,118,0007%
) ERASBEGEABERANER  BREDE
ETHERECEERYE 2 BT ERFER

o

=
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18 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18 BRhmE
2016 2015
ZE-XF 0%
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FHT
Land in Mainland China held under PARRERTR AR B KPR B 2 T3t
medium term leases, at cost: N
At beginning of year F1 23,954,811 25,521,732
Additions NE 1,857,078 1,088,470
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) WEEM B AR (MizE37) 9,266,654 -
Transfer from investment properties (note 16) BREREWME (M316) - 21,533
Transfer to completed properties held for sale EREBRMEGECEERYE (5,071,989) (1,695,796)
Transfer to prepaid land lease payments EREEMLEERE
(note 14) (PrtzE14) = (319)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16) EETIEME (M516) (388,002) -
Disposal HE (133,677) -
Exchange realignment MEH % (1,890,560) (980,809)
At 31 December »t—A=+—8H 27,594,315 23,954,811
Development expenditure, at cost: RS - R
At beginning of year =) 6,762,879 5,561,109
Additions NE 6,518,245 4,920,995
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) WM B AR (MizE37) 1,385,293 -
Transfer to completed properties held for sale BREBEGEZEERYE (5,824,928) (3,431,005)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16) BREREWE (H316) (265,714) -
Disposal HE (20,217) -
Exchange realignment fE 5 AR (205,303) (288,220)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8 8,350,255 6,762,879
Less: Write-down of properties under W BERBYE
development A (652,341) (406,165)
35,292,229 30,311,525
Properties under development expected TEE R U [El 2 B R
to be recovered: ER
Within one year —FR 6,387,674 5,001,472
After more than one year BiE—F1% 28,904,555 25,310,053
35,292,229 30,311,525
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18 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, properties under development
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$653,716,000 were
transferred to investment properties upon change in use. The excess of
the fair value of those properties at the end of transfer over their carrying
amounts, amounting to approximately HK$557,141,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year, write-down of properties under development located
in Mainland China of HK$503,499,000 (2015: HK$118,272,000) was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss due to
the decrease in the estimated net realisable value of certain properties
under development.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s properties under development
with a net carrying amount of approximately HK$95,858,000 (2015:
HK$615,389,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group
(note 30(a)(iii)).

As at 31 December 2016, the application for certificates of land use
rights in Mainland China for land held under medium term leases with
a net carrying amount of approximately HK$3,531,535,000 (2015:
HK$6,132,337,000) was still in progress.

18 SRy (8)

REE-Z—A"E+-_A=1+—-BI5E EA
(B4 7653,716,00075 7T 2 % B R E H B E
BRBEERERENE NEBERE 25D
E7 /A EREEREED 4 /5557,141,0007%8
U ERGARBRERAER

FR-URTFEREZERTNERNE
503,499,000 7T (= F — I 4 : 118,272,000/
) ERAREGRABRERAER  REDHE
BETRRFMRZ G ATRRFERND -

RIZ—R"E+-A=+—8 AE£EzEETF
{E4795,858,000 7T (ZZ— 4 : 615,389,0007%
) CEBRYMECER  EAREEERE
TEF R (HEE30)i) ©

RIZ—XE+-A=+—-0 REZFEYD
3,531,535,000/8 ¢ (ZZ—F 4 : 6,132,337,000/&
TU) AR BN R B RESE 2 D F AR
HERBER -
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19 MEAFASE
UTHRERSHARMESR EERRERE
EYENIMERRFE - RBEHBIN - FF
BRI AL B -

19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following lists contain only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class
of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

AR ) B R Z W8 2 )

(a) Subsidiaries directly held by the Company (a)

Proportion of

Place of ownership
incorporation/ Particulars of interest
registration and issued/ held by
Name business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
MR K BRT/BE ADTEEHE
% EEMH BAZHE REZzEINE FEER
Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) PRC/Mainland China  HK$1,702,500,000 100%  Property investment
Co., Ltd. (note b) hE B ARE 1,702,500,0007% 7T and development
AERAME (58) ARAA (Fizh) MERERFAE
Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 51%  Property investment
(“Shum Yip Terra”) (note d/e) R R RE A #£800,000,000T and development
RERR (£B) RIDARRAF MERERFAE
(DREZAD) (Mizkd/e)
Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB932,050,000 100%  Property investment
(note b) hE B ARE AR 932,050,0007T and development
AEBE (£8) ARAF (M) MERERRE
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) PRC/Mainland China US$150,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (note b) HE B ARE 150,000,000 7T REER
wEER CRY) BRAR (MiEh)
Changzhou Shum Yip Property PRC/Mainland China US$99,800,000 100%  Property development
Development Limited (note b) RE B RRE 99,800,000 7T ) EE
EMAREMERRAF (Fizth)
Fairwind Pover Limited B.V.l./Hong Kong US$100,744 95% Investment holding
ZEABAT RBEREE BB 100,744% 7T BREER
Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company B.V.l./Mainland China US$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture”) EE&REHS / E REERK
ANENREBRATF LYEipN

(TFRIEDEZE]D)
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OB R kW

19 MHEAR®RE (%)

(a) Subsidiaries directly held by the Company (continued) (a) HARAGHEREZWEAR (%)
Proportion of
Place of ownership
incorporation/ Particulars of interest
registration and issued/ held by
Name business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
)2 AV 31119 BRI/ BR XRABEHRE
% B BAZHE EEZZEINE FBER
City Capital Limited B.V.I./Hong Kong US$1 100%  Investment holding
RBERES BB IE REZR
Hover Limited B.V.l./Hong Kong US$2 100% Investment holding
EBBREE /BB 2ETL REER
Medos Limited B.V.I./Hong Kong US$2 100%  Investment holding
RBERES BB 2ETT REZR
Shum Yip Investment Limited Hong Kong USs$2 100% Investment holding
REERBRAT i 2ETL REER
Haerbin Shum Yip Property PRC/Mainland China RMB27,567,619 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited hE AR AR 27 ,567,6197T LES kS
(note ¢)
BREFEEHERRERAH
(PBf3Ee)
Qingdao Shum Yip Property PRC/Mainland China RMB13,883,933 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited hE AR AR #13,883,9337T LES
(note c)
BEREEHELEERLA
()
Shenzhen Silicon Valley Hi-Tech B.V.I./Hong Kong US$1 100%  Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. RBEREE /BB ESD WEER

A AR ERRAT]
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company

19 WA &E ()

(b)

HIA A R 4R A < W 4

Proportion of

Place of ownership
incorporation/ Particulars of interest
registration and issued/ held by
business paid up capital the Group  Principal activities
B/ R BRIT/HME XEERERE
=L B BAZHE EEZzEIE FEER
Shum Yip Centre Development PRC/Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100%  Property investment
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (note c) R B RRE 40,000,000 7T MERE
RERLER ORY) BRAF (KFc)
Shenzhen Terra Construction Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 75.05%  Manufacture and sale
(note ¢) R KR AR #10,000,0007T of aluminium
AN MRERARR TEBRAA products
(P 5EC) EERHEREM
Shenzhen Terra Property Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,060,000 75.05%  Property management
Service Co., Ltd. (note c) hE R E A RE AR ¥5,060,0007T MEEE
AT RANEERRBERAA
(PftsEc)
Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB137,000,000 75.05%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (note c) hEREARE  ARM137,000,0007T I ESEN
REMFERABHEREERAA
(PRt&Ece)
Shum Yip TaiFu Logistic Group Holding ~ PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB323,596,169 97.74%  Operation of
Co., Ltd. (note ¢) hEREAKE  ARM323,596,1697T warehouses and
REREMREERNBRAF (FfiEc) property
development
REERRNERE
Shenzhen Pengji Property Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 100%  Property management
Services Limited (note c) R K RE AR#40,000,00070 MEER
AT ENEERRBEERAR
(Prt&Ece)
Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB19,920,000 100%  Manufacture of steel

(note c)
ARELSBRAT (Fiskc)

PN

AE19,920,0007T

products
NEREER
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company

19 MHEAR®RE (%)
(b)

HIARA 7 [ B A < W A v ()

(continued)
Proportion of
Place of ownership
incorporation/ Particulars of interest
registration and issued/ held by
business paid up capital the Group Principal activities
B/ iR BRIT/BR XEBEEFRE
£ E 3L BAZHE REZzEINL FEEE
Shenzhen Wondershine Residence PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 100%  Property management
Company Limited (note c) hE AR AR ¥15,000,0007T MEERE
AITEEEXERAR (M)
Changsha Pengji Property Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB75,000,000 80%  Property development
(note c) Bl R EIARE AR #75,000,0007T MmERE
ROBEMERRDR (M)
Huizhou Pengji Investment Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Property development
(note c) B HERRE AR #10,000,0007T EJE
EMBERERRRAA (M)
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100%  Property management
Management Limited (note c) RE B AR#30,000,00070 MEER
REERE ORI WEERERAR
GED)
Dongguan Shum Yip Property PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Property development
Development Limited (note c) RE B AR AE#10,000,0007T ELEEN
REmaERERRLDA (Fizc)
Foshan Shunde Shum Yip Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100%  Property development
Development Limited (note c) B AR AR #20,000,0007T ELE
BLMIEERRXEHEERAR
(PftsEc)
Shum Yip Land Company Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
(note c) RE HERRE AR #50,000,0007T MER%
REEMARLE (M)
Shum Yip East China Property PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (note c) RE B AR #50,000,00070 MR
REERIEREERAF (M)
China Shum Yip (Group) Property B.V.I./Mainland China US$200 100%  Investment holding
Investment Company Limited EBBTHS 200%7T BE R
FERE (KE) EREARAA B AR
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19 MEAR®E (%)
(b) HARARIMEREZHEA R (8)

19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company

(continued)
Proportion of
Place of ownership
incorporation/ Particulars of interest
registration and issued/ held by
business paid up capital the Group Principal activities
R/ K BRT/BR AEEEERE
% MR BAzHE EEZzAEIL FEEE
Great Assets Development (Shenzhen)  PRC/Mainland China US$100,744,000 95%  Property development
Ltd e B 100,744,000% 75 IEEE
FEERER ORI BRAF
Shenyang Wuai Shumkang PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB400,000,000 81.09%  Property development
Transportation Centre (Limited) hEREAKE AR 400,000,0007T and investment and
(note ¢) transportation
EEABERABREG (BRAF) station management
(Pit&Ee) MERERIENR
BHIER
Shenyang Wuai Shenzhen Real Estate PRC/Mainland China HK$62,403,000 81.09%  Property development
Development Company Limited hE B ARE 62,403,000/ 7 I ELEEN
(note ¢)
EEAERABEHEREERAH
(PtaEe)
Suzhou New Development Investment PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB800,000,000 100%  Property development
Limited (note c) RE L REARRE  AK800,000,0007T and hotel operation
BNFBEREERRAR (Misc) MEREREEZE
Shum Yip Land (Shenzhen) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100%  Property development
Management Limited (note c) RE B ARE AR H5,000,0007T EGE
REEH ORI MEEERBRAA
(BdzEc)
Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB784,528,950 100%  Property development
(note ¢) RE B ARE AR EE784,528,9507T and property
AITR 2 AREBR R A (KfiFec) investment
MERBRMERE
Shenzhen Nongke Group Limited (note ¢) PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB200,000,000 100% Investment holding,

AmEMEEERAR ([RH])
(Fitz£e)

hE/hEIRRE

A #200,000,0007T

property investment
and property
management

REER  MERER
MEER
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

19 MHEAR®RE (%)

(b) Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company (b) BAA R MEREZMEA R (8)
(continued)
Proportion of
Place of ownership
incorporation/ Particulars of interest
registration and issued/ held by
business paid up capital the Group Principal activities
B/ iR BT/ BR REERERE
% M BAZHE REZzEINL FEEE

Shenzhen Nongke Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
Limited (note c) Bl R EIARE AR #30,000,0007T
AT EREERERR DT (M)

Shenzhen International Qianhai Real PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Estate (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“SIQ Real & /B AE AR #10,000,0007T
Estate”) (note c)

REREDEEE (FI) BRAHE
(TAEE%]) (Mizke)

Shum Yip Land (Shenzhen) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000
Management Limited (note c) B AR AR #5,000,0007T

REEM ORI WEERERAF
(PizEe)

Notes:
a.

°ao o

The English translation of the company’s name is for reference only. The
official name of the company are in Chinese.

Established in the PRC as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability
Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s effective interest (including equity
interest both directly and indirectly by the Company) in Shum Yip Terra was
75.05%.

=

I

® a0 o

100%  Property development
and property
investment

NERBLMERE

50%  Property development
and property
investment

MERELMEHRE

100%  Property development
MEFRE

' DRAZEANBEEHRS L - RAZERABRAT

X
KB ANEBERE
REBERIABNERETLE

KB BTG ERE
RZZE—R"E+ZA=1+—0 ' FEERFERLK
ZEBRER (BRAARAEEREESEZBRA
) A75.05%
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
The directors consider disclosing details of other subsidiaries would result
in particulars of excessive length and therefore only disclose the particulars
of the subsidiaries listed above in the consolidated financial statements.

19 MEAR®E ()
FERE ARLLHBATHEEHEHE
IR - BHRGANERENERE - X
HBAT 5 -

TRIHAEBREBEASERER 2B ARF
ZER e TX 2T 2B ERBETEARIEER
RERFREH G -

The following tables lists out the information of the subsidiaries of the
Group which has a material non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the amounts before any

inter-company elimination.

Shum Yip Terra ERR
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T-h%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx FET
NCI percentage FERERA DL 24.95% 24.95%
Current assets MENEE 6,295,658 5,743,836
Non-current assets FRBEE 8,507,192 8,457,528
Current liabilities MEEE (6,684,305) (5,336,887)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (2,013,663) (1,253,416)
Net assets BEFE 6,104,882 7,611,061
Carrying amount of NCI IR 2 REE 1,523,168 1,898,841
Revenue sk 3,070,337 1,687,867
Profit for the year ERHF 453,562 965,740
Total comprehensive income 2ENE A 453,562 965,740
Profit allocated to NCI DB T IR R 2 A 113,164 240,937
Dividend declared to NCI IR TIERER IS 358,496 79,037
Cash flows generated from/(used in) WEEEMS /(BT
operating activities ZBRERE 858,260 (59,022)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) REEEME,/(FTR)
investing activities ZHeRE 5,917 (3,582)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from REES (FTA)/ 5
financing activities ZHERE (179,613) 125,824
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 MHEAFRE (8)
SIQ Real Estate (acquired during the year ended 31 HEEE NEE_F-AE+ZH=1—
December 2016) H Ik B 7 B Wi )
2016
—E-RE
HK$°000
THET
NCI percentage FERERA AL 50.00%
Current assets MENVEE 2,579,864
Non-current assets ERBEE 335
Current liabilities MEEE (76,103)
Net assets BEFE 2,504,096
Carrying amount of NCI IR 2 REE 1,252,048
Revenue W -
Loss for the period FREE 4)
Total comprehensive income FHMGRE (4)
Profit allocated to NCI DT IR R 2 T (2)
Dividend paid to NCI T IRERER CRE =
Cash flows used in operating activities REEHTAZARRE (568,717)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHAEZRENE =
Cash flows from financing activities MEEEMGCEERE =
Aggregate information of subsidiaries which has a NCI that A 30 I TR e R 5 2 W A W) 2 At
are not individually material jeg i
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-FEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FET
Aggregate carrying amount of NCI FERERRAEAR 634,905 344,360
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI AR TIEERER 2R (BE) 187,136 (22,481)
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20 WiE A vl HEsR
2016 2015
—E-RF 0%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FHT
Unlisted: JEET
Share of net assets L EEFE 123,469 97,916
Loans to associates BIHENRIZER = 15,397
123,469 113,313
Listed in Hong Kong: REB LM
Share of net assets [EIREEFE 4,595,775 4,449,137
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEL 7 B2 91,577 91,577
Provision for impairment* RER A (816,000) (816,000)
3,871,352 3,724,714
3,994,821 3,838,027
* The provision for impairment is related to the Company’s interest in Coastal * RERBEARINGEHEREERAR ([AE
Greenland Limited (“Coastal Greenland”). BEFE]) 2REER -
Particulars of the material associates are as follows: TEBRENAFENOT
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ ownership interest
Business  registration registered attributable to
Name structure  and business share capital the Group Principal activities
R/ 3K BRTLEE,/ REBER
% EBRERE  EEMH ERTEN FEREEE Dt TEEK
2016 2015
—E—X¥f —T-hF
Coastal Greenland* Corporate  Bermuda/ HK$418,587,000 15.08 15.08  Property development
HEFERE" NG Mainland China 418,587,000/ 7T and investment
BEE/PEARE MERERIRE
Road King Infrastructure Ltd. Corporate ~ Bermuda/ HK$73,994,000 27.34 27.34  Development,
(“Road King”)** NG| Mainland China 73,994,000 7T operation and
BYHEEAR AT BRE/PEARE management of toll
(M%)~ roads and property
development and
investment
BREBLEBRKED
BIA R MR R
&
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
None of the associates are audited by KPMG, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the KPMG global network.

*k

Coastal Greenland is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10
each are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The principal location of Coastal Greenland’s business
is Mainland China. Although the Group holds less than 20% of the
ownership interest and voting control of Coastal Greenland, the Group
considers that it has the ability to exercise significant influence over
Coastal Greenland through both its shareholding and its nominated
directors’ participation on Coastal Greenland’s board of directors.

Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
its ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
principal location of Road King’s business is Mainland China.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates comprise equity shares held
by the Company, except for Road King, the shareholdings of which are held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The financial years of the Group’s associates are coterminous with that of
the Group, except for Coastal Greenland which has a financial year ending
31 March. The interim consolidated financial report is adjusted for the
material transactions between Coastal Greenland and group companies
between the interim report date and 31 December. Coastal Greenland uses
31 March as its financial year end date to conform with that of its holding
company.

20

g o v HE A (40)
EABEARNAREELEFAGHDEBHL
HEBMEAMZIRREATREY -

o OABRERENRABREETMALIAR
BEAERE HEBRAEELI0ETZ &AM
EERMAXHMAERDRERLT /8
BREXEZTELEMHMATEAR -
BEARARAAERERE ZMEERE
HRBREEDR% ERAKERRAUE
BEERRERES2ELEREREAES
SRMARHEERERAETEARE
2B -

v BYDIRBREEAMKLIZBEREER
A EEREEIIE T EBRERE
BEXSMBERATIRLET - BH2E
BEXMHAPEARE -

AEERBE DR ZRERRARERA 2 #i
Befn - BREESHZ SN - RERRZETEBAR
AlZ 2 EMBARIRE -

AEEBMENFR MRFREARE  MHFE
EA—H nBREFECHBEREFE A=
A=1t—HB - GatRHBREREERERE
HERARARFHRERBET —A=T—RH
AZBARSELRE - mERERERA=A
ST-RAEMBEESER  UEREZRA
AIFTERAE - -
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect

20 BiEa R (81)
TRIRHMBERRBE - T

AR SR &5t

of Road King adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and PR EREL AR HERAZEERAMBREN
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: ZIREE
2016 2015
—NE —hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FET
Current assets REEE 41,048,193 31,068,403
Non-current assets FERBEE 9,351,938 8,987,904
Current liabilities MEBRE (23,710,747) (18,087,764)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (12,456,756) (7,992,676)
Net assets BEFE 14,232,628 13,975,867
Less: Non-controlling interests IR (938,466) (820,470)
Net assets attributable to equity BE N ERRREN
shareholders of the associate BESE 13,294,162 13,155,397
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HEREZAEERBE QR 2 ER
the associate:
Proportion of the Group's ownership KEBMER LB 27.34% 27.34%
Group’s share of net assets of the FRED BT
associate BEZE 3,634,624 3,596,686
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by REEER 2 WHE
the Group Bk 91,577 91,577
Carrying amount of the investment KEZEHE 3,726,201 3,688,263
Revenue s 16,841,585 12,509,646
Profit for the year F R F 1,373,596 828,310
Other comprehensive income Hi 2wl (821,133) (547,096)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEWNSAE 552,463 281,214
Dividend received RLGE 96,972 117,175
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20 BREAvIHELR ()
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in TRIRHBERBE  DEBELSZERAR
respect of Coastal Greenland adjusted for any differences in accounting FUEHBRERELARTHERAZRR R
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial BiRERA 2 REE
statements:
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-8%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Current assets REEE 11,769,781 16,805,714
Non-current assets FERBEE 4,455,151 1,775,575
Current liabilities mEaE (7,498,452) (8,809,889)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,352,345) (4,120,890)
Net assets EEFE 6,374,135 5,650,510
Less: Non-controlling interests o IR (455) 2,348
Net assets attributable to equity NGl
shareholders of the associate BEFE 6,373,680 5,652,858
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HEREZAEERBE AT 2ER
the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBEFEEZ LA 15.08% 15.08%
Carrying amount of the investment REZEREE 961,151 852,451
Accumulated impairment losses ZiRERE (816,000) (816,000)
Net carrying amount of the investment KEZERFE 145,151 36,451
Revenue e 1,007,385 1,466,235
Profit/(loss) for the year FWNEF/(ER) 919,971 (490,977
Other comprehensive income Hib2mla (214,022) (743,676)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNE2EEAE 705,949 (252,699)
Dividend received 2 ER B - _
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20 Mg wIRELR ()
The following table sets out the aggregate financial information of the TRIRAEBRENAEE 2B 2N AR
Group’s other associates that are not individually material: BEH
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTAERT FAET
Share of the associates’ profit for the year AEMERRZFRENREE
and total comprehensive income By ek 6,426 14,245
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERBE DT 2 IRE
investments in the associates RHAEE 123,469 113,313

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of interests in associates R-E—XNEF+-A=+—8 "BHESE L
whose shares are listed in Hong Kong was HK$1,448,183,000 (2015: THEEE & D B R4S 7 N 1A A1,448,183,0005%
HK$1,487,556,000). 7T (ZZ—H%F : 1,487,556,00087T) ©

21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 01 ABATMR
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BiE FiExT FHEL
Share of net assets HMEEEFE 3,127,130 2,953,663
Goodwill on acquisition WEEL s EBE 6,116 6,116
Loans to joint ventures KTARERBIZER 43(h) 167,685 77,531
3,300,931 3,037,310
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21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 21 HEAvkER (4)
Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as follows: AEEZEIEGERAIFENT

Percentage of

FriEz Bl
Place of
Nominal value of registration Ownership Voting Profit

Name registered capital and business interest power  sharing Principal activities

% HMEREE SMREELH EEEE RERE BT FEER

Shenzhen Langtong Property RMB100,000,000 PRC/ 50 50 50  Property development
Development Company AR®100,000,0007T  Mainland China and property
Limited (“Langtong”) B B A investment

YT BEMEREER MERBERNERE
~El ([89m))

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park US$62,000,000  PRC/ 37.53* 50 37.53*  Property investment
(Group) Company Limited* 62,000,000%7C  Mainland China and development
(“Tianan”) R KR MERERFHE

AL (RE) BRAA)

(Tx%])

Taizhou Shum Yip Investment RMB100,000,000 PRC/ 51 50 51 Provision of land
Development Limited AR®100,000,0007T  Mainland China development service
(“Taizhou Shum Yip”) R KR TR 1 40 5 % RS

ZNTARERERRARAF
(TF=MARE])

All of the above investments are indirectly held by the Company. 1B LR B R AN RIBERSA -
KZE0%FT 5 #E B — AN SR B 5 AR75.06% 2 3F
2EMBARRE - Bt - XEBERMEEES
RO #1537.53% o

The 50% ownership interest in Tianan is held by a 75.05% non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. Therefore, the Group’s effective ownership interest and
profit sharing is 37.53%.
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21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 21 AEAFER ()
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in TRITHBERRE - DEBHRBREMRN S
respect of Langtong adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and BRERELABRYHREAZREHHREAZE
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements: [EEE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FAET
Current assets REEE 6,091,352 4,098,664
Non-current assets FERBEE 191,842 55,460
Current liabilities RBEE (5,671,648) (3,417,936)
Net assets BEE 611,546 736,188
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint venture: ~ ¥IRABEZAKERGE DRI ZER !
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEFARE LA 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint AEESHEERA
venture BERE 305,773 368,094
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by AEERRZWEEE
the Group 6,116 6,116
Carrying amount of the investment REZHREE 311,889 374,210
Revenue Yz 1,164,652 1,468,680
Profit for the year FRaH 234,058 388,739
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEREBE 234,058 388,739
Dividend received BB 145,327 -
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21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 21 HEAwkER ()
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect TRITHBEREES  DEBRLREM DS
of Tianan adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled BRERENARTHRARZSGAVBREN
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: ZIREE
2016 2015
—~E —E-0F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THER FAT
Current assets TENBE 11,681,829 12,534,882
Non-current assets FERBEE 4,436,496 3,566,396
Current liabilities mBaE (6,928,758) (7,176,635)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (3,796,542) (4,047,769)
Net assets BEFE 5,393,025 4,876,874
Less: Non-controlling interests B IR (115,639) (113,152)
Net assets attributable to equity AE N RN IRRES
shareholders of the joint venture BERE 5,277,386 4,763,722
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FAL
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HEARZAEERGE AR ZER
the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBFEEZ LA 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint AEENEEELR
venture Eﬁaﬂ 2,638,693 2,381,861
Loan to the joint venture FEENBIZER 167,685 65,493
Carrying amount of the investment REZREE 2,806,378 2,447 354
Revenue Wz 3,044,964 2,727,991
Profit for the year FRHEFA 1,095,595 879,740
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEWNZRE 1,095,595 879,740
Dividend received B 8 111,790 -
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21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Taizhou Shum Yip, which is considered a material joint venture of the Group,
is engaged in provision of land development service and is accounted for

using the equity method.

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Taizhou Shum Yip adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and

21

ARAFHER (4)
ENREBRALEELE
t

ZRENT  RER

HEMFARRY - WA EARK -

TRITHBEHRE - IABEMNREEM
S BRER LB URAREMBREA

reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements: ZREE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEx TET
Current assets TENEE 3,235,571 2,033,045
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,181,410 2,902,595
Current liabilities neaE (3,020,346) (1,952,163)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (3,176,313) (2,756,355)
Net assets EEFE 220,322 227,122
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HEFARZEAEENEGE
the joint venture: NG L3
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEFEE LA 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the investment REZEHE 112,364 115,832
Revenue Yzs - 1,742,230
(Loss)/profit for the year FW(BR),/ &F (3,365) 367,212
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEANGBE (3,365) 367,212
The following table sets out the aggregate financial information of the TRITAEBEANTEE A E N2 A
Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material: BER
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E-0F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FET
Share of the joint ventures’ profit for PMEEERARFENRF
the year - -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERGE AR RERELE
investments in the joint ventures 70,300 99,914
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22 FHEHERE
2016 2015
—E-XRE i e
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
At fair value: BARME
Listed equity investments in Mainland iNaICTPN e
China BAERE 54,798 65,583
At cost: R
Unlisted equity investments IEETRERE 58,187 58,101
112,985 123,684

During the year, the net loss in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to net
loss of HK$8,089,000 (2015: net loss of HK$4,696,000).

The fair values of listed equity investments are determined based on quoted
market prices.

As at 31 December 2016, unlisted equity investments with a carrying
amount of HK$58,187,000 (2015: HK$58,101,000) were stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that
their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.

OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, other long term assets mainly represented
prepayments of HK$1,731,251,000 (2015: HK$1,778,889,000) related
to the acquisition of land use rights. The remaining balance included the
non-current receivable due from a joint venture of HK$976,555,000 (2015:
nil) (note 43(b)) and the resettlement guarantee deposit placed with the
original landlords of a resettlement project of HK$480,677,000 (2015: nil).
The deposit will be released upon the completion of the resettlement, which
is expected to be beyond the next twelve months.

23

FR REEREMEERFPER 2 IHLE
BE 7 BE18E8,089,0008 T (ZT—RE %
1E91814,696,000/8 7T ) ©

THREREZ ARBENRBETSREET

RZE-—RNE+-_B=+—08 RHEEA
58,187,000 7T (= & — T 4 : 58,101,000 7T)
ZIEETRAER B R AR AR ERBEE
RERAABAREMRIHEREL ESREED
ARETRA R E - AEBTHTETHEL
&= o

At = 1
R-ZE—RNE+-A=+—H HtRHEE
TEERNELEREM S 2 BNRE
1,731,251,0005%8 70 (= Z— R4 : 1,778,889,000/%
L) HRERTAEER-—EALE AR ZIEN
H33R15976,555,0008 7T (ZZ—HF « &) (3
430) REHRREEBLEE R RIsETE 2B
ZEREL480,677,00087 (ZE—HF  E) -
ZREBEEENOBLZETK (BHERART=
TBA®%) BERBRRE -
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24 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 24
The Group’s total amounts of the biological assets are as follows:

M
AEEENBERBRNT -

2016 2015

—E-RF —hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THER TET

Breeding biological assets EEREMEE - 7,075
Trading biological assets EBREEEMEE 8,136 9,576
8,136 16,651

The Group’s biological assets comprise mainly pigeons and cloned orchid
flowers.

AREZEMEETRZBRESTRRBERIE -

The Group’s biological assets were revalued by management at the end of
each reporting period on a fair value basis. The fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs of the biological assets was determined using the

AREZENEERMEEENERERRELA
EEEB - AMBEZ AR ERMGEHHEEHK
ADATEEERE  IREKIATSRHERE

market approach, which was determined based on the most recent market
transaction prices.

;Eo

A reconciliation of the carrying values of the biological assets is as follows: EYEEZEREHEDNT
2016 2015
—AE —hF
Breeding biological assets EEMENEE HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FHT
At 1 January n—A—H 7,075 7,200
Purchases EE 262 641
Disposals & (6,888) (443)
Exchange realignment Ik (449) (323)
- 7,075
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24 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 24 HPEE (H)
2016 2015
—E-XRE i e
Trading biological assets HEMLEMEE HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAL
At 1 January ®—A—H 9,576 10,188
Purchases BE 20,799 25,347
Sales HE (21,635) (26,777)
Gain arising from changes in fair value less DREFHEEZFIGH

costs to sell SHEMAK - 1,274
Exchange realignment P 5 AR (604) (456)
8,136 9,576

INVENTORIES 25 f&
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FAT
Raw materials B 42,753 33,298
Work in progress EER 23,510 35,659
Finished goods B 27,091 29,846
93,354 98,803
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26 TRADE RECEIVABLES

26 MEWCR

2016 2015

—E-RE 0%

HK$’000 HK$'000

FiExT FTHEL

Trade receivables JEUTBR X 357,498 562,412
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RERIBIK (34,992) (34,258)
322,506 528,154

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit terms
to its customers for the sale of properties. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables

are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contract date and net of provision, is as follows:

EERBERT ARETERAEZPHMELE
BHEREEY - AEEREHERRE RKH
BRFERREN REEERR - ER LRARE
RAZEZ BRREF S REETRIREEP -
PARBYEBERT L EERR - ARAYE
RERNER SR TAERRIEMEE

o YRR DTG BAUR ©

IS ERIAG %) B BRaT B I R B A 2 FEUR

TEREATWT

2016 2015
—E-XE —E-AhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHL
Within one year —FR 310,256 513,645
One to two years —FERMENR 12,250 14,509
322,506 528,154

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables are EURZZ RREEEHNT

as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
At 1 January »n—HA—H 34,258 34,294
Impairment losses recognised ERRRERE 9,150 844
Amount written off as uncollectible s BB IR (2,704) (116)
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables e R SR E R (1,601) (157)
Exchange realignment BB Y, B (4,111) (607)
34,992 34,258
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26 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$34,992,000 (2015:
HK$34,258,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the full amount is not expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

26 MEBORH (40)

RZE—RNE+ZA=+—8 " 34992,000% T
(ZZ— T4 : 34,258,000/ 70 ) 2 JE 4 BR 2045 1
BT ARE - ERIRE EYERR ARG
v ZFEAEM  BHRSTEEE2ENE -

SR (BRI E KRR A B RE 2 BUR R AR iR
AT

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-A1fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTEx FET

Neither past due nor impaired ABHIAKRE 310,256 513,645
Less than one year past due wEDR—F 12,250 14,509
322,506 528,154

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

RBHMTARREZRRTRES RZETEZR
ZEFEH  MEFOHETRBRCE

EBHERBEERTRERS FHEB TP
Bl ZEEPEASEAARIFBALH - K
BRELR hMRZSEBRIEEERYEERX
EHALKDRAR/IZENRE  FARFES
RABTRAFERELRERE -
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27 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27 TARFARIE ~ 5T 4 B At e WOk E
RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
—E-AE —“Z-AF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE FTEx TET
Prepayments SRR 170,866 177,736
Deposits and other receivables e REMEKFIR 1,134,029 531,071
Loans to joint ventures BTRERRZER 43(b) 68,501 949,853
Due from the immediate holding company — FEU B B I% A )58 (i) 537 2,484
Due from the ultimate holding company FEW B 44 R A B FUE (i) 31,128 20,528
Due from fellow subsidiaries e =N 0] 30,545 13,091
Due from non-controlling shareholders JEUSE 1R AR AR 2R 0] 249,322 1,263
1,684,928 1,696,026
(i) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. [0] HHTIEAEIER . 8 AEETEER -
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial THMBEABHTARE A LMGBEZ SR
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there BERIHENR /R 7 EWZIEER -

was no recent history of default.

28 EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28 BMBRHEA R EZ RERE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2016 2015
—E-XE —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TAET
Listed equity investments, at market value — ERHERE (A 4,566 3,696
The above equity investments at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were TR ZE-RFERZE-RF+-_A=1T—H
classified as held for trading. ZBRBERENEABERS -
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29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED

29 Ble RBLEEEY K2 RHB &

CASH
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-A1fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FET
Cash and bank balances Be RBITE% 10,290,520 11,757,506
Time deposits TEEER 1,773,163 2,061,269
12,063,683 13,818,775
Less: Restricted cash* W REEE e (2,204,157) (4,110,729)
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBELZEY 9,859,526 9,708,046

As at 31 December 2016, an aggregate amount of RMB546,850,000 (equivalent to
HK$611,323,000) deposited in the bank accounts of one subsidiary of the Group
was frozen by The People’s Procuratorate of Jianli County of Hubei Province (note
32(ii)).

As at 31 December 2016, there was HK$1,193,580,000 (2015:
HK$3,464,015,000) in the Group’s restricted cash, which was limited to
use in the development of certain property projects. In accordance with
relevant documents issued by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource
Bureau, certain property development companies of the Group are required
to place in designated bank accounts certain amounts of presale proceeds
from properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of related
properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases of construction
materials and the payments of construction fees of the relevant property
projects when approval from the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource
Bureau is obtained. Such guarantee deposits will only be released after
completion of the related pre-sold properties or issuance of the real estate
ownership certificates, whichever is the earlier.

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash of denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$10,752,350,000 (2015: HK$12,813,860,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

* RIB-NE+-A=+—0  HULEENGEAR
BERSHFHRRAEE—-BHBARIBITREZ
#8758 \ R 546,850,0007T (F8E #611,323,00075 L)
GEXXE

RIB-R"E+-A=+—-H X&£BEXR
I 38 & 51,193,580,0008 T (= T — 1 &
3,464,015,0008 T) - BA BERBEE THWER
B RETFEEEIHEREERBHZABX
o AEBEETWERLRARARETHRITES
BHAETHEZBENERSHE - (EAEEY
¥BERBIRERTR - ZFRETRESHE
EEtiERERBIERANES RN LA
ERMEBEZREER - BHERTHESR
HBEREMER TAHEEHERSE (URFH
EEBE) B TR -

RIZ—RE+-A=+—B AEEUAR
BIARE]) HEZE SRR SBMART
B2 438 & $£10,752,350,0008 7 (T — R & :
12,813,860,000%8 L) - ARBUANATERILEA
BB - AW BREBHEIMNEE 560 R4
B EELNEEERT  AEEEFEREE
BITNEEB 2 RITHARE L BAEMER -
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30 INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30 wHESRAT RS R M &
BORROWINGS
2016 2015
—E-RE —hEF
Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest rate (%) HK$’000 interest rate (%) HK$'000
BB /&8 EE /A0
F= (%) TER % (%) TET
Current Eﬂﬁﬂ
Bank loans-secured RITER — BHEA 4.83-5.23 73,489 475-523 393,009
Bank loans-unsecured fE TER - B 2.44-6.18 5,214,965 2.38-5.90 4,761,824
Other borrowings-unsecured Hith Fé.% — mIEH - - 5.88 119,320
5,288,454 5,274,153
Non-current JEENH
Bank loans-secured BIIER - EEH 4.83-4.90 564,736 4.90-5.70 1,524,595
Bank loans-unsecured RITER — BIKH 2.89-5.13 11,109,305 2.80-5.23 11,593,345
Other borrowings — unsecured Hip{EE — migi 6.80 2,794,750 6.80 2,983,000
14,468,791 16,100,940
19,757,245 21,375,093
2016 2015
—E-RE —nf
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FHT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: EEEBZRITER
Within one year —FR 5,288,454 5,154,833
In the second year F-FR 4,832,822 4,117,928
From third to fifth years BEZFZERFR 6,673,534 8,676,188
Over five years HEAE 167,685 323,824
16,962,495 18,272,773
Other borrowings repayable: EEEZHMER
Within one year —FR - 119,320
From third to fifth years E=FZERFA 2,794,750 2,386,400
Over five years BFUE - 596,600
2,794,750 3,102,320
19,757,245 21,375,093
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30 INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)

Bank loans amounting to HK$638,225,000 (2015:
HK$1,917,604,000) were secured by certain of the Group’s assets as
below:

(i) land and buildings in Mainland China with a net carrying amount
of approximately HK$678,753,000 (2015: HK$728,180,000)
(note 13);

(i) completed properties held for sale with a net carrying amount of
approximately nil (2015: HK$66,738,000) (note 17);

(i) properties under development with a net carrying amount of
approximately HK$95,858,000 (2015: HK$615,389,000) (note
18); and

(iv) investment properties with a net carrying amount of
approximately HK$777,095,000 (2015: HK$1,884,717,000)
(note 16).

In addition, Shum Yip Group, the ultimate holding company, has guaranteed
certain of the Group’s bank loans of HK$3,771,012,000 as at 31 December
2016 (2015: HK$4,534,160,000) (note 43(d)(i)).

(b)

Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately
HK$6,981,840,000 (2015: HK$5,342,228,000) and
HK$5,964,000,000 (2015: HK$5,114,000,000), which are
denominated respectively in United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars, all borrowings are in RMB.

A subsidiary in Mainland China has entered into a fund arrangement
with a financial institution (the “Trustee”), pursuant to which the
Trustee has raised trust fund amounting to RMB2,500,000,000
(equivalent to HK$2,794,750,000) (2015: RMB2,500,000,000
(equivalent to HK$2,983,000,000)) and provided the fund to the
subsidiary for financing a property development project of the
subsidiary. The fund bears a fixed interest rate at 6.80% (2015:
6.80%) per annum. The fund will expire in May 2021 and is
guaranteed by Shum Yip Group.

30

BT BRI 5 (80)

(@

LA

% %8 5638,2250008 T (Z & — A &
1,917,604,0007870) ZiRITEFIA THIE T
AEBEEEFRR

) RPEBEBAEFTSEBIFAELD
678,753,000/ T (= & — A F:
728,180,000/ 7T) 2 T # 1 F (K
F13)

i) EEMFEAZT(ZE—RF:
66,738,000 70) 2 HIEFEZEE
BE (7))

(i) BRMEF(E 495,858,000 T (Z & —
T ¢ 615,389,00087T) 2 EREFY
¥ (H3E18) |2

(v BREEEA777,0050008 7T (Z2—
T 1,884,717,000870) 2B EY
% (MzE16) -

REBRARREEER_T—RF

+-A=+—H ERAEEETRITER
3,771,012,000/8 T (= Z—FF : 4,534,160,0007
7o) fER R (MFEE43(d))

(b)

W 85 7 496,981,840,0008 T (ZE—
F 15,342,228,000/% 7T) %5,964,000,0007%
JL(ZZ—FF :5114,000,000% 70) 2 R
TEZDAIAETRETEIN ARG
EHUNARKEHE -

FEIA s — B AR E—E e g
([ZFAD) BITES T Bt - A
BE£ETES ARE2500,000,0007T (18
& 12,794,750,0008 7T) (ZE—RHF : A
R #2,500,000,0007C (8 & #2,983,000,000
BL)) REBENANB AR —EnER
REBMTESAMNBLARREES - %
EECEETFANR680% (ZE—HF :
6.80%) ;5 BRZE-_—FH AR
WHREEEER o
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30 INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

31

32

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(d)  Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants relating to the Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become repayable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 38(b). As 31
December 2016. None of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2015: nil).

TRADE PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

30 wHRBUTEH IR (8])

@ AKEETROTBERFENKENHE
BERMRHERBETRIEHFE (FAR
HERBBRIT CERHET) - WEAK
BERRE  MEXBMZBERERAR
EXBEE FARETHERAETRE
R BEn - AEBEERDUER 2 £
— R BEENM B0 c RZT—REF+
“R=t-H BEECXBRBEAHEZ
RHBER (ZF—0F &)

31 MEMHR#
RIS R Z AR E Y R ERER AT
m

2016 2015

—NE —E-hE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx THT

Within one year —&R 570,813 518,661
One to two years —FEWENR 235,977 315,539
Two to three years MEE=FR 226,082 140,049
Over three years =FHRE 83,560 38,877
1,116,432 1,013,126

The total amounts of the trade payables are non-interest-bearing.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

FERBRAER AT B TR -

82 UMM Aok oE I BT 4

2016 2015

—E-RE —T-hF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

BT TExT FAL

Receipts in advance Tl A 8,904,751 8,365,551

Other payables HibFER 7R 7,042,524 4,204,095

Loans from associates REMERNRZER 43(b) 301,147 285,883
Loans from non-controlling PEEREYEE

shareholders ZER (i) 124,767 142,300

Loans from fellow subsidiaries TERZRMBRARZER 43(b) 13,652 126,481

Accruals and provisions e B R R EE (ii) 637,074 796,580

17,023,915 13,920,890
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32 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

)

(i

The loans from non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries
of the Group are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of HK$63,292,000
(2015: HK$100,437,000) bear interest from one-year benchmark
lending rate of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) to five-year
benchmark lending rate of the PBOC, while the remaining balance of
HK$61,475,000 (2015: HK$41,863,000) is interest-free.

On 12 September 2014, Shum Yip Terra, a 75.05% owned subsidiary
of the Company, and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wuhan Shum
Yip Terra Property Development Company Limited (“Wuhan Terra”),
received a notification for the appointment of defender/application
for legal aid during the prosecution review phase from The People’s
Procuratorate of Jianli County of Hubei Province (the “People’s
Procuratorate”), informing Shum Yip Terra and Wuhan Terra that
materials in respect of the suspected corporate offence of bribery on
both of them have been transferred to the Public Prosecution Bureau
of the Procuratorate for prosecution review.

The People’s Procuratorate considers that there were violations of the
relevant regulations in the procedures in respect of a land transaction
involved by Wuhan Terra which has caused a loss of state-owned land
income, and the loss in the amount of approximately RMB316 million
should be recovered from Shum Yip Terra. The People’s Procuratorate
has frozen certain bank accounts of Wuhan Terra and Shum Yip Terra.
Further details of the matter are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 September 2014.

At 31 December 2016, the balance of the frozen bank accounts
of Wuhan Terra amounted to RMB546,850,000 (equivalent to
HK$611,323,000).

In 2016, Wuhan Terra received a notification from the People’s Court
regarding the prosecution filed by the People’s Procuratorate.

Based on the information currently known to the Group and
after consultation with outside legal counsel, a provision of
HK$606,363,000 has been set up in relation to the aforementioned
litigation, which represents management’s best estimate of the
expected financial outcome of the litigation.

32 LA AHOR K RER # A (A1)

()

()

REASESBAIMBRAFERBRRCE
HAEEEAEERTENE - EANIETR
f% 38 3% 7E63,292,0008 T (ZE— R F -
100,437,000/ 7T) B ARIBIT2 —FH
EEEFFERZHEARBIZAFHE
EERFIERGTE - MEBRE#61,475,000
BT (T — T 418630008 7T) A%
B o

AARRFRT5.0%0 B AR RERAR
H2EMBARREMAERARHEH
BERAA ([RERA)) RZT—W04F
B+ BUEIMILE LR ARBRR
([ARBERI(BERFREZTHE
N/ BFEEEHENE) ENRESR
ARBERAMD RS RENITHEN R
MR N FRETRE R -

ARBRERZBAREZAS R LR S
BFERARME  ERBERLHRER
K ERARRABHERBBEOARE
36EET - ARBEREHRERALR
ERNETRITEP - AFENE—F5F
BERARARBR-Z-—OFAATN
HE DA o

R-ZB—XE+=-A=+—-H0 ®REZ
ERCEHZBATEFREAARYE
546,850,0007T (& 7611,323,0007T)

R-F—A%F RERRUEIEEARR
EhRiREER AR EREHE -

RIEAREE BRI FTAE BT LRI E
fil7% - B %t L il 5F 72 3% 12606,363,00078 7T
B NEEEHFABHUEILZE
EffE -
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33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current tax in the consolidated statement of financial position

(a)

33 ERE MDA N Z P AL

(a) HERBIRRAZ NEBIAE

represents:
2016 2015
—E-XE —T-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FAET
Provision for CIT TEMSHES 2,570,183 2,076,665
Provision for LAT + I E R AR 6,184,995 4,417,894
8,755,178 6,494,559

Deferred tax asset and liabilities recognised
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

(b) CHERERAIIEEE K AME
BEERBEENEGBEFAEHMT

Deferred tax liabilities: BREREAEE
2016
ZE-RE
Fair value Accelerated
Withholding Revaluation of  adjustment  and associates
taxon  Revaluation available-  arising from tax depreciation
dividend of investment Revaluation for-sale  acquisition of on investment
(note)  properties  of assets investments  subsidiaries properties Others Total
Gl
k& HEARR RENE
BB RENE iRAE HELDEL ZIMERE
(53] Eff  EEEf  REEf 2QAERE it 2 an
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T Thn T TR Thn Térn Tz TEx
At 1 January 2016 RIE-nE
-F-H 333,852 2,481,085 71,579 13,238 4,298,336 192,019 1,188 7,391,297
Deferred tax charged/(credited)  AFEFABER
to the statement of profitor &L
loss during the year WA 4,968 455,805 (5,553) - (680,811) 20,149 55784  (149,658)
Deferred tax credited to squity  AEEH AERR
during the year BZERHE - - - (901) - - - (901)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HNEBAR - - - - 1,976,087 - - 1,976,087
Exchange realignment 3 (21,287)  (162,161) (4,785) (796) (241,386) (13,002  (2,919) (446,336)
Gross deferred tax liabilities M =F—7%F
at 31 December 2016 T-A=t-H
LERHESE
e 317,533 2,774,729 61,241 11,541 5,352,226 199,166 54,053 8,770,489
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33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b)

33

AR B IR VLR N Z BB ()

Deferred tax asset and liabilities recognised (continued) (b) CHERELHIEEEKAMR (5)
2015
“5-1%F
Fair value Accelerated
Withholding Revaluation of adjustment  and associates
taxon  Revaluation available- arising from  tax depreciation
dividend of investment  Revaluation for-sale  acquisition of  on investment
(note)  properties of assets  investments subsidiaries properties Others Total
[l
HELAR RENE
ReEHNB  RENE TEE  BEAAEE  ZNERE
(Hf3E) Bff  EEEf  REER  RgERE nE i g
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T T T T Tér  TEr  TEx
At 1 January 2015 WZ3-1%
-B-A 317,045 2237914 72,501 15,419 4,952,950 185,309 1,244 7,782,382
Deferred tax charged/(credited)  AEEH ABER
to the statement of profitor W&
loss during the year WA 35,651 354,637 - - (448,219) 18,004 - (39,927)
Deferred tax credited to equity  AFE: VERER
during the year B2 ELHE - - - (1,565) - - - (1565)
Exchange realignment EXRE (18,844)  (111,466) (922) (616) (206,395) (11,294) (56)  (349,599)
Gross deferred tax liabilties  RZF-HE
at 31 December 2015 t-A=t-H
LERHEERE
&g 333,852 2,481,085 71,579 13,238 4,298,336 192,019 1,188 7,391,297
Note: BisE

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008. As at 31 December 2016, the Group recognised a deferred tax liability of
HK$317,533,000 (2015: HK$333,852,000) in respect of the withholding tax on
future dividend distribution by these PRC subsidiaries.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BERECEREHE RPBEAERLZING
BECERNEREESTRREBRI0%EURTEN
BeowBTeh_STN\E—A—BR4E% 1EA
R-FELF+-A=+—BG2EF - HFEX
BEEINEREE 7 A AREE R RER S
B EAREBNRE - BERASEZHEE
5% Bt - AEBEETRAPERER Iz ZS
HWBARIN-Z2ZT/\&—F—BRELZAFME
BEHNENR - R=E—AE+-_A=+—8
AEERZEFENBRARZARBE SR ZTE
MAEERETER B A E317,533,0008 T (Z2— &
4 : 333,852,000/8 ) °

RRR XN FHBRERZ B 88 B
FIemmR -
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(b)

33 ARTHBRDLR N Z P B ()

Deferred tax asset and liabilities recognised (continued) (b) CHEZRELRIEEERAM ()
Deferred tax assets: EREFIEEE
2016
ZE-RE
Losses
available for ~ Temporary ~ Temporary
offsetting differences differences
against future  arising from  arising from  Unrealised
taxable profits LT provision accruals profits Others Total
WREEE  LHEER
ARERY  RREELz EHEREL
hvilld 5 - EREE  CERER  AEEEN 2t ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Thn Thr T ThT Thn Thn
At 1 January 2016 RZE-"F-f-H 147,658 1,053,374 - 154,706 3177 1,386,915
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ K5
the statement of profit or loss TABREMZ
during the year ERsE (74,798) 557,494 162,717 43,256 (3,560) 685,109
Exchange realignment ERA% (6,037) (89,107) (7,139) (13,766) (1,534) (117,583)
Gross deferred tax assets RIE-AEFZA=1t-H2
at 31 December 2016 BLHRAELE 66,823 1,521,761 155,578 184,196 26,083 1,954,441
2015
“T-nf
Losses
available for Temporary Temporary
offsetting differences  differences
against future ~~ arising from ~arising from Unrealised
taxable profits LT provision accruals profits Others Total
REEE  TIEER
ARERR  REEEC EHEREE
eyilbd IREE  (EWEE AERET Efh hz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Tt Tt T
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1%-A-H 144,162 981,090 - 54,279 34,31 1,213,842
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the A&
statement of profit or loss during SABRRNZ
the year EHE 10,373 121,767 - 106,691 (1,469) 237,362
Exchange realignment EfAE (6,877) (49,489) - (6,264) (1,665) (64,289)
Gross deferred tax assets RIE-REFZA=1-H2
at 31 December 2015 EUREERES 147,658 1,063,374 - 154,706 3177 1,386,915
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33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33 ZAMBERNERNZIER ()
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax asset not recognised () ARMERIELHIEE B

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$322,367,000 AEEREE 2 TIEEE £322,367,0007%
(2015: HK$322,367,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting T (ZE—H%F 3223670008 7C) A A
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses EEBEEELBR 2 A2 RRIERT
arose. A o

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of FEBRPEAREZHREEEA
HK$3,075,785,000 (2015: HK$1,606,467,000), which will expire in 3,075,785,000%% (= & — &H #F:
2017, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 with details as follow: 1,606,467,000 7T) - # /AR _F —+

FORONFCENFCFCF
ER-T-—EHH . HENT

2016 2015
—E-RE i e
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FAL
2016 —E-R = 77,241
2017 —E—tF 111,128 286,577
2018 “E-N\EF 245,607 258,410
2019 —E-NEF 646,367 631,947
2020 “Z-TF 678,559 352,292
2021 T —F 1,394,124 -
3,075,785 1,606,467
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these ARNZEEBRNIREBERZEZHBEA
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making A MRBBBANIES R UK HEES
for years and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be FaA Y ERZ S ERRERELERIE
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. BE o
34 DEFERRED INCOME 34 BREWA
As at 31 December 2016, deferred income of HK$27,375,000 (2015: RZE—RE+-_A=+—0 27375000 T
HK$32,088,000) represented government grants received from the relevant (ZZ—FR%F :32,088,0008 L) ZELWAER
government bodies to support the research and development activities of BREBRFERENR 2 FEE WX SERER
the Nongke Group. During the year, the income of HK$14,704,000 (2015: ZWEEE - £ 147040008 T (ZE— R
HK$10,175,000) has been credited to the consolidated statement of profit F 110,175,000/ 70) 2 WA ERK BT #ER] B
or loss upon fulfilment of certain conditions specified by the government ZETERBANGEEEEEK -
bodies.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which
was approved and adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The eligible participants of the Scheme
include any employee or director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors) of any member of the group
comprising the Company, Shum Yip Holdings, Shum Yip Group, and their
subsidiaries and associated companies from time to time (the “SY Group”)
or any employee, partner or director of any business consultant, joint
venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of and to any member
of the SY Group, as absolutely determined by the board of directors.
The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2012 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from that date, after which period no further options will be issued but in all
other respects the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme
unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from its shareholders. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the above,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30
percent of the shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.

35 JEMCHERT

ARERE—RBACE S (T5H81) R=F—
TERAZTZARERRS  LHAKEER
BRNEHERCAER2 BERESB R E
B stBlZAERZEFARALRA  RX (&
) REEBRREE2ME DR K@
RE (PREZBEE]) CREIES (BREH
T FRTRBIFNTES)  IREERE
BEMKERRZINERER - aEBF  #
BRALARERCESR  BHAES HHE

SRHERT - HHER =T —FXA=1+=H
R MERFFRBUBREER] - BRI BN
ZREGTENEYR - ARHERE - AITEH
R EERE  BEMAEMIE - 5H8IEX
BETRANRMER -

BRIEARD R ERE B1THLE - BAIEBEITER
Bt g R AR B EMEaERET IR L 2 BR
MR EmREE ERTGRBNILE
HEE AT EITROBEZ10% o BIEENEK
R BEREBD SR AZI0%REE - &R
i - AEEITERETEIRA R A M E
IRERTBIR B M ST 2 AT ERET a8
BOIROYE LRTEBBTRERTRNE
#230% °

BR2EEREAENAS BN LR - AT
FEREMREARERTE2EE ZBRE (B
ROETERRARITEBBE) MBTREHE
TBinBs  TERAEETRIAHZ1% -
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35 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The period under which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the board of directors at their absolute discretion and notified by the
directors to each grantee as being the period during which an option may
be exercised, and shall expire no later than the 10th anniversary of the
date upon which the option is granted and accepted in accordance with
the Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors and
specified in the offer letter at the time of the offer, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before the option can be exercised.
An option is open for acceptance for a period as determined by the board
of directors at its absolute discretion. The amount payable on acceptance of
an option is HK$1. The full amount of exercise price for the subscription for
shares has to be paid upon exercise of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of directors
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of grant, which must be
a business day, and (i) a price being the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of grant.

35 JEMRERTE ()

BEEZATEAMMESSLERT  THE
FRAEARA - MARTEARARET N
BRER L REZRAE B RR0BFE RAE
e BIFEZERTE RAERHBRERRE T E
frrER DRIETEBRENTRLEARER
Btz IEHIR - AR HEMR L 2 ROK
AIMESER2ERT  BRBRERAIR
BIATL ° RERD 2 TEERARITERBIER
2T -

THENEESEE RN AL  TREEAE
PBATZERE  ((INREER (WARER
B) EBEBARBMERLAEARERMH
ZBIETHE - RREERHEBRMDEEZE
HERBMARSMERAFEARERMEL
i mEFSE -
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35 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The terms and conditions of the share options outstanding as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

35 FEMCHERE (%)
RS R M AT B ARIE 7 (2 R I T -

Contractual
Number of Exercise life of
instruments price Vesting date Expire date options
BREZ
TAYE THE BEAH AMAH  AHER
At 31 December 2016
RZE—R"FTZA=+—H
Batch 1 options granted to directors
and employees:
BRTESREEE—HERE
—on 27 January 2014 22,187,200  2.8500 28/01/2016 27/01/2019 5.00
—-RIE-NF-A=++tH “E-XE-A=+tN\B Z=EBE-hF-HA=t+tH
—on 27 January 2014 36,940,200 2.8500 28/01/2017 27/01/2019 5.00
-RIE-mNFE-A=++tH “E—t§-A=t+N\H Z=EBE-hFE-A=t+tH
—on 27 January 2014 36,940,200 2.8500 28/01/2018 27/01/2019 5.00
—RZE-NF-A=++H “2-\$-A=tN\B Z=B-hE—-A=-+tH
Batch 2 options granted to
directors and employees:
BRTESREEE _HERE
—on 27 July 2015 2,805,600 3.3960 28/01/2016 27/01/2019 3.50
—RIE-RFELAZT+LH —E-X"E-A=t+tN\B =—E-hfE-A=1tAH
—on 27 July 2015 2,104,200 3.3960 28/01/2017 27/01/2019 3.50
—RZE-RFLHAZT+LH “E-tF-A=+N\H ZEBE-AF-HA=ttH
—on 27 July 2015 2,234,943  3.3960 28/01/2018 27/01/2019 3.50
—-RIE-AFLA=++tH “E-N\F-A=-+N\A ZE-NF-A=t+tH
Batch 3 options granted to
directors and employees:
RYEERESZEHREMRIE :
—on 14 June 2016 2,768,000 3.1080 14/06/2016 27/01/2019 2.62
—RZE-RE A+THEA ZE-REXATHE ZE-hAE-HA=+tH
—on 14 June 2016 2,076,000 3.1080 28/01/2017 27/01/2019 2.62
—RZE—R"FAA+EA “Z2—+t&-A=-tN\HB Z=B-hE—-HA=-+tH
—on 14 June 2016 2,076,000 3.1080 28/01/2018 27/01/2019 2.62
—RIE-RFRATHEA “E-N\F-A=+N\R Z=B-hF-HA=t+tH
Total share options granted 110,132,343

ERHEREER
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35 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35 MEMHERTE (&)
The terms and conditions of the share options outstanding as at the end of PREE R AITEERE Z B R IEHENT

the reporting period are as follows:

Contractual
Number of Exercise life of
instruments price Vesting date Expire date options
BREZ
THEEE fTEE BEEH IAMEH  BHER
At 31 December 2015
RZZ-RhF+-A=+—H
Batch 1 options granted to
directors and employees:
KTESREECEHBRE -
—on 27 January 2014 44,679,600  2.8500 28/01/2016 27/01/2019 5.00
-RZE-mF—A=1++H TR F-A-t+/N\B —Z-AE—B-t++tH
—on 27 January 2014 36,940,200  2.8500 28/01/2017 27/01/2019 5.00
-RZE-MF—A=++tAH “T—+F-A-+\H —Z-AE-F-++tH
—on 27 January 2014 36,940,200  2.8500 28/01/2018 27/01/2019 5.00
—-RZE-NF-A=++tH “T-\F—A=+N\B ZE-hAF-A=t++H
Batch 2 options granted to
directors and employees:
RTEEREECE _HERE :
—on 27 July 2015 3,138,400  3.3960 28/01/2016 27/01/2019 3.50
-RIE-RAFEA=TtH - F—A=+N\B ZE-hF-A=t++H
—on 27 July 2015 2,353,800  3.3960 28/01/2017 27/01/2019 3.50
-RZE-RFtA=-t++tH “T—+F—-A-+N\B —Z-AE—AB-++tH
—on 27 July 2015 2,353,800  3.3960 28/01/2018 27/01/2019 3.50
-RZE-RFtA=++tAH “Z-N\F-A-+N\B —ZEZ-AE—-F-++tH
Total share options granted 126,406,000
BRI EREER
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights * BT EAREERRARETHAATRAE
or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. ZEMBYEEELEE -
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35 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options under
the Scheme are as follows:

i JRe it o (7)
R BIREBRE . 8B RNETHTEEN
T

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MEFHTEE  EREHE mETHETfRE BREHE

HK$ HK$

per share per share

BRER FRAT
At 1 January nw—A—H 2.8839 126,406,000 2.7429 181,927,600
Granted during the year RERE T 3.1080 6,920,000 3.3960 7,846,000
Exercised during the year RERITE 2.8500 (10,666,400) 2.5190  (56,687,830)
Forfeited during the year RERZIK 2.8559  (7,464,057) 2.8500  (2,506,000)
Lapsed during the year RERKH 2.8500  (4,730,400) - -
Cancelled during the year RERGEH 3.3960 (332,800) 2.6774  (4,173,770)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8H 2.9052 110,132,343 2.8839 126,406,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was HK$3.7181 per share (2015: HK$3.7612).

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$3,502,000 (HK$0.5061 each). The Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$11,823,000 (2015: HK$24,171,000) during the year ended
31 December 2016.

RERTTE 2 BRENTTE BB 2 N FHRE
BERISET (ZE—1FE : §R3761208
JT) e

R E R E TR E 2 A 2 E A3,502,0008 T
(B17050618 L) s REZ-ZT— A "F+=HA
“+—HIFE  AEERRACBREMATA
11,823,000/8 7T (ZZ— T4 : 24,171,000 ) °
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35 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35 JMRHERTE ()

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

RERRLUABRAZ 2 BREZ AR BEERE
B EE A = B T BARA - SR BRI
BHZEZRIEHEE - TRIIREAFERZ
BAE

Share price (HK$) RE (&)
Exercise price (HK$) 111518 (Br)
Dividend vyield (%) P 515 2 R (%)
Volatility (%) 18 (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) ERRFIE %)

BRI FH (F)

Expected life of options (year)

3.0200
3.1080
5.3000
38.6800
0.5140
0-1.6200

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The 10,666,400 share options exercised during the year resulted in the
issue of 10,666,400 ordinary shares of the Company and an increase in
share capital of HK$35,721,000 (before issue expenses), as further detailed
in note 36(b)(ii) to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 110,132,343 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately
1.44% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 110,132,343 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$374,797,000
(before issue expenses).

RAERENNLMERBBERSH -

F N 17 ££10,666,40017 BE A% 4 % & B 17
10,666,4008% A< 1~ & & @ B - K A% A< 52 m
35,721,000 C CRINBETHAY)  #— Pl
A B TS 3R 2R P #E36(b)(i)

RIEER - BB E] - ARFH110,132,343%
BRE (AR TRZ BT BITROL1.44%)
RITE o RBIAR 2 AR AIRALRE - BEITE
R AR T 0,2 B AR B0 B 1T 5B M 10,132,343 %
RABZ LR - 18 A0A% 374,797,000 7T (K
MBREBITRL)
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36 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) Movements in components of equily
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

36 FEA K
(a) HERALIH A 2500
AEBEERARD AR BN RBREH
ZHENRGARREDEN - AR DE
R HERHSREDRE R ZBE

the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

T

Share option Retained
Share capital reserve profits Total
[ BRERE REER Fokc)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THL THL TET
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—1%—H—H 14,564,800 59,883 901,932 15,526,615
Total comprehensive income FAZERE
for the year ek - - 1,659,689 1,659,689
Share options exercised TR E 178,560 (35,766) - 142,794
Transfer of share option TN PR A R T S
reserve upon the lapse and BRI
cancellation of share options [ - (426) 426 -
Equity-settled share PARRAS ST+ 2 BB A i
option expense 53 - 24,171 - 24,171
Final 2014 dividends T -MIEREKRE 4,846 - (959,605) (954,759)
Interim 2015 dividends —T-RERERE - - (221,521) (221,521)
Issue of shares M7 2,730,275 - - 2,730,275
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-—FF+ZA
1 January 2016 =t+—-Bk
—E-R"¥—-H—H 17,478,481 47,862 1,380,921 18,907,264
Total comprehensive income FRZENE
for the year ke - - 1,440,758 1,440,758
Share options exercised -y 35,721 (5,321) = 30,400
Transfer of share option N TSI
reserve upon the lapse and AR ER
cancellation of share options B E - (1,104) 1,104 -
Equity-settled share PARRAS 7 1+ 2 BB A i
option expense M - 11,823 - 11,823
Final 2015 dividends “E-nEREKRS 751,256 - (959,922) (208,666)
Interim 2016 dividends “E-RERHRE 15,733 - (534,884) (519,151)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RE
+-A=+—H 18,281,191 53,260 1,327,977 19,662,428
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36 BEALfHME (%)

(b) Share capital (b) BeA
2016 2015
—E-RE “T-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT TEL
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
7,649,164,458 (2015: 7,384,016,988) 7,649,164,458%
ordinary shares (ZZ—T% :7,384,016,988%)
TmR 18,281,191 17,478,481
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: TR BRAZHNOT
2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-nf
Number of Issued Number of Issued
shares in issue share capital shares in issue share capital
BRITRAEE BRORKR BEERIRHYUE BEIRA
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL
At 1 January R—A—H 7,384,016,988 17,478,481 6,656,055,289 14,564,800
Share options exercised i) {1 B AR i) 10,666,400 35,721 56,687,330 178,560
Final dividend in the form of new MR AH A RE 2
share (iii) KA A i) 250,251,905 751,256 1,273,869 4,846
Interim dividend in the form of IR GOF RS2
new share (iii) 3 & (i) 4,229,165 15,733 - -
Issue of shares (iv) TR () - - 670,000,000 2,730,275
At 31 December R+ZA=1+—H 7,649,164,458 18,281,191 7,384,016,988 17,478,481
Notes: Bt aE -

(i) In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the
ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

(i) The subscription rights attaching to 10,666,400 (2015: 56,687,830)
share options were exercised at the weighted average subscription price of
HK$2.850 (2015: HK$2.519) per share, resulting in the issue of 10,666,400
(2015: 56,687,830) shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$30,400,000 (2015: HK$142,794,000). An amount of HK$5,321,000
(2015: HK$35,766,000) was transferred from the share option reserve to
share capital upon the exercise of the share options.

U

(i)

RIE(EBREED) F135(6 - RARRER
RESkEE -

EEEHE ABRUBRTARE RIS - I
BERARABRAE LRERFE—HK
FiE-MEERREARRZABEESSR
RIS R -

10,666,40017 (= F — T 4F : 56,687,83017)
BREMMA, RBECEMELIRE
B 5 R28507 Tt (Z T — F F: 25198
JU) 1718 - EEE1710,666,4008% (=T —H
1 56,687,8300%) fr1H - IS NE (FNBk
# 3 A1) 530,400,008 T (Z T —H & :
142,794,000/ 7T ) © & #85,321,0008 T (=%
—HF ¢ 35,766,000/ L) TYRTTEBRIER
mEREEESREERA -

214



Shenzhen Investment Limited {EIF AT A7

Annual Report 2016 —E— < EF#f

Notes to the Financial Statements

OB R kW R

36 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(v)

On 30 March 2016, the board of directors resolved to declare the 2015
final dividend of HK 13.00 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2015, and on 29 August 2016, the board of directors resolved to declare
the 2016 interim dividend of HK 7.00 cents per share for the year ended
30 June 2016. The Board further resolved that this dividends will be paid
in cash but shareholders will be given the option of receiving such dividend
wholly in new fully paid share(s) of the Company in lieu of cash, or partly in
cash and party in form of scrip shares. The 2015 final dividend in the form
of scrip shares resulted in the issue of 250,251,905 shares at an issue
price of HK$3.002 per share for a total consideration, before expenses, of
HK$751,256,000. The 2016 interim dividend in the form of scrip shares
resulted in the share of 4,229,165 shares at an issue price of HK$3.720 per
share for a total consideration, before expenses, of HK$15,733,000.

On 12 June 2015, 670,000,000 new shares were allotted and issued at the
net subscription price of approximately HK$4.075 per share after deducting
relevant fees and expenses. The net proceeds from the subscription are
approximately HK$2,730,275,000.

(c¢) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of the grant date
fair value of unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(s)/(i).

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
leasehold land and buildings held for own use in note 2(i).

(iii) Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve

The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
investments held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in notes 2(g)
and 2(K)(i).

36 ALK (%)

(b) A
s -

(i)

(c) ffi
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(i)

(i)

(1)
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EEEN-_T-AE-AZ+HHBERTRE
EE-RE+-A=+-RIFEZ-F
—RHEREREEFRIBOBWL  RRZF
—~ENAZTNRESCEREREZ=
E-RNEXNAZHALEEZZT—RFH
R B ERT00EN - EEGE—FERE
PEEFAIN  RETREZTURS
REMEZSDBOIUNE S RSB AR BR K
ARMEGZERS - MREBRHHALHZ
T—-RERMMR BB ETE17250,251,9050% B
3+ BITES3.0025 T - BRE (NKBH
X A1) B751,256,000 7T o AR SR HBF R
FRZT— A FF RS S 174,229,165
MRz - BITEERIT20E T - BRE (1
BRBASZAT) 415,733,000/ 7T ©

R-ZZE-—RAFEXA+-_H BERE%
670,000,000 8557 % 2 LA 5 % 494.07578 T 2 3%
RBERT (MGREBERARASE) - 8
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FEEE  WIRBME2)R2K0)E
HBURSIBREE -

215



Shenzhen Investment Limited ZEIF AT B2 7

Annual Report 2016 —ZE— < EF#f

Notes to the Financial Statements

OB R kW

36 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(c)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve

PRC statutory reserves were established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles
of association of respective companies of the Group. PRC
companies are required to transfer certain of their net profits
(after offsetting prior year losses), as determined under the
approval by the board of directors, to statutory general reserve.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good prior years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital by issuing new
shares to shareholders proportionate to their existing percentage
of equity interests provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in notes 2(w).

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid and the book value of the share of net
assets acquired in respect of the acquisition of non-controlling
interests, and the difference between the consideration received
and the book value of the share of net assets disposed of in
respect of a change in the ownership interest in a subsidiary
without a loss of control.

(d) Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure
the financing capabilities of the Company in running its operation on
a going concern basis, to maintain an optimal capital structure, to
reduce capital cost and to maximise shareholders’ value.

36 BEALfHME (%)
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36 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(d) Capital management (continued)

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately
according to the specific features of the risks of its assets and
the changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments
in dividend distribution, injections and repayments of capital by
shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to maintain
an optimal capital structure of the Company. The Group monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company. The Group’s
policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. Net debt
is interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods are as follows:

36 ALK (%)

(d)

EAKH (4)

ARERBEESBELHERREHLE
BEEMNEHEEMHEENRREE
TEENRHAE ZRAABRBRENE KR
TEREEBALBITHB  AEEER
BARB 2 BARBHEFHEBILKT - K
SEERERABER (MFABERALA
AlEAARGED) EXEER - ARH
ZBRIEEARBRERESEKY -
FERRTERTREBEERREE MR
EEEMARZRHIBS - RBREHRZ
BRAEEMT :

2016 2015

—EB-RE —E-0F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TERT FAET

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FEHRTREMES 19,757,245 21,375,093

Less: Cash and cash equivalents W RBeRBAEEEY (9,859,526) (9,708,046)

Restricted cash ZRHIRE (2,204,157) (4,110,729)

Net loans FER 7,693,562 7,556,318
Equity attributable to shareholders of AARREELER

the Company 32,810,813 33,325,865

Gearing ratio BREGER 23% 23%

37 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Business combination

On 21 December 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
contract with Shum Yip Holdings to acquire the 95% equity interest
in Fairwind. Fairwind is an investment holding company. The Fairwind
is engaged in property development and property investment. The
acquisition was completed on 15 March 2016.

The purchase consideration for the acquisition of HK$2,264,233,000
was satisfied in cash.

37 WM A 7

()

ey Sk
RZZE-—RAF+-A=-+—H AEEHE
RE(£E) GV EEWE WEFaimwind
95%,2 F% 12 © Fairwind & — B R B 2B A
Ao Fawindft EMERERMEREE
Ko WBEBEER T E=ATHA
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U 7 BB R (B2,264,233,00078 7T AR
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37 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Business combination (continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Fairwind and
its subsidiaries (the “Fairwind Group”) as at the date of acquisition

i

37 W A (A7)

EBA (F)
Fairwind }2 £ {8 2 8] ([Fairwind £ &) 7]
HRAEENREERRBERBZAREN

(a)

were as follows:

T

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

REBERIAZAAE
Note HK$'000
fisE FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 1,711
Properties under development BREPYE 8,091,685
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNHIE - e REMEKFIE 509,769
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 105,569
Trade payables ERERR (1,337)
Other payables and accruals HinE 3B REER (2,400,660
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings st S RTERX R EMEE (1,393,300)
Deferred tax liabilities ELHIBEEE (1,976,087
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRARBEFMEZHFEEFELE 2,937,350
Percentage of acquisition of Fairwind Group WiEFainwind £ B 2 B A I 95%
Share of net identifiable assets acquired DIEFTUE 2 AT R A E R B 2,790,482
Less: Consideration o RE (2,264,233)
Gain of a bargain purchase recognised in other ~ REABZERNE MU A
income and gains in the consolidated statement R FISH R 2 EE
of profit or loss TS 5 526,249
Consideration, satisfied in cash RE BReHZ 2,264,233
Less: cash and cash equivalents Ao ReRREEEY (105,569
Payment for acquisition of Fairwind Group, W B Fairwind 52 @ 2 5K - FABRPTUREE
net of cash acquired 2Bg 2,158,664

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue and profit of the Group for the year would have been
HK$21,363,563,000 and HK$3,458,170,000 respectively.

WAHBEENFY  WAEEFRMIE
5% F & 5 Bl A21,363,563,000% 7T K
3,458,170,000/8 7T
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37 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 20 December 2016, SY Land, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the capital increase agreement with
Shenzhen International Qianhai Investment and Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“SIQ Investment”), a subsidiary of Shenzhen
International Holdings Limited (“Shenzhen International”), and SIQ
Real Estate (SIQ Investment’s wholly-owned subsidiary at that time),
pursuant to which SY Land agrees to make a capital contribution of
RMB1,120 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,252 million)
to SIQ Real Estate. As at 31 December 2016, 50% of the registered
capital of SIQ Real Estate was owned as to 50% by SIQ Investment
and as to 50% by SY Land. Although SY Land only has 50% equity
interest in SIQ Real Estate, SY Land is the controlling party of SIQ
Real Estate by owning more than 50% voting rights in the board of
SIQ Real Estate. Consequently, SIQ Real Estate is accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Group since the date that the Group obtained more
than 50% voting rights. Prior to the capital contribution, SIQ Real
Estate’s underlying assets mainly comprise a land parcel, which was
not integrated in forming a business to generate external revenues
to the Group as a whole. As such, the directors are of the opinion
that the acquisition of SIQ Real Estate is considered as an asset
acquisition which does not constitute a business combination for
accounting purposes.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of SIQ Real
Estate as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

37 Wb E A (4)

(b)

W s — f o A ]
RIE—RF+-_A-1+8 AAGME
BEZZENBRARFEE AR BEK
TRERAR (DRINEER]) 2B A%
BRI EREEE ORI BRRA ([A
BRE]) RAEEBE (BRAREGREZ
2EMBAR) FTLEERE - Bt &
XEWRERANEEETEAREI 1208
B (FHEAN22EEETL) - NZE—
ANE+ZA=+—H " 5§ EE50%:E
EXRAIBRERREEM S EAH0% °
BEREEMEREG ARG B E50%E -
EREEMUNERAEGEEEEZSNE
B0%A IR ERMAK ARG EE 22K
7o Bt AR ERGHEA0%E R’
ZBER  AEEEEARERZHEBA
AT EE XA 2R AIBEEY
HEEETZRE—RIDR - ZRAE
AEBEANASE T K RN
CEB MY EERAUBIEEESR
E—BEERE Meims  ZWEY
TMEREBREN -

AEEEZTHBEEREBERNIE RS
ZRRERT

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

REBERIZANE

HK$’000

FEL

Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 335

Properties under development BRAYE 2,560,262

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNFE - 7T REAEKIE 596

Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 19,006

Other payables and accruals Hib R FUERETER (76,103)

Total identifiable net assets acquired PRS2 AT R B E B 2,504,096

Percentage of acquisition of SIQ Real Estate WEEEEZENL 50%
Satisfied by: TREIAAER

Cash consideration HeRE 1,252,048
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37 WHEMHE AR ()
(b) Wl — IR A ) ()
EBRUENSEEZRERESNUT

37 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the SIQ
Real Estate is as follows:

HK$'000

FAET

Consideration, satisfied in cash RE R 1,252,048

Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired W TRE R e BRESEY (19,006)

Less: Other payable W EEME (626,024)
Net outflow of cash equivalents included in cash flows SFARBEHMBELSREY

from investing activities ReEBYRILFE 607,018

5o i A
AEEABEFEHBRTELIEE R
- FEREBER - ARENAEE LY
BRRERAE I RERRARLE S SR
EREBEY -

38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed to
equity price risk arising from its equity investments in other entities and
movements in its own equity share price.

AREAR SRR EREAREERRUR
AEEERZLERARARAEHFHANT -

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Credit risk (a) 5 Bk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale investments and
trade and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with @ maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

To manage the risk, deposits are mainly placed with licensed banks
which are all high credit quality financial institutions. The Group
trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties for the
sales of properties and goods. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to buyers with appropriate financial
strength and appropriate percentage of down payments. The
Group would not release the property ownership certificates to the
buyers before the buyers fully settle the payment. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure
spreading over a number of counterparties and customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 26 to the
financial statements.

ARECEREE (BRASRASEE
W AHHECRE - BRREFREME
WHR) 2 EERBRRERZUFHRRAN
o RAEERRESRESTAZRR
R

REERR AEEIBREREARRE
BIT REDRBEEERZERBE -
AEBEENZRAEEZE=ETY
FhAmR S ARECETHRERM
EREENBENRINEEGALES
NRZERFELEE - HERZEEEN
FE ARBETEREBHEER - A%
BN EA A SR RRREUR
ERBRRBIRET - B AERETH
ENSREAZELE S RFALRES
B AR TREDSRIELRAAE
BR - ARBYEEMNEAETEEAR
B AU ZERDBREZIFHT R
BP -

FRRNERELAREEERR 2 E A
BRI TR M 7E26 -
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
short and long term bank loans. Through maintaining a reasonable
proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group is able to meet
its ongoing financial needs.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

£ W

38 A B B

(b)

(%)

T L e

EREERGEEAC AR EERA
EEREMERR - $E.EE@ﬁLﬁﬁE
%ﬁ&%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬁk BRBoREHER
BElte T ZRBHEEBRARBRK
HERELH $%@Tﬁiﬁﬁ%§ﬂﬁ%
z3.

TRIFEAEENGODARARERE
(BREERGANEX (MRZE) BRE
ERRRTNEFEZFENF) BE
RZeBAERBREHRBRT 2ENHR
RAGEARER Nz &RAH

2016 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
“E-RERNANBRERILE

Carrying
amount at
Within One to Two to Over 31 December
On demand one year twoyears  threeyears  three years Total 2016
RZE-1xE
+ZA=1+-H
RER -/ -EWE WE=% BEA=F @ag ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
ThR ThL ThL THEL TERL TERL TAL
Interest-hearing bank and other SFERTRAM
borrowings EE 8,043 6,040,947 5,410,851 3,568,816 6,622,248 21,651,805 19,757,245
Trade payables FE(SEERR - 1,116,432 - - - 1,116,432 1,116,432
Other payables (note 32) Eft g (Fists2) - 104254 - - - 104252 7,042,524
Loans from non-controlling FHERBREER
shargholders (note 32) (Biz32) - 124,767 - - - 124,767 124,767
Loans from fellow subsidiaries AZRBARER
(note 32) (Mizr3e) = 13,652 - - - 13,652 13,652
Due to the immediate R ERERAF
holding company EE] 929,427 418,330 23,745 720,871 - 2,092,373 2,023,117
Due to the ultimate holding company FEHE—MHQM 442,887 1,636,499 894,320 - - 2973706 2,850,880
Loans from associates (note 32) BENFIET (33 ) 301,147 - - - - 301,147 301,147
Total k] 1,682,404 16,393,151 6,328,916 4,289,687 6,622,248 35,316,406 33,229,764
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

38 M EMEH (5)
(b) VbR ()

2015 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

“E-RERNARERLRLE

Carrying
amount at
Within One to Two to QOver 31 December
On demand one year two years  three years  three years Total 2015
R-Z-1fF
+-A=t-E
BEX R —ERF mE=f BacE o LEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Thr Thr Thr Thr Thr
Interest-bearing bank and other STERITREM
borrowings B8 10,581 6,248,160 5144094 3910331 9,633,483 24,946,649 21,375,093
Trade payables fER 8RR - 1,013,126 - - - 1013126 1,013,126
Other payables (note 32) EHEREIE (M) - 420409 - - - 4,204,095 4,204,095
Loans from non-controlling FERREER
shareholders (note 32) (MzE32) - 142,300 - - - 142,300 142,300
Loans from fellow subsidiaries EEIEVNE-E
(note 32) (Mizrsa) - 126,481 - - - 126,481 126,481
Due to the immediate [ EZER AT
holding company HE 158,301 - 394585 - - 552,886 507,195
Due to the ultimate holding company & ZA 1R A 75108 402,860 3,587,502 45,342 984,788 - 5020492 4,781,904
Loans from associates (note 32) BenFER (fse) 285,883 - - - - 285,883 285,883
Total ik 857,625 15,321,664 5584021 4895119 9,633,483 36,291,912 32,436,077
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest rate
fluctuations of its bank borrowings. Interest on these bank borrowings
is computed based on market rates.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters
to decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible interest
rate risk that may arise.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had HK$15,485,413,000 (2015:
HK$16,672,692,000) variable interest rate bank borrowings which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. If the interest rate
of these bank borrowings had increased/decreased by 0.5% and all
other factors remained unchanged, the profit after tax for the year
of the Group would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$74,294,000 (2015: HK$62,523,000).

Currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in RMB
and the Group’s assets held and all of the committed borrowings of
the Group are mainly denominated in RMB, except for certain US$-
denominated bank loans held by the Company.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency risk
as it had minimal transactions denominated in foreign currencies
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 and the impact
of foreign currency risk on the Group’s operation is minimal. The US$-
denominated bank loans are currently not hedged as the directors
consider the risk of movements in exchange rates between the United
States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar (the Company’s functional
currency) to be insignificant.

Equity price risk

The equity price risk of the Group mainly arises from the changes
in market prices for held-for-trading equity investments (note 28)
and available-for-sale equity investments (note 22). The book values
of this type of financial assets held by the Group are recognised
according to market quotes as at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2016, if the price of listed equity securities held by
the Group had increased/decreased by 10%, and all other factors
remained unchanged and excluding tax items, the book values of the
listed equity securities of the Group would have increased/decreased
by HK$5,936,000 (2015: HK$6,928,000).

38 MEEMEH (5)

(c)

e
AEEZMEREBTIERERITEEZH
ZRGMEL - AFRITEEZNEIR
BHSHIRHE -

AEBERBEFEMBNEARIARER
BRBUPAREL 2 AR M R ER o

RZE—XNE+=-A=+—-8 &&
515,485,413,000%8 L (Z & — & ¢
16,672,692,0008 L) F BRITEE - @&
SEARBRERENERAR - WEZSR
TEEZFELFH /TB05% - MABE
MEXHERBFTE  NAERZFABRH
BRF B ER D/ 1E N 4I74,294,0007% T
(ZF—T% 62,523,000/ 7T)

Skt
AEEXBRABOELRE/ARE -
BARKEMRBEERARERAE ARG
ERFEUARBIIE  HETARARE
BZARTAHEZ RITERRI -

2R ASEVEFBINERR 2 BOE
RAEENBEEZE _T—AFR_T—~
F+ZA=+-BLFEREFRD U
BAEZRS  TEINERBEAEEE
B2EEm/| o UETEZRITERE
BIRESR DHESRAETLBTL

(RRAMEER) cEZZHRML T
KO
i T R i

AEEZBEERERTIRZRARBERS
ZBHERE (H5E28) RAT & 2 gk
B (M522) < mEZY - WEMARER
BeBEERERAENRENRSHA
ZTIZRERER -

RZZE—R"E+-_A=1+—H0" fEL&EE
BEZIMBRAZHZ2ER LA/ TH
10%  MATEEMAZSHRENE (TR
B WAEBz EHRAES ZERE
g/ 05,936,008 (ZF— 4
1 6,928,000/ 7T)
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39 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39 4£ftTHZ/ARMERA b5 5R5 40
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Fair value measurement (a) ARfistE
(i) Financial assels and liabilities measured al fair () BAREGEZEHEERERE

value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

DAESHRE
TREFFAEERFERRRETN
EREGE  BERE=ZRLAESR
(ERRBAMBREEUNE T =R
DREFE) ZERTARARE A
REEEMEEZERN2REEN
EMERTBEEREEL  BAE
BEoT:

o FRME: ERAFE-AE
AE(FImAEEELARER
AAERHAERAR GRS
RE) ABZRAE

o F_BfE:RKAF-_ABA
(ERCR U N Dl AT
FHAE) BRARBEATH
ERBABHEZRAB T
ABRAAEATARKTS
BECBAE-

o FZRME: RAEATTR
EBAEHEZAARE

AEEUHMBEERENREHAE
EEIERITALAEMEZHRER
BF - MBHMERRMBRERE
BRZEEHE - REREEH - M
BEAPMERTAZEELZDIETE
fEEFERNEIRGAE - fAERM
BREBZNIE - AEBRRER
HEVZEBEEFIHMA - FHH
RERHBER -
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39 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39 £RtTHZARMERA RS R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#)
(a) Fair value measurement (continued) (a) AnfistE (8)
(i) Financial assels and liabilities measured al fair ) BAAREBITEZLHBEERER
value (continued) (4)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DRESHEE (8)
Assets: Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using
BE: REB-RETZA=T-ARAUTBAZAAEE RZS-RET-A=T-RERNTEAZ AR BHE
Quoted (uoted
prices  Significant  Significant prices  Significant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservable inactive  observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERTE EAUBR EXTTEE WEBmE EXTRE EATIRE
Pk BAE WAE BB BAE BAE

&% (=R  (E=R) 28 90 G ER o
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn TER TR TEL TER

Available-for-sale investments ~ A[ELEERE 54,798 - - 54,798 65,583 - - 65,583
Equity investments at fair value ~ FBIERRD A EEH
through profit or loss RARE 4,566 - - 4,566 3,696 - - 3,696
59,364 - - 59,364 69,279 - - 69,279
Liabilities: Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using
BE: RZZ-AETZR=+-RERUTHAZAREHE RIE-RFT-AZT-BERUTEAZ LA EHE
Quoted Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant prices  Significant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservable inactive  observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REEMSz EATBR EATWEE RERMH. EAUBE EATIEE
HE BAR AR BE ENE BN

-8 &8 (=8 2 -0 G E=R o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TR TR TR Tin TER TR TER TER

Due to the immediate holding R ERERAA
company 7B - 383514 - 383514 - 348,894 - 348,894

=F
==
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39 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured al fair
value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2015: Nil).

The fair values of listed equity investments (including
available-for-sale investments and equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss) are determined based on quoted
market prices.

The fair values of amount due to the immediate holding
company have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2015 and 2016.

40 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) and property,
plant and equipment under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to eighteen years. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

39 b T HZ AR KA AR S R

(80

(a) AnfistE (8)

()

(i)

BARBEAEZEHEERRRE
(&)

DARESARE (8)

EN - E-RAE-_HHABERR
EfENERREREEREAA
EREBEARELE=R (“F—1
£ 8

IHBRARE (BRARHERER
ERBERAABHENRARE)
MRAAREDRETSREETE -

ENERERAROZENAALET
ERABREHR - FERRKEFEH
H|H AR Rl A T A AR A
BRRAARRERENREE -

BRAREUD TR 2 HEER
BENALE
REBIRM AR AR S
THMNREEREER-Z-RAFR=
TR E+_AZ+—HZLARET
BEARR -

40 REMLLH
ek A

(a)

RE

BERNZE  AREELETRE

W%k (M) kY% - WFEL&E - BE
BTRAMERTN\FAF - HOBFT—
REXBFPEENRECRAERTER
MEREMERERERS -
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40 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED) 40 #&MHA%H (4)

(a) As lessor (continued) (a) fERMFA ()
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease RZE-—XF+ZRA=+—H XEER
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants AT E w2 AR BUB £ MR K
falling due as follows: JEEERESBENT
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
Within one year —FR 656,036 466,793
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERTF (RIEHEME) 1,142,005 895,730
After five years hF#% 180,077 579,414
1,978,118 1,941,937
(b) As lessee (b) fEAAMA
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H £EER
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as AT HEEm 2 A BUEE & B 4ER R
follows: JEEEAASABENT
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-1%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FAET
Within one year —FR 13,959 11,744
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZENF (BREERRE) 23,435 13,692
37,394 25,436
Apart from these leases, the group is the lessee in respect of a BRZERLN AEENRARBELERY
number of properties and items of property, plant and equipment held BRAEZZEMENRDE - BE REEBE
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period BZEMA  ZEROBET BV EH
of 1 to 6 years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are —ERE WAEEELN EREMAH
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every year to FEGT HeBEESFLE  URMBS
reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. BiHe  BMERYRERAHS -
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 40(b)
above, the Group had the following commitments at the end of the reporting
period:

41

BRI
% B sEA0()sE 2 R T AR SN - M
B REBZAARBEMT :

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-1%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Commitments in respect of acquisition BB L &
of land and buildings, and development BFRERSP
costs attributable to properties under LESIEIITN
development: LHEGE
Contracted, but not provided for BETHEREHE 5,997,713 7,786,034

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has given guarantees to a maximum
extent of approximately HK$7,869,258,000 (2015: HK$8,857,658,000) to
banks for housing loans extended by the banks to the purchasers of the
Group’s properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the
outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty
owed by the defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled to
take over the legal title of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee
period commences from the date of grant of the relevant mortgage loan
and ends after the buyer of the Group’s properties obtained the individual
property ownership certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty and
therefore no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

42 BRAMRE

RIE—X"F+-A=Z+—H A£BHBETH
FTREENEER EREFRBTRESSE
#77,869,258,0007% 70 (—ZZ— R4 : 8,857,658,000
BIT) R -

REBERER > WZFERERREHE A&
BEEEENRNZZBEFURERFEER
RS RIT BN B REHK - REEBER ]
BRBBMELZRILNEE - AGE 2B RDM
BHABRBENERREBEREENEER
MEERDRABEERER °

EERNA WERIE  ARNECIERFE
RUABRNRAEER 2 RIBEHERERERH S
REIF - AR FERIELEE -
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43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43 BT 5
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEHAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEBFEEBAEZ e (BREENA
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 9 and NEEE (RHEFRESR) RETESH
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is as EE (RMFFI0AEKE) 2&8) 1T
follows:
2016 2015
—B-F —Z-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx FET
Short-term employee benefits HHEERET 12,104 12,917
Post-employment benefits BIRER 1,757 1,960
Equity settled share option expense AR A 2 BERER X 3,457 6,935
17,318 21,812
(b) Financing arrangements (b) MhEZH
Related interest
Amounts owed to the Amounts owed by the (expense)/income
Group by related parties  Group to related parties HEFE
BEAEXAREZRE AEBEXEBLZNE (%) WA
As at 31 December As at 31 December Year ended 31 December
Rt=BA=+-H Rt=ZA=+-H BE+T-R=1+-HLEE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

—EB-RE -“T-1E ZB-XE —T-1F ZB-RE -—T-1E
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T#ER TEL TR TER TR TER

Due to the immediate holding THEB& NG|

company (ii)/(v) FRIA(i)/() - - 2,023,117 507,195 (26,861) -
Due to the ultimate holding  JEfT & 42IZR% A A
company (ii)/(v) 2RI (i) - - 2,850,880 4,781,904 = (202,325)  (214,268)
Loans from fellow BEINEAE]
subsidiaries (i)/(v) B/ - - 13,652 126,481 = (7,575)
Loans from associates(i) BERNFER() - - 301,147 285,883 - -
Loans to joint venturesi(iv) BT EEhE
B (v) 1,212,741 1,027,384 - - 95,658 191,723
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43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Financing arrangements (continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The outstanding balances with these related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

The amounts due to the immediate holding company include i) loans
amounting to HK$752,362,000 (2015: nil) classified as non-current
liabilities, which are unsecured, bear interest at HIBOR/LIBOR rate plus
2.65% and repayable on 9 November 2019; ii) loans amounting to
HK$1,242,588,000 (2015: nil) classified as current liabilities, which
are unsecured, bear interest at HIBOR/LIBOR plus 2.65% and repayable
within one year; iii) the remaining balances of HK$28,167,000 (2015:
HK$507,195,000) classified as current liabilities are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The amounts due to the ultimate holding company include loans amounting
to HK$2,576,335,000 (2015: HK$2,585,478,000), which are unsecured,
bear interest at rates ranging from one year benchmark lending rate to
5.5% per annum and repayable within one year. The remaining balances of
HK$274,545,000 (2015: HK$2,196,426,000) are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The balance comprises i) HK$167,685,000 (2015: HK$77,531,000) included
in interests in joint ventures, which is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed terms of repayment; ii) HK$976,555,000 included in other long term
assets (2015: HK$949,853,000, included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables), which is unsecured, bears interest at 12% per annum and has
no fixed terms of repayment; iii) HK$56,965,000 included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (2015: nil), which is unsecured, bears interest
at a rate of 9% per annum; iv) HK$11,536,000 included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (2015: nil), which is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed terms of repayment.

These transactions constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are financial
assistance received by the Group which are conducted on normal commercial
terms or better, and are not secured by the assets of the Group.

Details of new loans and loans repaid during the year are disclosed in
the consolidated cash flow statement.

»
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43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 43 BB S (B)

(c) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial () BREZSUBBRRAMTBIBHLAZR
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with ON - FR - REEE TSI MﬁLﬂM—F
related parties during the year: EARS

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RHEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE TET FTAET
(1) Shum Yip Group, the ultimate holding (1) &BRERA
company: m:%é‘%l :
— Management fee income —EEEIA 0] 2,990 3,331
— Rental income —HHalA (ii)/(v) 8,141 4,068
(2)  Shum Yip Holdings, the immediate 2 EEERATF
holding company: RE(£E)
— Rental expenses &A% (ii)/(v) 8,369 10,419
(3)  Joint venture: @) AELHE:
— Sales of products —HEEMD (iif) 62,606 111,483
(4)  Fellow subsidiaries: 4 RRNBATE
— Management fee income - BEBWA (iv)/(v) - 2,374
— Rental expenses - L% (i/(v) 484 414
Notes {oF
()  Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into between Nongke and i  REERHEAXEEN_Z-ENF-—A=
Shum Yip Group on 27 January 2014, Shum Yip Group appointed Nongke TERFVZEAGE  AEXRERER
to provide management services on its behalf in respect of (a) certain BRASRQET RO RIERAE kb7
agricultural lands and related assets, and (b) the implementation plan of a EHBR CHBHERBEIRY - £
property development project. Further details are set out in the circular of ABERARARPA_T-NERA T
the Company dated 12 May 2014. Management fee income in respect of CHez®EK AR BELMERRYE
the management services as abovementioned of RMB1,614,000 (equivalent ZEEBPAD B HARH,614,0007 (18
to HK$1,887,000) (2015: RMB1,700,000 (equivalent to HK$2,097,000)) EHMB07 0008 ) (—F-RE: ARE
and RMB943,000 (equivalent to HK$1,103,000) (2015: RMB1,000,000 ]/,700,000@(*a%ﬁ@?,OW,OOOJ’EE)) AR
(equivalent to HK$1,234,000)) respectively, was charged to Shum Yip Group #5943,0007C (8% 71,103,000 7L) (= F—
for the year. The transaction constitutes a continuing connected transaction TF: AR1,000,0007 (*ﬁf&?g’ﬂ 234,000
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by B))  BRR 2@k - %x%%ﬁki
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section headed “Continuing m EE‘J%M/-\;-fWFﬁﬁEZFZ‘EEE R e
connected transaction” of the Directors’ Report. IHRAEINERAE HBEEESER
S HEESRS | — AR -
(i) The rentals were recognised at prices based on mutual agreement between (i) EEHREFBLHEERER -
the parties.
(i) The sales to the joint venture was made according to the published prices i)y AAEREZHEDRERETFARELY
and conditions offered to other major customers of the Group. FTERPZETIERRIEHESR -
(v)  The management fee income from a fellow subsidiary was determined at v RERRMBABZEBBRADKRITNG
prices based on mutual agreement between the parties. BERE BRETE
() These transactions constitute continuing connected transactions as defined (v) HRZERHBERE14 AJﬁ(M%EE'iﬁ?k?
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the disclosure RBR5 A H%BZ mRAIEIAZR
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are below the de FIAEZHERAN RS  HEREET LM
minimis threshold Rule 14A.76(1). HRAEUAERZ BBERT
(v In the opinion of the directors, the above related party transactions were vy EBERE LREBHIRHNBALERE
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the %i‘“@?}z BREERRETZRS ° ADF
Group’s business. The directors of the Company confirmed that the Company EXERAANFACERLTRUFEVAEL
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter EEIRTE -

14A of the Listing Rules.
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43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) Other transactions with related parties

)

(i)

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank loans and other
borrowings amounting to HK$3,771,012,000 (2015:
HK$4,534,160,000) were guaranteed by Shum Yip Group (note 30).

On 15 March 2016, the Group acquired 95% equity interest of
Fairwind. The transaction constitutes a connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of
the transaction are set out in note 37(a).

On 20 December 2016, the Group signed an agreement with
Shenzhen International and made a capital contribution to SIQ
Real Estate, which effectively acquired 50% equity interest of
SIQ Real Estate. The Group and Shenzhen International are
both entities under the control of Shenzhen Municipal People’s
Government State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission, and therefore are related parties. Further details of
the transaction are set out in note 37(b).

On 7 March 2016, Nongke, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with Shenzhen International to sell
an office building at a cash consideration of RMB1,162,438,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,359,123,000). As of 31
December 2016, the consideration has been fully settled.

Commitments with related parties

The Group has entered into certain operating lease arrangements
with Shum Yip Holdings. The amount of lease expenses for the year is
included in note 40(b) to the financial statements. The Group expects
total lease expenses in 2017, 2018 and 2019 to be approximately
HK$10,888,000, HK$10,528,000 and HK$3,509,000, respectively.

43 BB R 5 (8)

(d)

BB 5 2 HAhzZ 5

) RZE-—R"E+ZA=+—H 4%
[3,771,0120008 T (ZE— R F :
4,534,160,0008 L) 2 RITEHRRE
e BT RREEEER (M530)

i) MNZE-—A"F=ZA+HAB K£E
U EBFairwind 2 95% % 1 - Z X 5 18
K EMRBBUAENTAT ZBE
R RGP ZE—FFBHRM T
37() ©

iy RNZZT-—R"FF+ZA=1+H *5E
ERYIEREE-BHZRAAEE
EELEE BERUEAEEZYL
50%H 7 o 7N & B BRI R 5 B IR
JTARBREEEEEBERZE
eEFINER Bt AT - X5
3 — SEHEERHTEEST() ©

) MNZTE-—ANFE=P+H KREZH
B AR ERHERIY BB ET S — A
& UEEREARE1,162,438,000
7t (188 7 #91,359,123,0005 7T) H
E-ESTEEF - RZE—1"F+
“RA=1+—8B REEZ2EE-

BRI ) 2 AR

AEBERE (RE)FTUATRZEHE
ZH  FREERI SRR MBREM
AP REE  c AEEEH KTt
F E-\ER-E-NEIAEHY
485 7 B 4 /10,888,00058 7T~ 10,528,000
7T 53,509,000/ 7T, ©
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44 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

44 AT B IR DL

BEALRRBERRZMBRREK 2 ER M

T

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—NE —E-RE
t=A=t-B +-A=1-FH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THT
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 195 236
Investments in subsidiaries MBARRE 32,916,439 28,750,185
Investments in associates HENEIRE 119,532 119,532
Total non-current assets ERBEELARE 33,036,166 28,869,953
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BAFE - fTe REARKGE 40,195 2,986
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss ~ BBERR AR B E 7 RIERE 4,566 3,696
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 1,165,725 916,583
Total current assets RBEELRE 1,210,486 923,265
Current liabilities REEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FEHRTREMES 2,592,176 499,058
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNDBENETE 334,603 53,238
Due to the ultimate holding company TR SRR H“/‘T* 29,812 27,594
Due to the immediate holding company TENEEER AR I,E 1,277,209 -
Total current liabilities RBEERSE 4,233,800 579,890
Net current (liabilities)/assets 78 (BE) EEFE (3,023,314) 343,375
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 30,012,852 29,213,328
Non-current liabilities B =
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SRR REMEE 10,350,424 9,957,170
Due to the immediate holding company ANNERE3EY ) YNGIE- = 348,894
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAR 10,350,424 10,306,064
Net assets EEZE 19,662,428 18,907,264
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44 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 44 A6EHRBHERLE (8)
POSITION (CONTINUED)

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-RF —EhF
t=A=t-B +f-A=1-H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE FTEx FET

Equity R
Share capital e 36(b) 18,281,191 17,478,481
Other reserves Hih 1,381,237 1,428,783
Total equity e 19,662,428 18,907,264

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March REFEN_T—+tF- AT ERAILERKRE

2017. iz -
Huang Wei Liu Chong
R tES
Director Director
EF EF
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of the
new standards which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. As the Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts
may be identified in due course and will be taken into consideration when
determining whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial
instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement of financial assets and calculation of impairment of financial
assets. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive
changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities. Expected
impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s financial statements are as
follows:

(a) Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial
assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) as follows:

e The classification for debt instruments is determined based on
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. If a
debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in
profit or loss.

£ W
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45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 45 #&Z-F—A&E+_A=+—HIL4E

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT T A 4R 3 A A AR B T > B aT I e
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 RREMTRER 2 ()

DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) Hl AR EREN » SR TR ()

(a) Classification and measurement (continued) @ DERIE ()

e For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless of
the entity’s business model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the entity irrevocably elects
to designate that security as FVTOCI. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that
security will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and
FVTPL will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently classified
as “available-for-sale”, these are investments in equity securities
which the Group may classify as either FVTPL or irrevocably elect
to designate as FVTOCI (without recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9.
The Group has not yet decided whether it will irrevocably designate
these investments as FVTOCI or classify them as FVTPL. Either
classification would give rise to a change in accounting policy as the
current accounting policy for available-for-sale equity investments is
to recognise fair value changes in other comprehensive income until
disposal or impairment, when gains or losses are recycled to profit
or loss in accordance with the Group’s policies set out in notes 2(g)
and 2(k). This change in policy will have no impact on the Group’s net
assets and total comprehensive income but will impact on reported
performance amounts such as profit and earnings per share.
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45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except
that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of that financial
liability's own credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive
income (without reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently
does not have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and
therefore this new requirement may not have any impact on the Group
on adoption of HKFRS 9.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model. Under the
expected credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss
event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.

Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure expected
credit losses as either 12- month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade receivables and other
financial assets.

However, a more detailed analysis is required to determine the extent
of the impact.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue
standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11 Construction contracts,
which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction contracts.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its
financial statements.
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45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 45 #&Z_F—AHETA=+—HIL4E

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT LA A 1L 0 R A BB T ~ T Y F I

NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AERE A T RE RS ()

DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers HWMBERERAE15% > REFHAH

(continued) KA (%)

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group has identified the following BB AEETHA T2

areas which are likely to be affected: N

(a) Timing of revenue recognition @) WABEREFE
The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note AEEWARERBOR L2 AR E
2(v). Currently, revenue arising from construction contracts and the BESHRRBURBEEENRA B ARE
provision of services is recognised over time, whereas revenue from RIEERR MBS mMBA—RIER
the sale of goods is generally recognised when the risks and rewards BENERKERCEBERPEER

of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains REBBFBEREELEH EXPM
control of the promised good or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 156 H)H FET oA B0 78 an o AR 7 Y 128 5 RE B
identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised good or RN - BAMBRELENFERE H
service is regarded as being transferred over time: AFTET AR M TEW‘%E'JT HIRES BB R

REEEEEN=R’ER

(@ When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes @ EBEBCRONAN BPEELE
the benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the entity EZERRENRENRE
performs;

(b) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset by TEEEELISLE ZEEENE
(for example work in progress) that the customer controls as the ERAREFEFMEE (PR
asset is created or enhanced; T8):

(c)  When the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an ©) E?E“I@%ITFE%F HEER
alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable R#ETHREERZERYBZEZA
right to payment for performance completed to date. JJ:ETDIE’JE?@\ BB AR EIHNT

B9 ST RTHER) o

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any ZZ NEFREBEHUABRZE-R

of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises BRANER—&  RIRBEEAMBEREE

revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point in time, AIZ155 8  ZEERHEER DI RS

being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of REEARNEE (NEHECEBE) B 145(

ownership is only one of the indicators that will be considered in A FTERENERREMMNERERE

determining when the transfer of control occurs. I B AR RIS e E BRI TmZ

— o
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45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward approach to
the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control approach, it is possible
that once the Group adopts HKFRS 15 some of the Group’s property
development activities that are currently recognised at a point in
time may meet the HKFRS 15 criteria for revenue recognition over
time. This will depend on the terms of the sales contract and the
enforceability of any specific performance clauses in that contract,
which may vary depending on the jurisdiction in which the contract
would be enforced. It is also possible that for the remainder of the
Group’s contracts the point in time when revenue is recognised may
be earlier or later than under the current accounting policy. However,
further analysis is required to determine whether this change in
accounting policy may have a material impact on the amounts
reported in any given financial reporting period.

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for the
time value of money when a contract contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether the payments from customers are
received significantly in advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a policy when payments
are significantly deferred, which is currently not common in the
Group’s arrangements with its customers.

Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when payments are
received in advance.

Advance payments are common when residential properties are
marketed by the Group while the property is still under construction.
In this situation, the Group may offer buyers a discount compared to
the sales price payable, provided the buyer agrees to pay the balance
of the purchase price early.

Currently, the revenue from property sales is recognised when
the property is complete, measured at the amount received from
the customer, irrespective of whether the customer pays early or
on completion. However, under HKFRS 15 such advance payment
schemes are likely to be regarded as including a financing
component.
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45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 45
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(b) Significant financing component (continued)
The Group is in the process of assessing whether this component
in the Group’s advance payment schemes would be significant to
the contract and therefore whether, once HKFRS 15 is adopted, the
transaction price would need to be adjusted for the purposes of
recognising revenue. Any adjustment to the transaction price under
HKFRS 15, if considered necessary, would result in interest expense
being recognised while the construction work is still in progress to
reflect the effect of the financing benefit obtained from the customers,
with a corresponding increase to revenue on sale of properties
recognised when control of the completed property is transferred to
the customer.

(c) Sales with a right of return
Currently when the customers are allowed to return the products, the
Group estimates the level of returns and makes an adjustment against
revenue and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not materially
affect how the Group recognises revenue and cost of sales when the
customers have a right of return.

However, the new requirement to recognise separately a return asset
for the products expected to be returned will impact the presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Group
currently adjusts the carrying amounts of inventory for the expected
returns, instead of recognising a separate asset.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(j), currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group enters
into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.
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45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS
16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the
lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases
(i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently classified as
operating leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the lease. The Group will perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered
into or terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

The directors consider the adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements because the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at
31 December 2016 was insignificant to the Group.
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EE R %

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
F-E-ARAERERTREGHARRZYERS

Interest Expected
to the Land Area Planned GFA Completion
Project/Property Name Type Address Company (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Year
ARG EHEE  REREEE FErtET
BE/WEER i HE it i (FHR) (EF7K) F4
Property interest held for future development
B RARRZMFER
Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 4 Warehouse/ Luohu, Shenzhen 97.74% 5,700 30,560 2018
Commercial
BB R EE 4 Bfk /% R
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2 Residential Yushan, Ma'anshan 97.74% 189,927 643,547 2020
BRILREERNS F=E FBLUTHLER
Garden Hills (Land Plot 1) Residential Zhongkai Development Zone, 100% 81,811 166,985 No Plans
Huizhou
FIE5 (155308R) TE BT REE AEE
Garden Hills Phase 3.2 Residential Zhongkai Development Zone, 100% 48,702 214,529 2020
Huizhou
F1L#583.28 FE BT HERER
Splendid City Phase 3 Residential Taizhou, Jiangsu 100% 46,675 110,960 No Plans
RBZHIH =z TEHETMT AEatE
Shum Yip Garden Residential Huicheng, Huizhou 100% 72,922 297,505 2021
RETEE i BRI E
Rui Cheng Phase 3.2 Residential Changsha County, Changsha 80% 12,453 66,627 2020
Ei3.288 F=x ROTRDE
Nanhu Rose Bay Building 10-17# (Zone 1&2 of Phase 4) Residential Wuhan, Hubei 75.05% 38,035 118,203 No Plans
RIIIBLE10-174 (45518212 i MILERET AEE
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 1.2 — Longxi Residential Qingjiang North Road, 52.54% 16,900 81,888 2018
Qingbaijiang, Chengdu
TRMBORE1 28 — REE F=E REWEQIRE TR
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 2 Residential Qingjiang North Road, 52.54% 4,146 16,584 No Plans
Qingbaijiang, Chengdu
BB B2 F=E HETERLRETIR AEE
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 3 Residential Qingjiang North Road, 52.54% 4,287 21,437 No Plans
Qingbaijiang, Chengdu
B BRIE3HA FE RSB LREIIE AEE
Wuhan Bio Valley Project Residential North of Gaoxin Avenue, East 75.05% 348,249 830,000 No Plans
Lake High-tech Development
Zone, Wuhan
REEMARE FE RETRNSHRHAELA KA
Chaohu Royal Spring Garden North Residential Bantang Economic Development 100% 127,269 33,920 No Plans
Zone, Chaohu
ERHRELE F=E ENmrseEREE REE
Chaohu South Residential Residential Bantang Economic Development 100% 145,868 41,406 No Plans
Zone, Chaohu
HPEEEE T ENmtsRERER KE:E
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Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
B-H-KRARAHRRTREGEABRZMERES

Interest Expected
to the Land Area Planned GFA Completion
Project/Property Name Type Address Company (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Year
DA GER  REERERR Bt T
BE /NELB FAEE ik 53 (FF7K) (F73K) F4
Property interest held for future development
BHEABRRZWERS
Chaohu South Residential Phase 1 Residential Bantang Economic Development 100% 17,822 5,509 2017
Zone, Chaohu
EMmREE1H Fx ENm¥seEREE
Chengdu Splendid Industrial Park (Land Plot South) Commercial Caotang East Road, Qingyang, 87.97% 6,836 10,654 2017
Chengdu
RESRAB TR (Btbit) [EE3 KRBT EFRELRE
Taifu Square Phase 2 Complex Luohu, Shenzhen 97.74% 8,964 92,240 2021
RER5H AE RIT R
Taifu Square Phase 3 Complex Luohu, Shenzhen 97.74% 8,807 132,992 2022
RERSE Fa AT
Shanglin Garden (Land Plot South) Residential Hailing Road, Hailing, Taizhou 100% 182,865 532,412 No Plans
%8 (Fastit) =z TN RE R GRE BE REE
Shum Yip Xihui Residential Changsha County, Changsha 80% 27,732 102,821 2019
REERE % RATRD G
Kashi Residential (Land Plot 1) Residential Duolaitebage Road, Kashi 100% 17,129 59,952 No Plans
BEHEE (iiR1) = BT REEEE KB E
Sanshui Hotel (Land Plot 5) Complex Sanshui, Foshan 100% 90,016 108,062 No Plans
ZBIE (#0325) Fa LT =KE HEEE
Sanshui Investment (Land Plot 1) Residential/ Sanshui, Foshan 100% 36,756 11,050 No Plans
Commercial
KRR (HiR1) e/ HE BT =KE REFE
Yundonghai (Land Plot 2.1) Residential/ Sanshui, Foshan 100% 34,160 84,509 No Plans
Commercial
ERE (k2.1) FE/EE BLT=KE REE
Yundonghai (Land Plot 3) Residential/ Sanshui, Foshan 100% 221,480 200,590 No Plans
Commercial
ZERE (1383) €/ % BLT=KE HEEE
Yundonghai (Land Plot 4) Residential/ Sanshui, Foshan 100% 332,598 247,620 No Plans
Commercial
ZRG (0584) e/ % BT =KE REFE
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EE R %

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
F-E-ARRAHRBTREGHARRIMERESR

Interest Expected
to the Land Area  Planned GFA Stage of Completion
Project/Property Name Type Address Company (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  Development®te) Year
ARG EHER REEZEER BitRI
BE /MELE FAEE ik 53 (F5K) (FF7K) BRER W 3
Property interest held under development
BERRP2NERER
Shum Yip Zhongcheng Land Plot 05-01 Complex Intersection of Hongli West 100% 36,193 338,873 3 2019
Road and Nongyuan
Road, Futian, Shenzhen
RER05-01 1 e AT EERAS AR
BEERER
Taifu Square Phase 1 (South) Complex Luohu, Shenzhen 97.74% 18,600 206,971 2 2019
REES 1S (AR) Fa R TR
Taifu Square Phase 1 (North) Complex Luohu, Shenzhen 97.74% 8,158 100,804 2 2018
REES1H (LRE) Ra AT MR
Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2 Residential Zhonglou, Changzhou 100% 32,640 125,939 2 2018
BHREERH F= BMTEER
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 3.2 Residential Yushan, Ma'anshan 97.74% 62,669 194,560 3 2018
BEILAEENIEAER F= FRUTHLUE
Gaobangshan No.1 Garden Phase 1 Residential Huicheng, Huizhou 100% 38,994 135,893 3 2018
(Land Plot 4)
=L SR E B (45 33R) % B HERE
Shum Yip City Phase 3.2 Residential Beijiao Town, Shunde, 100% 51,006 129,022 3 2017
Foshan
RS2 FE BILmIEEREILEE
Shanglin Garden Phase 1.2 Residential Hailing Road, Hailing, 100% 36,503 106,405 1 2018
Taizhou
EMR%81.28 FE el bl
Garden Hill Phase 3.1.2 — 6/7/8/9 Residential Zhongkai Development Zone, 100% 24,199 127,593 4 2017
Huizhou
F1L#583.1 81218 — 6/7/8/9 = MNP ihERER
Garden Hill Phase 3.1.1 — A-2/3 Residential Zhongkai Development Zone, 100% 31,693 79,847 4 2017
Huizhou
F 253 ERE — A-2/3 = EMTHHER
Garden Hill Phase 3.1.1B — 1/4/5 Residential Zhongkai Development Zone, 100% 15,419 50,909 4 2017
Huizhou
F 125831 831128-1/4/5 T=E EMTIMERER
Rui Cheng Phase 2.2 Residential Changsha County, Changsha 80% 26,152 73,757 4 2017
2,28 FE RAOTRDH
Rui Cheng Phase 3.1 Residential Changsha County, Changsha 80% 45117 73,433 3 2018
BH31H FE RATRD G
Wanlin Lake Phase 9 Residential Jinbang Road, Huicheng, 100% 27,698 74,427 2 2019
Huizhou
EHoH F=E BENTERE SR
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EE R %

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
B-H-KRARAHRRTREGEABRZMERES

Interest Expected
to the Land Area  Planned GFA Stage of Completion
Project/Property Name Type Address Company (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  Development®®) Year
DR EHRERE HREREER BEET
BE /WEEB Jiih: A ik i (EFEK) (EFEK) BRERE F4H
Property interest held under development
BRRRPZYXER
Terra Licheng (Chegongmiao Redeveloped Complex Tairan 4th Road, Futian, 75.05% 7,944 116,650 2 2019
Project) (Phase 1) Shenzhen
FAVW (BERBHMERIEE —H) ma RYITAR B R AT 3R
Building 5&6 of Yihu Rose Bay Phase 1.1 Residential Qingjiang North Road, 52.54% 4,400 17,761 4 2017
Qingbaijiang, Chengdu
BB 15 k612 FE RETEELREIIE
Chaohu North Phase 4.1 Residential Bantang Economic 100% 6,732 4,853 3 2017
Development Zone,
Chaohu
LY SIq T FE HENm¥sEERER
Chaohu North Phase 3 Residential Bantang Economic 100% 14,621 5,721 3 2017
Development Zone,
Chaohu
i E3s FE NS EERER
Shum Yip Dongling Land Plot 04-01 Commercial Intersection of Shennan East 95% 6,751 76,733 2 2020
Road and Yanhe North
Road, Luohu, Shenzhen
IRERE04-011032 [EES AT RNE R R E
TR LB R B R
Shum Yip Dongling Land Plot 03-01 Complex Intersection of Shennan East 95% 48,434 457,359 4 2018
Road and Yanhe North
Road, Luohu, Shenzhen
IRERE03-013038 Fa AT RNE R R R
TR LB AR B
Shum Yip UpperHills South Besides Office T2~ Complex Intersection of Huanggang 100% 72,609 768,009 4 2019
Road and Sungang Road,
Futian, Shenzhen
RE EHAERT2 e AITREE S R A
BEERER
Qianhai 19-06-06 Project Residential Free Trading Area, Qianhai, 50% 12,491 52,900 2 2018
Shenzhen
A/819-06-0678 B = AMImagaER
Tanglang City West Complex South of Liuxian Avenue, 50% 30,101 277,557 4 2018
Nanshan, Shenzhen
BN AR e AR L B LR Al
Notes: Wt
1. Site formation 1. MEFE
2. Foundation work 2 WETHE
3. Superstructure in progress 3 fETE#TH
4. Interior finishing 4. AEEE
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Schedule of Major Properties

EE R %

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for sales

FoE-ARARBEHEZNEES

Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion Date
£ AREER

LIS pic8 k=3 Frit s (FFHK) &R B
Shunde Shum Yip City Shunde, Foshan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 143,378.64 2012
eV 2] BRAHILTIRER BEREE
Noble Times Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 241.04 2012
RRER BERE AT BEREE
Royal Garden Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 311.05 2012
il BERE AT FE
Zhongxin Science & Technology Building Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. 100% 11,050.91 2001
FERHAE BRERIT PRE
Rui Cheng Phase | Changsha City, Hunan Res. 80% 6682.47 2012
E—H MEERDT F=
Wanlin Lake Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 39,233.52 2008-2011
B BERABME BEREE
Garden Hill Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 17,502.40 2012
Sl BERABME BEREE
Yundonghai (Land Plot 2) Sanshui, Foshan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 64,996.12 2012
ZRG (2%Ri5%) BRAHILT=KE BEREE
Saina Bay Heyuan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 20,144.69 2012
E30) | BRETRT BEREE
Euro-view Garden Phase 1 Dongguan, Guangdong Res. 100% 5,377.40 2012
BRER—H BRERZM F=
Splendid City Phase 1 & 2.1 Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 36,264.25 2011-2014
WEZHI K215 IHATMT FE
Ma’anshan Shumyip Huafu Ma’anshan, Anhui Res. 99.78% 117,684.26 2013
BRILREER REEFBRLT FE
Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Changzhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 4,752.55 2014
BIREER TEABMT FE
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station and Shenyang, Liaoning Com. & Res. 81.09% 38,968.14 2011

Meibo Trading Centre
EHIEREREUREFESPL BEAEGT BAEREE
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 1-3 Wuhan, Hubei Com. & Res. 52.54% 14,813.72 2012
ARBE—Z=4 MR RET BAEREE
Yihu Rose Garden Phase I-I Chengdu, Sichuan Com. & Res. 45.03% 23,158.45 2013
e BIRGE-15 m)11%& AR T BAEREE
Tian’an Long Garden Phase | Chongging Com. & Res. 37.53% 30,773.92 2014
RET R R — BEM AEREE
Tian’an Panyu Phase 5-8 Panyu, Guangzhou, Guangdong Ind. & Res. 37.53% 127,635.49 2011-2014
RREBLZEN\E ERERNTESRE IEREE
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Schedule of Major Properties

EE R %

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for sales

FoE - FRABAEHE 2 MERERE

Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion Date
&M BEEER

L/ES it Jith =3 Frit g (F5HK) &R A
Tian’an Nanhai Cyber-City Phase 2-6 Foshan, Guangdong Ind. 37.53% 10,647.70 2010-2014
AL SIS B2 BRAMBLT I¥
Chongging Tian An Cloud Park (Phase 1) Chongging Com. 37.53% 43,335.26 2012
BERRREA—H - [EES
Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park Changzhou,Jiangsu Ind. & Res. 37.53% 71,732.90 2010-2014
BMRREEE TERABMT TEREE
Tian’an Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Com. & Res. 37.53% 72,887.99 2012-2014
RLTREIEH IEHEIRT BEREE
Tian’an Dongguan Cyber-City (BuildingC/E) ~ Dongguan, Guangdong Ind. & Res. 37.53% 5,668.48 2013-2014
REREHIEH(C - ER) BREAREM TEREE
Foshan Tian An Centre Phase1 Foshan, Guangdong Com. 37.53% 21,107.59 2014
LRz —H BRAMBLT [EES
Tian An Hi-Tech Development Building Guangzhou, Guangdong Ind. & Res. 37.53% 8,567.21 2008-2009
REMBERAE ERERMNT TEREE
Tian'an Cyber-City Chuangye Shenzhen,Guangdong Com. 37.53% 7,061.39 2012-2015
REHEHAIEE BRE AT [EES
Tian'an Tianjin Cyber-City Tianjin Ind. & Res. 37.53% 95,655.41 2013-2016
RER AR RAET TEREE
Tian’an Qingdao Cyber-City Qingdao, Shandong Ind. & Res. & Com. 37.53% 78,603.10 2015
REESHIBEH LWREEST I% k@
Coastal International Centre-Shop & Apt. Suzhou, Jiangsu Com. & Res. 100% 14,214.62 2009
HBEBRRL - BERRE TEEFMT BEREE
UpperHills North Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 51,257.80 2014
wEESILE ERERYT FE
Jiangyue Bay Guangzhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 10,969.98 2014, 2015
IiRE ERERMNT FE
Royal Spring North Villa Phase | Chaohu, Anhui Res. 100% 2,741.80 2015
BRI pIZE— 5 ZHE R AT r=
Bofeng Building Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. 97.82% 35,979.04 2016
BEXE ERERYITEAR WAE
Ruicheng Phase 2.1 Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 1,963.22 2016
218 MEERDT r=
Shanglin Garden Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 29,512.38 2016
iR v TERATMT r=
Guanlan Rose Pavilion and Rose Garden Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. & Res. 38.28% 52,792.84 2016
BURBORE KBRS BRERYIT BEREE
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EE R %

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for investment

F=E - FRABAEREZMERER

Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion Date
AH B ER
L/ES it k=3 Frib R (FHR) &R A
Shun Hing Square Shennan Zhong Road, Com., Off., Res. and Carpark 100% 17,817.12 1996
Jiefang Road and Baoan Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen
FRES R T BRI R P R AR AR BE PRE X
REZERR REFES
Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Luohu, Com. and Off. 100% 10,335.30 1997
Shenzhen
RERL R R RE B BERPRE
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com./Res., Com. and Carpark 50% 5,853.19 1993
ERAE RITENEARBR B/ BERESES
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com./Res. 100% 1,376.98 1993
ERAE RITENEARBR i/
Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen  Off. 100% 3,931.39 1991
RERE RN R R WAE
Noble Times Longgang, Shenzhen Com 100% 27,062.21 2012
RERR RITEER [EE3
Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off., Com./Res., 75.05% 131,164.19 1994-2012
Ind., Res. and Carpark
ERBIXRE AY|TEHE BECBAE B/
I% EREFESES
No. 10 Fuxing Nan Road Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75.05% 64.44 1990
REMKI05 AmiEhE FE
Shenhua Science & Technology Park Meilin Road, Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 75.05% 15,341.58 1994
REREE A ARG I%
Shop in No.117 Fuxing Road Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 50.49 1993
BEENTRES RYTEEE [HES
Fuxing Building No.9 Fuxing Road, Futian, Shenzhen ~ Com., Off. and Carpark 100% 1,593.20 1993
REXE AIYITiE A R 2395 B¥  BAEREES
Tian’an Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Off., Ind., Res. and Carpark 37.53% 66,427.68 1992-2005
REERBIERE g MRz IE - EEREFES
Tian’an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase I Nanhai, Foshan, Guangdong Ind. 37.53% 24,214.93 2008-2015
RLEGEIEHE =8 BERAHBLTEHER I%
Tian’an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangzhou, Guangdong Ind., Res. 37.53% 28,412.16 2010
RREBYIEIH EREENTEBR I¥REE
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Schedule of Major Properties

EE R %

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for investment

F=E - FRABAEREZMERERE

Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion Date
AT BEEER

L/ES it Jith =3 Frib R (F5HK) &R A
Tian’an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Ind. 37.53% 27,904.89 2010-2014
REFE I BISHTIH BRERYIT BAERIX
Tian’an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Ind. 37.53% 14,660.11 2012-2015
RERZHIEIM BREREM I¥
Tian’an Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Ind. 37.53% 18,566.07 2012
RIS IEEIRT I%
Tian’an Changzhou Cyber-City Changzhou, Jiangsu Ind. 37.53% 31,640.99 2012
REEMNEIEHH TEHEFMT I%
Tian’an Qingdao Cyber-City Qingdao, Shandong Ind. 37.53% 2,900.36 2015
RREBHIBHH LWREEST I%
Tian'an Tianjin Cyber-City Xiging, Tianjin Ind. 37.53% 20,130.65 2016
RERAESIEIM RETREE I¥
Tian’an Chonggqing Cyber-GCity Da Du Kou, Chongging Ind. 37.53% 2,600.84 2015
AL BB HIETM EEMAEA I%
Shum Yip Garden Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,646.43 2002
REIEE AR [EES
Sungang Warehouse Zone Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. and Com. 97.82% 84,884.21 1990-2002
EEEER AITENEERILR TEREE
Compostie Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Com./Res. 97.82% 4,812.73 1991
hRBERE AT ENEERILR A
Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Com./Res. 97.82% 4,835.28 1988
hRBEEE AHENEERILR 5]
Zijing Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Carpark 100% 7,257.00 1997
S0 ATiEEE FEG
Boxing Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen Com. 97.82% 12,861.05 2014
BEAE R EE AT [EES
Bolong Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen Com. 97.82% 39,284.24 2014
HERE R EE AT [EES
S.Z. Int'l. Trust and Investment Junction of Zhenxin Road Off. 75.05% 1,316.54 1990

Corp. Building and Shangbu Zhong Road,

Futian, Shenzhen

RIERETREERARE AITEERERRER ESRRIR PRE
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EE R %

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for investment
EZE - KRRAREEREZNERR

Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion Date
AT BEEER

L/ES it Jiik it (E5K) EF A
Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Ind. 81.09% 27,852.63 1994-1996
EHRERER BEAREGT I%
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Carpark 81.09% 47,442.46 2011

and Meibo Trading Centre
BEIEREREUREBESPL BEEREET =)
Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Com. and Off. 100% 42,518.00 2009
BB AL TERAEMT BERNAE
Chengdu Jinxiu Workshop Chengdu, Sichuan Com. and Carpark 88.04% 30,803.45 2008
RERELS )11 BB T AERESES
UpperHills South Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Hotel & Off. 100% 283,154.00 2017
RE PR BRERIT B BERBAE
Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Guangdong and Com., Res., Ind. and Carpark 100% 270,576.62 1983-2005

Nanjing, Jiangsu

LS BRARNTRIHEER BE ET IERFES
Xiangli Oasis Club Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,212.09 2003
BB E T ATEER [EES
Times Technology Building Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Off. 100% 52,742.86 2009
BFREEARE RITEER BERBAE
Longxi Garden Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 6,515.27 1984-1996
BETLE AT EER TE
Nongke Oasis Office Tower Futian, Shenzhen Off. 100% 5,343.91 2012
BRSO D g AmERE WAE
Nongke Business Office Tower Futian, Shenzhen Off. 100% 859.16 2012
BRIBEHHRNE ATEER WAE
Xiangli Garden Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,560.00 2003
EB1tE AT EER GRS
Town Nanshan, Shenzhen Carpark 50% 10,541.00 2015
YRR ATELE FE5
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EE R %

Group IV — Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
FENE - AARAFEEERZNERES

Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion Date
AR AREER
LIE ik k=3 Frit s (FFK) &R B
Song Ping Shan Estate Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 77.27 1996
ML EE AT EER TFE
Tian Yuan Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 103.23 1997
AR AT EER TFE
Chaohu Shumyip Royal Spring Garden Chaohu, Anhui Hotel 100% 40,663.91 2012
EMRELEHRE REEEMNT BIE
Jinhui Hujing Garden Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 325.66 2008
SEHRTER BEREBMT FE
Agile Garden Heyuan, Guangdong Res. 100% 383.56 2009
HELEE BRETRT FE
Shumyip Coast Baoan, Shenzhen Com 100% 3,728.75 2005-2008
REFER RITERE [EES
Shenfa Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 86.37 1994
RETEE AT RN FE
Cai Tian Ming Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 324.44 2001
WREH RITmEER FE
Block 611, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 9,418.02 1985
NEaE6111R RITmEER I%
Factory in Xuexiang Village Longgang, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 2,168.10 2005
EXNBE AR T¥
Factory in Xia Shijia Village Baoan, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 5,088.10 1990's
TERNEE RITERE T¥
Block 8 Peng Sheng Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 47.06 1992
fesx iR RITERR Fx
Block 51, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 35.31 1995
NEES1R RITEER FE
Block 58 Peng Xing Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 72.69 1990's
e |t E581R AT RN FE
Block 8 Peng Sheng Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 31.48 1992
fesx iR RITEER Fx
Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Hotel 100% 38,690.71 2009
IEEEHMT BIE
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EE R %

Group IV — Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
BE - RXARBFEEERZNERES

Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion Date
AT BEEER

L/ES it Jith=3 it (E5K) EF A
Shenyang Wuai Logistic Building Shenyang, Liaoning Ind. 81.09% 5,680.00 1994-1996
EHLERER BEHREGT I¥
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Carpark 81.09% 40,106.74 2011

and Meibo Trading Centre
BEIEREREUREBESPL BEEREET =)
Jinsong Building Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 75% 3,600.00 2001
YIMAE AmiEmE I%
Jinghai Garden Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75% 200.24 1998
~ETEE AmiEh R FE
Bihai Hong Shu Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Com. 75% 7,431.11 2004
BgUE AmiEh R [HES
Mingzhu Times Square Ma’anshan, Anhui Res. 99.78% 462.40 2005
HERRES REEFBRLT FE
Terra Building (floor 5-8) Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 100% 7,878.53 2012
RAEKE (5-8/8) BRERIT [HES
Bolong Building (floor 23-24) Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 97.82% 3,784.88 2015
BEAE (23-248) BRE AT [HES
Jinzhou Building Suzhou, Jiangsu Com. 100% 1,865.00 2003
SMAE TEAEMT [EES
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